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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

From time to time, in both written reports (suchttas report) and oral statements, Salem CommuoitaCorporation (“Salem”
or the “company,” including references to Salenf\g,” “us” and “our”) makes “forward-looking stateants” within the meaning of
federal and state securities laws. Disclosuresubatwvords such as the company “believes,” “ardteip,” “estimates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “will,” “may” or “plans” and similar expessions are intended to identify forward-lookitatesments, as defined under the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%hese forward-looking statements reflect the comisacurrent expectations and
are based upon data available to the company éintkethe statements are made. Such statemerssilgject to certain risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual resultsfferdnaterially from expectations. These riskswadl as other risks and uncertainties,
are detailed in Salem’s reports on Forms 10-K, 18a@Q 8-K filed with or furnished to the Securiteasd Exchange Commission.
Forward-looking statements made in this report lspeaof the date hereof. Except as required by tlagvcompany undertakes no
obligation to update or revise any forward-lookstgtements made in this report. Any such forwaakilog statements, whether
made in this report or elsewhere, should be coreitie context with the various disclosures mad&alem about its business.
These projections or forward-looking statementisuiatier the safe harbors of Section 27A of the Sges Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Sé@ms Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ErghaAct”).

All metropolitan statistical area (“MSA”) rank imfmation used in this report, excluding informatmoncerning The
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, is from the Fall 26G&lio Market Survey Schedule & Population Rankimgislished by Arbitron.
According to the Radio Market Survey, the populastimates used were based upon the 2000 U.SalB@ensus estimates
updated and projected to January 1, 2010 by Nigl$aritas, Inc.



PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

GENERAL

We believe that we are the largest commercial tadio broadcasting company that provides programgrargeting audiences
interested in Christian and family-themed contastmeasured by number of stations and audienceag®/e Our core business is the
ownership and operation of radio stations in largdropolitan markets. Upon completion of all annmthtransactions, we will own
a national portfolio of 94 radio stations in 37 k&ts, including 58 stations in 22 of the top 25 keés, which consists of 27 FM
stations and 67 AM stations. We are one of onlgglgommercial radio broadcasters with radio statiorall of the top 10 markets.
We are the seventh largest operator measured blerunh stations overall and the third largest ofmeraneasured by number of
stations in the top 25 markets. We also prograsrFdmily TalR' Christian-themed talk format station on XM Radityannel 170.

Our radio business focuses on the clustering afegjic formats, mainly Christian Teaching and T&@l&ntemporary Christian
Music and conservative News Talk. In late 2007 jmsoduced a fourth format, Spanish language @hrisTeaching and Talk. We
own and operate Salem Radio Network® (“SRN"), aamatl radio network that syndicates music, newstatidto approximately
2,000 affiliated radio stations, in addition to @wned and operated stations. We also own andaitgp€alem Media
Representatives® (“SMR”), a national radio advartjssales firm with offices in 12 U.S. cities.

In addition to our radio broadcast business, we aign and operate a non-broadcast media divisidnis division consists of
Salem Web Network (“SWN?"), a provider of online @ian content and streaming, Salem PublishingPuldisher of Christian
magazines and Xulon Press, a provider of printemahd publishing services targeting the Christiatience. SWN's content, both
in text and audio, can be accessed through ownatportals that include OnePlace.com, Crosswaik, cChristianity.com and
Townhall.com®. SWN's content can also be acceffsmaigh our local radio station websites, whichvte content of interest to
local listeners.

Business Strategy

Our principal business strategy is to improve aatiamal radio platform and to invest in and buitthrbroadcast businesses as
the breadth of the media marketplace also expandsliver compelling content to audiences intekgteChristian and family-
themed programming and conservative news talk. mational presence in broadcasting, Internet afdighing gives advertisers a
platform that is a powerful way to broadly reachri€ian audiences.

We program 42 of our stations with our Christiaradleng and Talk format, which is talk programminighwChristian and
family themes. A key programming strategy on obri§ian Teaching and Talk radio stations is td Isleicks of time to a variety of
religious and charitable organizations that creatapelling radio programs. Typically, more tha®®06f our block programming
partners annually renew their respective relatigostvith us. Based on these renewal rates, we\methat block programming
provides a steady and consistent stream of revandieash flow. The top ten programmers have aedrager 15 years on the air
and have remained relatively constant. Total @ogning revenue has comprised 35% to 41% of totabreadcast revenue from
2006 through 2009. We also program 24 News Talkasts, 11 Contemporary Christian Music statioms, seven Spanish-language
Christian Teaching and Talk stations. SRN suppmutsstrategy by allowing us to reach listeners arkats where we do not own or
operate stations. Additionally, we operate numeioternet websites and publish periodicals ankbdmat target similar audiences
in order to provide cross-platform synergies.

We are fundamentally committed to broadcastingrivét and publishing formats and programming enipimgsChristian,
conservative news talk and family themes. As phthis business philosophy, we may choose nowitchk to other formats or
pursue potentially more profitable business opprties in response to changing audience preferences

We strive to build clusters of radio stations icleaf our markets with each format targeting déferdemographic segments of
the audience interested in Christian and familyviéeé programming. Several potential benefits réfsaith operating multiple radio
stations in the same market. First, this clusteand programming strategy allows us to achievatgregpenetration into each segment
of our target market, and collectively our statiafford our clients a larger percentage of adviegisime in that market. We then are
able to offer advertisers multiple audiences anbiutadle the radio stations for advertising saleppses when advantageous.
Second, we realize cost and operating efficienzyesonsolidating sales, technical and administeasivpport and promotional
functions where possible. Finally, the purchasadifitional radio stations in an existing marké\ab us to leverage our market
expertise to better serve our advertisers andistenkers through traditional and emerging media.
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Both our chief executive officer and our chairmaa eareer radio broadcasters who have owned andtepdeadio stations for
more than 40 years.

Programming Strategy

Through the strength of our Christian Teaching &alik format, the influence of our News Talk formiéde continued popularity
of our Contemporary Christian Music format, andititeoduction of our Spanish Christian Teaching aatk format, we believe we
remain well-positioned to improve upon our leadgrgosition in Christian and family-themed radio.

Christian Teaching and TalkChristian Teaching and Talk is our foundationahfat. Through this format, a listener can hear
Bible teachings and sermons, as well as gain assweyuestions relating to daily life, from raisicigildren to religious legal rights in
education and the workplace. This format servdso#ts a learning resource and as a personal sufgpartir listeners nationwide. In
response to the daily programming of our block pragming partners, listeners contact these progtarask questions, get more
materials on a subject and receive study guidesdbas what they have learned on the radio.

Block Programming.Our national station platform and focused prograngstrategy provides us with the ability to
consistently offer block programmers on our Chaisti eaching and Talk stations both scale and iamefficiencies. Historically,
more than 90 percent of our block programming pgtimnnually renew their respective relationshijib us. Based on our
historical renewal rates, we believe that our blpakgramming business provides a steady and censistream of revenue and cash
flow.

News Talk.Our research has shown that our News Talk formiaigisly complementary to our core format of ChastiTeaching
and Talk. As programmed by Salem, both of thesmdts express conservative views and family vali@st News Talk format also
provides us with the opportunity to leverage syathid talk programming produced by our network, SRN nationally syndicated
programs are distributed through approximately @ 8ffiliates.

Contemporary Christian Music- The FISH®&hrough our Contemporary Christian Music (“CCM"yfieat, branded The FISH®
in most markets, we are able to bring listenersatbils of inspirational recording artists, set pdbeat contemporary music. Our
music format is branded “Safe for the Whole Fa®ilywith sounds that everyone enjoys and lyrics ffaents appreciate. The
CCM genre continues to be popular and was the sevamest genre in terms of sales based on daitable as of 2008. We believe
this listener base has been underserved in termaslaf coverage, especially in the larger markets.

Spanish Christian Teaching and Tall late 2007, we launched our Spanish Christiaaching and Talk format on a small
number of stations. This format is similar to core Christian Teaching and Talk format in thddridadcasts biblically based
programming. However, almost all of the block peogming is local rather than national.

XM Satellite Radio Our satellite radio station, XM 170, is the exsiVe Christian Teaching and Talk channel on SIRK)M
reaching the entire nation 24 hours a day, sevgs daveek.

Non-broadcast Media

Salem Web Netwotlkand Townhall.cof Our online strategy centers on creating the praigernet platform serving the
audience interested in Christian and conservatveent. Leveraging our engaged and loyal radierist base, SWN’s content, both
in text and audio, can be accessed through owr@dtportals that include OnePlace.com, Crosswaitk, cChristianity.com,
Townhall.com, and through our radio station welssitehich provide content of interest to our loaadio station listeners. In 2006,
we acquired CrossDaily.com and Townhall.com. In&0@e acquired intercristo.com and theconservatiie/com. These
acquisitions enhanced our web leadership as agepaind distributor of Christian and conservatigetent and services for our
target audience.

Salem Publishing™Our distribution of Christian and conservative @nttalso extends into print through Salem Publghén
magazine publisher serving the Christian and coasiee audience and Xulon Pré&sa provider of print-on-demand publishing
services targeted to the Christian audience. SBigtishing™ is well positioned to grow its magazirndomecoming The
Magazine, YouthWorker JourfialThe Singing News, FaithTalk Magazine, PreaclndTownhall Magazin&. In 2006, we
acquired two target segment-leading magazines Siiging Newsnagazine an&reachingmagazine, and their respective Internet
sites. In 2006, we also purchased Xulon Pressng@007, Salem Publishing acquired the ChristiasibRlanet brand, including
www. ChristianMusicPlanet.com, a leading Christiamsio web portal and CMCentral.com, a Christian musbsite and online
community. In 2008, we ceased the publicatio€6M Magazineand launchedownhall Magazin&.
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Audience Growth

We grow our audience by providing high quality, gaiting content on our radio stations and in syation that is tested and
fine-tuned to appeal to our listeners in each afattategic formats. We work to maximize audiernttare and then convert these
audience share ratings to advertising revenue.rélyen a combination of research, marketing, ted@romotions and live events
that create visibility and brand awareness foratations in their local markets.

Technical Improvements

A focus for us has been identifying ways to imprav@adio station’s broadcast signal so that itreach as many listeners as
possible, both during the day and at night. Westmmpleted numerous enhancements to increasevheage of our signals,
including several in the top 25 markets. Durin@&0we completed a power upgrade in the New Yorkapelitan market whereby
we increased the signal of WNYM-AM from 5,000 watis50,000 watts. We also relocated towers for &AM in Louisville,
Kentucky and KRLA-AM in Los Angeles, Californian R0O07, we completed the relocation of towers @x$lan Diego, California
and Washington DC markets. In early 2006, we laaddKTRO-FM, a new station in Portland, Oregon.diéidnally, during 2006
we completed a tower upgrade project for WLQV-AMDatroit, Michigan, and relocated our tower for KK@M in Seattle,
Washington.

Radio Advertising Sales

We have assembled an effective, highly-trainedssstiaff responsible for converting audience shaerevenue. We operate
with a focused, sales-oriented culture that rewaedling efforts through a commission and bonusemsation structure. We hire
sales professionals for each of our stations diostalusters, and we provide these professionils thve resources necessary to
compete effectively in the markets in which we @per We utilize various sales strategies to sellraarket our stations as stand-
alones or in combination with other stations withigiven market and across markets, where apptepria

Marketing Platform to National Advertisers

We have created a national platform of radio statiitnat reaches more than four million listenerskie National companies
find advertising on multiple radio stations to eadficient and cost-effective way to reach thigét audience. Through SMR, we
bundle and sell this national platform of radidistas to national advertisers, thereby enhancingeenue-generating opportunities,
expanding our base of advertisers, creating grei@i@and for our advertising time inventory and mglaur sales effort more
efficient.

Significant Community Involvement

We believe our active involvement and significaeiaitionships in the Christian community provideompetitive advantage in
targeting Christian audiences. Our proactive imgoient in the Christian community in each of ourkats significantly improves
the marketability of our radio broadcast time toetisers who are targeting such communities. \8l¥e that a radio station’s
image should reflect the lifestyle and viewpointshe target demographic group it serves. We aagupartner with organizations
that serve the Christian and family-themed audiemzbsponsor and support events important to thispg These events include
listener rallies, pastor appreciation events antteds likeCelebrate Freedom@&ndFishfest® These events connect us with our
listeners and enable us to create enhanced awarangésame recognition in our markets. Involventeauds to increased
effectiveness in developing and improving our pamgming formats, leading to greater listenershiplagtier ratings over the long-
term.

Corporate Structure

The management of our operations is decentraligag. operations vice presidents, some of whom laestation general
managers, oversee several markets on a regiorial Hasr operations vice presidents are experieragid broadcasters with
expertise in sales, programming, marketing andywron. We anticipate relying on this strategydetentralization and encourage
operations vice presidents to apply innovative néphes to the operations they oversee which, i€sssful, can be implemented at
our other stations. Additionally, we have execeifizadership and oversight from our corporate haaders.

Our corporate headquarters personnel overseedhemknt and rate negotiation for all national blpeigrams. Centralized
oversight of this component of our revenue is neggsbecause our key block program customers pseditae in many of our
markets. Corporate headquarters personnel alsespensible for centralized accounting and findmoetions, information
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technology, human resources, legal, engineerirad gstate, strategic direction and other suppardtfans designed to provide
resources to local management.

Recent Events

On December 30, 2009, we were notified that theeboy our radio station WRFD-AM, Columbus, Ohio, e not meet the
terms of the asset purchase agreement that waeemiéo on July 31, 2008. Based on our planelidisis radio station and exit the
Columbus market, we had accounted for this entity discontinued operation. The Consolidated Bal&@heets and Statements of
Operations had been reclassified for all pericésgnted to reflect the operating results and setta of this market as a
discontinued operation as of the date of this gasethase agreement through December 2009. Beoatlse buyer terminating the
agreement, we have reclassified the accompanyimgdlidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Opesat reflect the operating
results and net assets of this entity for all pisipresented in continuing operations. In Jangafy, we collected a termination fee
from the buyer of $0.2 million pursuant to the teration of the asset purchase agreement.

On December 1, 2009, we entered into a new $3dl@msenior credit facility, which is a revolvingredit facility
(“Revolver”) and issued $300 million of new sengercured second liel/@6 notes due December 2016%:% Notes”) at a discount
for $298.1 million resulting in an effective yietd 9.75%. The revolver includes a $5 million suiifty for standby letters of credit,
a subfacility for swingline loans of up to $5 mlli and an optional $10 million incremental facilitgyder which we may increase the
commitments available, subject to the terms andlitions of the credit agreement relating to the dteer (the “Credit Agreement.”)
We used the proceeds of tHa% Notes, a portion of the Revolver, and approxitge27 million of cash on hand to fully repay
amount outstanding under the Term Loan B of $71lBom the Term Loan C of $160.0 million, and tepay all aggregate principal
of $89.7 million on the 7,% Notes in full. We recorded a loss of $1.7 millievhich included $1.1 million of unamortized bdakn
fees on the prior credit facility, $0.1 million ohamortized bond issue costs on the 7 %% Note$@ddmillion of legal and dealer
fees associated with the calling of the 7%% Notesg@ior credit facility.

On July 24, 2009, we completed the purchase obrsidition WZAB-AM in Miami, Florida for $1.0 millie. The accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations reflect fegaging results of this radio station as of thguésition date. The business
combination is not material in the aggregate oividdally to our financial position as of the dateacquisition.

On April 7, 2009, SIC issued a promissory notede Holding in the amount of $0.3 million. On A, 2009, SIC
purchased $1.0 million of Salem Holding’s 7%% Ndtes$0.3 million. Salem Holding agreed to cartbel outstanding promissory
note in exchange for the cancellation by SIC oft3@% Notes. On a consolidated basis, the transactsulted in a $0.7 million
pre-tax gain on the early retirement of debt.

On June 1, 2009, we completed the sale of radimst&PXI-FM in Tyler-Longview, Texas for $0.4 mitin which resulted in a
pre-tax loss of $1.6 million. The operating resuaf KPXI-FM were excluded from the Consolidatedt8ments of Operations as of
the date of the sale.

On March 31, 2009, we completed the purchase @b itdtion WAMD-AM in Aberdeen, Maryland for $2.7lkon. The
acquisition was made to accommodate the day tigrabupgrade of WNYM-AM, New York, NY. Approximd{e$2.5 million of
the purchase price was allocated to this upgrdde purchase price had been paid into an escrosuaton July 18, 2008. The
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operaimhsdes the operating results of this radio staéie of the acquisition date. In
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 8¢dfASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASCTopic 805 Business
Combinations, expenses associated with this bust@sbination were expensed as of the January 2@&ive date. The business
combination is not material in the aggregate oividdally to our financial position as of the dateacquisition.

On February 2, 2009, we received reimbursement flenPort of Seattle of approximately $1.7 millmincosts associated with a
tower relocation project. The tower relocationdegn 2001 as a result of the City’s use of emirmkemhain in which the existing
tower land was seized.

On December 12, 2008, we formed Salem InvestmergdZation (“SIC”), a subsidiary of Salem Communiocas Corporation.
SIC issued a promissory note to Salem Holding énaimount of $4.75 million. On December 18, 2008 flirchased $9.4 million of
Salem Holding’s 7 %% Notes (“Notes”) at a 50% distdrom a group of Note holders. Salem Holdingead to cancel the
outstanding promissory note in exchange for theelation by SIC of the 7 %% Notes. On a consééiddasis, the transaction
resulted in a $4.7 million pre-tax gain on the gagtirement of debt.



On December 2, 2008, we sold radio station WRVIiRMouisville, Kentucky for $3.0 million resultinign a pre-tax gain of
$1.1 million. The operating results of WRVI-FM aecluded from the Consolidated Statement of Oersias of the date of the
sale.

In September 2008, an agreement dated FebruaB0P8,to sell radio station KKMO-AM in Seattle, Wasjton for
approximately $3.7 million was terminated. The éwugf the station did not meet the terms of thetgssrchase agreement. As a
result of the buyer terminating the agreement, @e@gnized income of $0.2 million reported as otheome in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

On June 30, 2008, we completed a reorganizati@eméin legal entities. Under this reorganizati®alem Holding now owns
all operating assets of the Company other than @@kMhimunications, Inc. The operating assets of CGivh@unications, Inc.
remain owned by Salem Holding. The reorganizadiminot impact the Consolidated Balance Sheetsoms@lidated Statements of
Operations.

On May 30, 2008, we sold radio station WFZH-FM iilwhukee, Wisconsin for $8.1 million resulting irpee-tax gain of $1.4
million, which is reported as a component of digeared operations. The accompanying ConsolidBeddnce Sheets and
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the geded December 31, 2008 reflect WFZH-FM as a ditwoed operation. All
prior periods have been reclassified to reflectdperating results of the station as a discontiraptation to conform to the current
period presentation.

On April 11, 2008, we completed the purchase adet assets of WMCU-AM in Miami, Florida, for $32nillion. We began
operating the station under a Local Marketing Agreet (“LMA") effective on October 18, 2007. Thecampanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations includes the operatingtsesf this station as of the LMA date.

On April 8, 2008, we acquired land in Seattle, Wiagton, Denver, Colorado and Pittsburgh, Pennsydviiom entities
controlled by our Chairman and by our Chief Exemitdfficer (“Principal Shareholders”) for approxitaly $5.0 million. This
transaction was approved by the independent menolberg Board of Directors and was based on theapgd value from a third-
party valuation firm. As a result of this trangant we will reduce rental expense by approxima$d¢8,000 annually and have
permanently secured these AM transmitter site ionat We also assumed two income-producing leasseagnts as follows: (a) a
diplex agreement at the Seattle-Tacoma, Washirgtergenerating annual rental income that is ctigréi 39,000 approximately
and (b) a mobile telephone lease at the Pittsbuirghnsylvania site generating annual rental incibratis currently $26,000. In
addition, we entered into new transmitter sitedsdsr eight (8) existing transmitter sites (thestiNTransmitter Site Leases”)
operated by the Company and leased from the Peh8ifpckholders. Seven (7) of these New Transnfiite L eases replace
existing transmitter site leases between the Compad the Principal Shareholder which were eitiseeduled to expire or had
option exercise deadlines in 2009 or 2010. Assaltewe are not required to renegotiate a neweleagxercise an option on any of
its related party leases until 2016.

On March 28, 2008, we sold radio station KTEK-AMHpuston, Texas for $7.8 million, including $4.8Iran in cash, and $3.3
million in notes receivables. The notes includeékila million 90 day promissory note due June D9&with interest at 8% per
annum and a $1.5 million seven year promissory hetging interest at 8% per annum, with monthlyailments due beginning in
May 2008. The sale resulted in a pre-tax gainéof $nillion. The operating results of KTEK-AM weegcluded from the
Consolidated Statement of Operations beginningabrdary 1, 2008, the date we stopped operatingt#ton pursuant to a Time
Brokerage Agreement with the buyer.

On March 28, 2008, we sold radio station WRRD-AMJitwaukee, Wisconsin for $3.8 million resulting énpre-tax gain of
$2.0 million, which is reported as a componentis€dntinued operations. The accompanying CongelitiBalance Sheets and
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the geded December 31, 2008 reflect WRRD-AM as a disicoed operation. All
prior periods have been reclassified to reflectdperating results of the station as a discontiraptation to conform to the current
period presentation.

As of the March 2008 issue, we ceased publicatfdd@M Magazine. The decision to cease publication did not affede®
Publishing's other magazind&eaching Magazineyouthworker Journal, Homecoming Magazine, The 8mbiews Magazine,
Faith Talk MagazinendTownhall Magazine The accompanying Consolidated Statements ofa@ipes reflect the operating results
of this entity as a discontinued operation forybar ended December 31, 2008. All prior periodseHhzeen reclassified to reflect the
operating results of this entity as a discontinapdration to conform to the current period predenia



On February 1, 2007, we entered into an agreerognirchase selected assets of radio station KTRQ4iANortland, Oregon
subject to certain conditions, for $4.5 millio’We began operating the station under an LMA effectihe same date. The
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operatiteiades the operating results of this radio statisiof the LMA date. On
October 29, 2008, we notified the owner in accocganith the agreement that it would discontinueratieg the station under the
LMA and would not acquire the station. As a resitilterminating this agreement, we recorded a teaieid transaction charge of
$0.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2008.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

We maintain a website at www.salem.cc. Our anredrts on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on FormQ,Qurrent reports on
Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reportsvaitahle free of charge through our website as ssoreasonably practicable
after those reports are electronically filed witfurnished to the Securities and Exchange ComonisSSEC”).

Salem Communications Corporation was formed in 1286 California corporation and was reincorporaiddelaware in 1999.
Salem Communications Holding Corporation (“Saleniditey”) was formed as a wholly-owned subsidiarySaflem
Communications Corporation in May 2000. In May 2088lem Communications Corporation formed an aatukti wholly-owned
subsidiary, Salem Communications Acquisition Cogpion (“AcquisitionCo”), which has since acquiredenradio stations through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, SCA License Corporatith August 2000, Salem Communications Corporadissigned substantially
all of its assets and liabilities (other than sto€alem Holding and AcquisitionCo) to Salem Hotlyli

In June 2001, Salem Holding effected a dividen8atem Communications Corporation of Salem Holdimgiblishing and
Internet businesses. This transaction was effeadeaidividend of the capital stock and memberstigrésts, respectively, of Salem
Holding’s wholly-owned subsidiaries CCM Communica, Inc. (“CCM”) and OnePlace, LLC (“OnePlace”f A result, CCM and
OnePlace became direct subsidiaries of Salem Coieations Corporation. Subsequently, the membeiisitgpests of OnePlace
were contributed to SCA License Corporation, an@Race became an indirect subsidiary of Salem

DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we coepliie following acquisitions and purchases:

Acquisition Date Description Total Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
March 31, 2009 WAMD-AM, Aberdeen, Maryland $ 227
March 31, 2009 License upgrade for WNYM-AM, New York, NY 2,498
July 24, 2009 WZAB-AM, Miami, Florida 1,020
$ 3,745

RADIO STATIONS

Upon the close of all announced transactions, vileowin and/or operate a national portfolio of 9dimastations in 37 markets,
consisting of 27 FM stations and 67 AM stationdie Tollowing table sets forth information aboutlead Salem’s stations, in order
of market size:

MSA Station Year
Market(1) Rank(2) Call Letters Acquired Format

New York, NY 1,17(3) WMCA-AM 1989 Christian Teaching and Talk
WNYM-AM 1994 News Talk

Los Angeles, CA 2 KKLA-FM 1985 Christian Teaching and Talk
KRLA-AM 1998 News Talk
KFSH-FM 2000 Contemporary Christian Music
KXMX-AM 2000 Ethnic Brokered Programming

Chicago, IL 3 WYLL-AM 2001 Christian Teaching and Talk
WIND-AM 2005 News Talk

San Francisco, CA 4, 34(4) KFAX-AM 1984 Christian Teaching and Talk
KDOW-AM 2001 News Talk

Dallas-Fort Worth, TX 5 KLTY-FM 1996 Contemporathristian Music
KWRD-FM 2000 Christian Teaching and Talk
KSKY-AM 2000 News Talk

Houston-Galveston, TX 6 KNTH-AM 1995 News Talk
KKHT-FM 2005 Christian Teaching and Talk
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Atlanta, GA

Philadelphia, PA
Washington, D.C.

Boston, MA

Detroit, Ml

Miami, FL

Seattle-Tacoma, WA

Phoenix, AZ

Minneapolis-St. Paul, MN

San Diego, CA

Tampa, FL

Denver-Boulder, CO

Portland, OR

Pittsburgh, PA

Riverside-San Bernardino, CA
Sacramento, CA

Cleveland, OH

San Antonio, TX

Orlando, FL

Columbus, OH
Nashville, TN

Louisville, KY

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

18

19

22

24

25
26

28

30

33

36
43

53

WNIV-AM
WLTA-AM
WAFS-AM
WFSH-FM
WGKA-AM
WFIL-AM
WNTP-AM
WAVA-FM
WAVA-AM
WEZE-AM
WROL-AM
WWDJ-AM
WDTK-AM
WLQV-AM
WKAT-AM
WMCU-AM
WZAB-AM
KGNW-AM
KLFE-AM (5)
KNTS-AM(5)
KKMO-AM
KKOL-AM
KKNT-AM
KPXQ-AM
KKMS-AM
KYCR-AM
WWTC-AM
KPRZ-AM
KCBQ-AM
WTWD-AM(6)
WTBN-AM(6)
WGUL-AM
KRKS-FM
KRKS-AM (7)
KNUS-AM
KBJID-AM(7)
KPDQ-FM
KPDQ-AM
KFIS-FM
KRYP-FM
WORD-FM
WPIT-AM
KTIE-AM
KFIA-AM
KTKZ-AM
KSAC-FM
KKFS-FM
WHKW-AM
WFHM-FM
WHK-AM
KSLR-AM
KLUP-AM
WORL-AM
WTLN-AM
WHIM-AM
WRFD-AM
WBOZ-FM
WFFH-FM(8)
WFFI-FM(8)
WFIA-FM

2000
2000
2000
2000
2004
1993
1994
1992
2000
1997
2001
2003
2004
2006
2005
2008
2009
1986
1994
1997
1998
1999
1996
1999
1996
1998
2001
1987
2000
2000
2001
2005
1993
1994
1996
1999
1986
1986
2002
2005
1993
1993
2001
1995
1997
2002
2006
2000
2001
2005
1994
2000
2006
2006
2006
1987
2000
2002
2002
1999

Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Spanish Christian Teaching and Talk
Contemporary Christian Music
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Spanish Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Spanish Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Business
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Spanish Christian Teaching antkTa
Regional Mexican
News Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Spanish Christian Teaching antkTa
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Contemporary Christian Music
Regional Mexican
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
Spanish Christian Teaching and Talk
Contemporary Christian Music
Christian Teaching and Talk
Contemporary Christian Music
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
News Talk
News Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching and Talk
Christian Teaching diatk
Southern Gospel
Contemporary Christian Music
Contemporary Christian Music
Christian Teaching and Talk



WGTK-AM 2000 News Talk

WFIA-AM 2001 Christian Teaching and Talk
Honolulu, HI 63 KHNR-AM 2006 News Talk
KAIM-FM 2000 Contemporary Christian Music
KGU-AM 2000 Christian Teaching and Talk
KHCM-FM 2004 Country Music
KHCM-AM 2000 News Talk
KHUI-FM 2004 Adult Standards
KKOL-FM
(formerly KGMZ-
FM) 2005 Oldies
Omaha, NE 71 KGBI-FM 2005 Contemporary Christian Music
KOTK-AM 2005 Spanish Christian Teaching and Talk
KCRO-AM 2005 Christian Teaching and Talk
Sarasota-Bradenton, FL 72 WLSS-AM 2005 News Talk
Colorado Springs, CO 92 KGFT-FM 1996 Christian Teaching and Talk
KBIQ-FM 1996 Contemporary Christian Music
KZNT-AM 2003 News Talk
Oxnard-Ventura, CA 117 KDAR-FM 1974 Christian Teaching and Talk
Youngstown-Warren, OH 125 WHKZ-AM 2001 Christian Teaching and Talk
Aberdeen, MD NR WAMD-AM (9) 2009 Silent

(1) Actual city of license may differ from metrojtah market served.

(2) “MSA” means metropolitan statistical area ger Fall 2009 Radio Market Survey Schedule and Roipul Rankings published
by Arbitron, excluding the Commonwealth of Pueriod?

(3) This market includes the Nassau-Suffolk, NY tMeharket, which independently has a MSA rank of 17

(4) This market includes the San Jose, CA markkizmindependently has a MSA rank of 34.

(5) KNTS-AM is an expanded band AM station paired VKItFE-AM. The licenses for these stations includmoadition
requiring that one or the other be surrendereduby1b, 2009. However, the Federal Communicati@asmmission (“FCC") is
currently permitting these paired expanded banibstato continue to operate beyond the specifigteader date, pursuant to
a special temporary authority (STA) granted byRXC and a request for extension of that STA.

(6) WTBN-AM is simulcast with WTWD-AM, Tampa, FL.

(7) KBJD-AM is an expanded band AM station pairathi(RKS-AM, which licenses have not been renewgdhe FCC. The
original license for KBJD-AM includes a conditioaquiring that one or the other paired license beeadered by February 20,
2006. However, the FCC is currently permittingséa@aired expanded band stations to continue t@tgpkeyond their license
expirations date pursuant to the pending licensewal applications for those stations, and to cmetito operate beyond the
specified surrender date pursuant to an STA gramydtie FCC and a request for extension of that.STA

(8) WFFH-FM is simulcast with WFFI-FM, NashvilleNT

(99 WAMD-AM was silent as of December 2009.

PROGRAM REVENUEFor the year ended December 31, 2009, we def2e8¥6 and 18.2% of our net broadcast revenue, or
$38.8 million and $31.3 million, respectively, frdhe sale of nationally syndicated and local blpotgram time. We derive
nationally syndicated program revenue from a pnognang customer base consisting primarily of geobiegdly diverse, well-
established non-profit religious and educationghaizations that purchase time on stations ingelaumber of markets in the
United States. Nationally syndicated program poedsi typically purchase 13, 26 or 52-minute blamk® Monday through Friday
basis and may offer supplemental programming farkead release. We obtain local program revenue d@mmunity
organizations and churches that typically purchisse primarily for weekend release and from logaakers who purchase daily
releases. We believe our management has beersstudda identifying and assisting quality locabgrams expand into national
syndication.

ADVERTISING REVENUEFor the year ended December 31, 2009, we de88%e@P6 of our net broadcast revenue, or $61.6
million, from the sale of local spot advertisingdan4% of our net broadcast revenue, or $12.6anillfrom the sale of national spot
advertising.

SALEM RADIO NETWORK® AND SALEM MEDIA REPRESENTATIVES ™

We own and operate Salem Radio Network (“SRN")a$ pf our overall business strategy to developtaéonal network of
affiliated radio stations anchored by our owned aepeérated radio stations in major markets. SRN¢hvis headquartered in Dallas,
Texas, develops, produces and syndicates a braogd od programming specifically targeted to Chaistand family-themed talk and

9



music stations as well as general market News Stations. Currently, we have rights to severditfale satellite channels to deliver
SRN programs to affiliates via satellite.

SRN has approximately 2,000 affiliate stationsadidlition to our owned and operated stations, whidkadcast one or more of
the offered programming options. These programnoigons feature talk shows, news and music. Theipal source of network
revenue is from the sale of advertising time.

We own and operate Salem Media RepresentativesR*yMormerly called Salem Radio RepresentativedRR"), a sales
representation company specializing in placingamati advertising on religious format radio statiol RN and our radio stations
each have relationships with SMR for the sale @filable SRN spot advertising. SMR also contraétk imdividual radio stations to
sell airtime to national advertisers desiring tclude selected company stations in national buyerieg multiple markets. In 2005,
we established Vista Media Representatives (“VMRS)merly Vista Radio Representatives (“VRR”), éesarepresentation
company specializing in placing national advertisim non-religious radio stations.

We recognize our advertising and commission revémumne radio stations as the spots are aired. SRBtsevenue, including
commission revenue for SMR and VMR, for the yeateghDecember 31, 2009 was $15.2 million, or 8.9%etforoadcast revenue.

NON-BROADCAST MEDIA

Salem Web Network™ and Townhall®.coWle recognize our Internet related revenues basekeodelivery of online
impressions or based on the length of time of theedisement placement. Revenues from the salpsodiicts and services are
recognized when the products are shipped or wteesdtvices are rendered. Total Internet revengfyding SWN and
Townhall.com, for the year ended December 31, 2¢89$15.9 million, or 8.0% of total revenue.

Salem Publishing™.We recognize advertising revenue from our magazsdbfe publications are issued. Subscription
revenues are recognized over the life of the siftsmn. Revenues from book sales on Xulon Presserognized when shipment
occurs. For the year ended December 31, 2009uhlishing businesses generated revenues of $1illiGwnor 5.7% of total
revenue.

COMPETITION

RADIO. The radio broadcasting industry, including thgmsent of this industry that focuses on Christiad tamily themes, is a
highly competitive business. The financial sucedssach of our radio stations that focuses on @arisTeaching and Talk is
dependent, to a significant degree, upon its ghititgenerate revenue from the sale of block progime to national and local
religious and educational organizations. We comfuetéhis program revenue with a number of différemmmercial and
noncommercial radio station licensees. While nomential group owner in the United States speciadizn Christian and family-
themed programming approaches Salem in size ofhfiaktdéistening audience and presence in major etarlother religious radio
stations exist and enjoy varying degrees of proniaeand success in all markets.

We also compete for revenue in the advertising etaslith other commercial religious format and gahésrmat radio station
licensees. We compete in the advertising markét moin-broadcast media as well, including broadiedsvision, cable television,
newspapers, magazines, direct mail, Internet atiwbbard advertising, some of which may be contly horizontally-integrated
companies. Several factors can materially impagtpetitive advantage, including audience ratinggsg@am content, management
talent and expertise, sales talent and experiengbence characteristics, signal strength, anditiheéber and characteristics of other
radio stations in the same market.

Competition also comes from new media technologresservices. These include delivery of audio agning by cable
television and satellite systems, digital audiaoagrvices, mobile telephony including smart phapplications for iPhone,
Blackberry and Droid, personal communications s&wviand the service of low powered, limited coveraiyl radio stations
authorized by the FCC. Digital audio broadcastirigdeliver multi-format digital radio services Isatellite to national and regional
audiences. The quality of programming deliveredligytal audio broadcasting would be equivalentdmpact disc. The delivery of
live and stored audio programming through the heehas also created new competition. In addigatellite delivered digital audio
radio, which deliver multiple audio programmingrfaats to local and national audiences, has creategetition. We have attempted
to address these existing and potential competitineats through a more active strategy to acquitkintegrate new electronic
communications formats including Internet acquisii made by SWN and our exclusive arrangementoeiger Christian and
family-themed talk on Sirius XM, a satellite digitaudio radio service.
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NETWORKSalem Radio Network® competes with other commeraidio networks that offer news and talk programgrtio
religious and general format stations and othecanmmercial networks that offer Christian music fatsa SRN also competes with
other radio networks for the services of talk shamssonalities.

NON-BROADCAST MEDIAOur magazines compete for readers and advertiséir®ther publications that follow the Christian
music industry and publications that address theshe@gerest to church leadership and the Chrisdiagience. Xulon Press competes
for authors with other on-demand publishers andro@hristian book publishers. Our Internet busiresmpetes for visitors and
advertisers with other companies that deliver ap-hudio programming and Christian and conservaitegnet content as well as
providers of general market Internet sites.

FEDERAL REGULATION OF RADIO BROADCASTING

Introduction. The ownership, operation and sale of broadcasbas, including those licensed to Salem, areesatp the
jurisdiction of the FCC, which acts under authodgrived from The Communications Act of 1934, agaded, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder (the “CommuianatAct”). Among other things, the FCC assigns|frency bands for
broadcasting; determines whether to approve cectanges in ownership or control of station licensegulates transmission
facilities, including power employed, antenna amadr heights, and location of transmission fae$itiadopts and implements
regulations and policies that directly or indirgciffect the ownership, operation and employmeatiices of stations; and has the
power to impose penalties for violations of itsesilinder the Communications Act.

The following is a brief summary of certain prowiss of the Communications Act and of specific FE@ulations and policies.
Failure to observe these or other rules and pslicéa result in the imposition of various sanctjonsluding monetary forfeitures, the
grant of “short” (less than the maximum) licenseen@al terms or, for particularly egregious violagpthe denial of a license renewal
application, the revocation of a license or theiglesf FCC consent to acquire additional broadpagperties. For further information
concerning the nature and extent of federal reguiaif broadcast stations you should refer to tben@unications Act, FCC rules
and the public notices and rulings of the FCC.

License Grant and RenewaRadio broadcast licenses are granted for maxiteums of eight years. Licenses must be renewed
through an application to the FCC. Under the Conications Act, the FCC will renew a broadcast lieeifst finds that the station
has served the public interest, convenience anesséy, that there have been no serious violatigrttie licensee of the
Communications Act or the rules and regulationthefFCC, and that there have been no other violsity the licensee of the
Communications Act or the rules and regulationthefFCC that, when taken together, would constayattern of abuse.

Petitions to deny license renewals can be filedéain interested parties, including members efgiblic in a station’s market.
Such petitions may raise various issues befor&@@. The FCC is required to hold hearings on rehapglications if the FCC is
unable to determine that renewal of a license wealde the public interest, convenience and ndgessiif a petition to deny raises
a “substantial and material question of fact” awhether the grant of the renewal application wdidgrima facieinconsistent with
the public interest, convenience and necessityo, Alaring certain periods when a renewal applicagending, the transferability
of the applicant’s license is restricted. Licensaeawal applications filed in December 2004 aresnty pending for two of our
stations, KBJD(AM) and KRKS(AM) due to those stasboperation as “expanded band” AM stations. Exéepthese two stations,
we are not currently aware of any facts that wquikelsent the timely renewal of our licenses to ofeeoar radio stations, although
there can be no assurance that our licenses wihewved.

Ownership Matters The Communications Act prohibits the assignmét loroadcast license or the transfer of contra of
broadcast license without the prior approval of FEC. In determining whether to assign, transfeangor renew a broadcast license,
the FCC considers a number of factors pertainirthedicensee, including compliance with variougsuimiting common ownership
of media properties, the “character” of the licenaad those persons holding “attributable” interés¢rein, and compliance with the
Communications Act’s limitation on alien ownershis, well as compliance with other FCC policies|udig equal employment
opportunity requirements.

Under the Communications Act, a broadcast licenag mot be granted to or held by a corporation iagtmore than one-fifth of
its capital stock owned or voted by aliens or thepresentatives, by foreign governments or thegirgsentatives, or by non-U.S.
corporations. Under the Communications Act, a bcaatllicense also may not be granted to or helahyycorporation that is
controlled, directly or indirectly, by any otherrporation more than one-fourth of whose capitatisis owned or voted by aliens or
their representatives, by foreign governments eir trepresentatives, or by non-U.S. corporatiom®@sE restrictions apply in
modified form to other forms of business organwmadi, including partnerships. We therefore may B&ioted from having more than
one-fourth of our stock owned or voted by alienseign governments or non-U.S. corporations.
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Multiple Ownership The Communications Act and FCC rules also geherastrict the common ownership, operation or oaint
of radio broadcast stations serving the same Imeaket, of a radio broadcast station and a telewibroadcast station serving the
same local market, and of a radio broadcast statioina daily newspaper serving the same local rharke FCC also restricts the
number of television stations an entity may owrhtintlocal markets and nationwide.

Our current ownership of radio broadcast statimmaplies with the FCC’s multiple ownership rulesiever, these rules may
limit the number of additional stations that we naaguire in the future in certain of our marketd anuld limit the potential buyers
of any stations we may attempt to sell. The FC&lse required by the Communications Act to revitsabroadcast ownership rules
every four years. The next such review must oac@0i10, and as part of that proceeding the FCCagajn adopt changes to its
ownership rules. Previous attempts by the FCC tdifyndts ownership rules in 2003 and in 2008 alswédresulted in court
challenges, which remain pending. Any changesédathinership rules could impact our existing ownigrsis well as our ability to
acquire additional stations or sell existing stagio

Attribution: Because of these multiple and cross-ownershasral purchaser of voting stock of the companyabaqtires an
“attributable” interest in the company may viol#te FCC'’s rule if it also has an attributable iatrin other television or radio
stations, or in daily newspapers, depending omtimber and location of those radio or televisi@tishs or daily newspapers. Such
a purchaser also may be restricted in the othepeoigs in which it may invest, to the extent thaise investments give rise to an
attributable interest. If an attributable stocklesldf the company violates any of these ownerdligsr the company may be unable
to obtain from the FCC one or more authorizatiomsded to conduct its radio station business andhmaynable to obtain FCC
consents for certain future acquisitions.

The FCC generally applies its television/radio/neayger cross-ownership rules and its broadcast preitbwnership rules by
considering the “attributable,” or cognizable, netgts held by a person or entity. A person orptan have an interest in a radio
station, television station or daily newspaper bing an officer, director, partner, member, or ktmdder of a company that owns
that station or newspaper. Whether that interesbgmizable under the FCC’s ownership rules isrd@teed by the FCC'’s attribution
rules. If an interest is attributable, the FCCtsdhe person or entity who holds that interestra®owner” of the radio station,
television station or daily newspaper in questanmy therefore subject to the FCC’s ownership rules.

Any officers and directors of a broadcast licenseb)e system owner, or daily newspaper owner eeengd to hold attributable
interests in that entity. Generally, the officensl @irectors of any parent company that holds &ibatable interest are themselves
also deemed to hold the same attributable inteesstisat company. In certain situations where argarompany is involved in
businesses other than broadcasting, cable systeratam, or newspaper publishing, and an individiffiter or director has duties
and responsibilities wholly unrelated to the compsibroadcast, cable, or newspaper activities, dffater or director may avoid
attribution, but will need to submit a statementite FCC documenting their lack of involvementhe televant businesses.

Generally, debt interests held in a broadcast $ieencable system owner, daily newspaper publishg@arent company are not
deemed to be attributable. Debt holders will bgestttio attribution, however, where the aggregatee of the equity and debt held
in the broadcast, cable, or newspaper company dx@2% of that company'’s total asset valudthe debt holder also holds another
attributable interest in the relevant mar&ethe debt holder supplies over 15% of the programnn a weekly basis, for the station
in which the interest is held.

Programming and OperationThe Communications Act requires broadcastersteesthe “public interest.” The FCC has
gradually relaxed or eliminated many of the monerfalized procedures it had developed in the pagtdmote the broadcast of
certain types of programming responsive to the si@fa station’s community of license. Althoughrétent years proposals have
been put forth by the FCC to reinstitute certaimal procedures, none of these proposals haveegst &dopted for radio stations.
Licensees continue to be required, however, togmtgzrogramming that is responsive to communityplanms, needs and interests
and to maintain certain records demonstrating sesponsiveness. Complaints from listeners concgraistation’s programming
will be considered by the FCC when it evaluateditemsee’s renewal application, but such comptainéy be filed and considered
at any time.

Stations also must pay annual regulatory fees easl dssociated with the filing of most applicati@tations also must follow
various FCC rules that regulate, among other thipghtical advertising, advertising for certairogucts or services (e.g. tobacco
advertising), the broadcast of obscene or indgmexgramming, closed captioning, emergency progrargnsponsorship
identification and technical operations (includiimgits on radio frequency radiation) and equal esgpient opportunity
requirements. The broadcast of contests and lestésiregulated by FCC rules.
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Failure to observe these or other rules and pslicéa result in the imposition of various sanctionsluding monetary
forfeitures, the grant of “short” (less than theximaum) renewal terms or, for particularly egregisimations, the denial of a license
renewal application or the revocation of a license.

Proposed Change#s noted above, the FCC in 2010 must reviewrtaticast ownership rules. The FCC in November 2009
commenced this proceeding by holding a series bfipworkshops, but has not yet announced any megahanges to its rules. We
can make no determination as to what effect, if #mg proposed rulemaking will have on Salem. Toagress and the FCC from
time to time have under consideration, and mapénftiture consider and adopt, new laws, regulatomspolicies regarding a wide
variety of matters that could, directly or indidgctaffect the operation, ownership and profitapitf the Company’s radio stations,
result in the loss of audience share and revenugéocompany’s radio stations, and affect theitgholf the Company to acquire
additional radio stations or finance such acquisgi Such matters under consideration include,ayr come to include:

* proposals to require broadcast licensees to besadpecific types and amounts of local progrargmin

* proposals restricting the location of broadcasiss;

« technical and frequency allocation matters, iditig potential reallocation of broadcast spectrarather uses;
» changes in multiple ownership and cross-ownersligs;

« changes to broadcast technical requirements; and

* proposals to require broadcasters to pay copyriglalties for over-the-air performance of souadardings.

The foregoing summary of certain provisions of @@mmunications Act and of specific FCC rules anlicpes does not purport
to be comprehensive. For further information contgy the nature and extent of federal regulatioradfo broadcast stations you
should refer to the Communications Act, the FCQlss and the public notices and rulings of the FCC.

Federal Antitrust ConsiderationsThe FTC and the DOJ, which evaluate transactiotetermine whether those transactions
should be challenged under the federal antitrwes lare also active in their review of radio statiequisitions, particularly where an
operator proposes to acquire additional stationts iexisting markets.

For an acquisition meeting certain size threshdtdsHart-Scott-Rodino Improvements Act (“HSR Actid the rules
promulgated thereunder require the parties td\fdéfication and Report Forms with the FTC and B@J and to observe specified
waiting period requirements before consummatingattguisition. At any time before or after the cansuation of a proposed
acquisition, the FTC or the DOJ could take sucloaainder the antitrust laws as it deems necessaigsirable in the public
interest, including seeking to enjoin the acquasitor seeking divestiture of the business acquireather assets of the company.
Acquisitions that are not required to be reportedar the HSR Act may be investigated by the FT@eiDOJ under the antitrust
laws before or after consummation. In additionygie parties may under certain circumstances leigal action to challenge an
acquisition under the antitrust laws. The DOJ als® stated publicly that it believes that LMAs aticer similar agreements
customarily entered into in connection with radiatisn transfers prior to the expiration of the tivag period under the HSR Act
could violate the HSR Act.

Although we do not believe that our acquisitiorattgy as a whole will be adversely affected in muagerial respect by antitrust
review, we cannot be sure that this will be theecas

SEGMENTS

We have one reportable operating segment—radio bastidg. The remaining non-reportable segmentsisoof our Internet
businesses, SWN, Townhall.com, and Salem ConsuméeuBts and our publishing businesses, Salem Pitdisand Xulon Press,
which do not meet the reportable segment quamitaktiresholds and accordingly are aggregated batomon-broadcast. The radio
broadcasting segment also operates various ratimries. We present our segment operating resulioie 16.

EMPLOYEES

On February 28, 2010, Salem employed 1,047 fuletand 371 part-time employees. None of Salem’s @yapk are covered by
collective bargaining agreements, and we consideralations with our employees to be good.
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INTERNET ADDRESS AND INTERNET ACCESS TO SEC REPORTS

Our Internet address is www.salem.cc. You mayinhkitaough our Internet website, free of chargeies of our annual reports
filed on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10eQ¢rent reports on Form 8-K, and any amendmentsase reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934. These repodsuailable as soon as reasonably
practical after we electronically file them or figh them to the SEC. Our website and the inforomationtained therein or connected
thereto shall not be deemed to be incorporatedtimsa-orm 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING SALEM

We may choose not to pursue potentially more pidfie business opportunities outside of our Christjaconservative news talk
and family-themed formats, or not to broadcast pragiming that violates our programming standardsttegr of which may have
a material adverse effect on our business.

We are fundamentally committed to broadcastingrhwt and publishing formats and programming enipimgsChristian,
conservative news talk and family themes. We maypsé not to switch to other formats or pursue gy more profitable
business opportunities in response to changingeaadipreferences. We do not intend to pursue lassgportunities or broadcast
programming that would conflict with our core conimént to Christian and family themes formats ot thauld violate our
programming standards, even if such opportunitiggreagramming would be more profitable. Our decisiot to pursue other
formats or broadcast programming inconsistent sithprogramming standards might result in lowerrafieg revenues and profits
than we might otherwise achieve.

We may be adversely affected by a continued detation in economic conditions.

The risks associated with our businesses become ataite in periods of a slowing economy or recessithich may be
accompanied by a decrease in advertising. A detilitiee level of business activity of our adventiseould have an adverse effect on
our revenues and profit margins. During economogvdbowns in the United States, many advertisers hedeced their advertising
expenditures. The impact of slowdowns on our bissing difficult to predict, but they may resultreductions in purchases of
advertising.

Domestic radio revenues continue to decline. Webelthis is primarily the result of the struggliogited States economy and
corresponding reductions in discretionary adverntjisipending by our customers. Beginning in July72@@r advertising revenue has
been negatively impacted by declining advertisiogrf our customers, particularly in the financialvsges and auto industries. The
decline in advertising revenue impacts both ouatioasting segment and non-broadcasting segmengéxpéet this trend to continue
for as long as the United States economy is weakgkier, we cannot quantify the financial impactoaoin future operating results. In
response to these economic challenges, we haisgexitseveral cost reduction strategies including€ducing headcount by
approximately 15%, (2) temporarily suspending tloenBany match on 401(k) contributions as of July&8) temporarily
suspending the management bonus program, (4)dignitapital expenditures, (5) reducing the basesé&da all employees by 5% as
of February 1, 2009 with certain members of exeeuthanagement reduced by 10%, (6) requiring allleyegs to use accrued
vacation balances by March 31, 2009, (7) offerimgentives to employees to use accrued vacatiomdxdaas of December 31, 2009
and (8) consolidating programming on most of ount&mporary Christian Music stations. We contirueudrsue opportunities to
sell assets, particularly stations that are in sivategic formats or are underperforming. We caasetire you that our cost reduction
initiatives or asset sales will be sufficient téset any decline in our business.

This period of economic uncertainty increases aposure to several risks, including but not limited

* Increasing pressure to sell advertising and bolgramming time at discounted rates;

* Increases in the length of time to collect reables and higher risks that the accounts becomalantible as our
customers face tight credit markets;

e Ministries are experiencing lower levels of daoas that could negatively impact their abilityporchase and pay for
block programming time;

* We may not be able to find suitable replacemémtsinistries that can no longer purchase andfpailock
programming,

< Limiting our ability to obtain additional finanaj to fund working capital, capital expendituresgusitions and other
corporate requirements;

« Limiting our ability to purse projects that codidve been beneficial; and
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« Impairment losses on the value of our indefitiiked intangible assets including FCC broadcasrises, goodwill, and
mastheads and impairment losses on other long-tgedts.

We must respond to the rapid changes in technolaggrvices and standards of our industry in order to
remain competitive.

The radio broadcast industry is subject to rapithtelogical change, evolving industry standardstarcemergence of
competition from new media technologies and sesvifée cannot assure you that we will have the ressuo acquire new
technologies or to introduce new services thatdoompete with these new technologies. Various media technologies and
services are being developed or introduced, inntydi

« Satellite-delivered digital audio radio serviedich has resulted in the introduction of new subse-based satellite
radio services with numerous niche formats;

e Audio programming by cable systems, direct-breatisatellite systems, personal communicationgssstcontent
available over the Internet and other digital austisadcast formats;

* In-band on-channel digital radio, which provideslti-channel, multi-format digital radio servicesthe same bandwidth
currently occupied by traditional AM and FM radiergices;

e Low-power FM radio, which could result in addiied FM radio broadcast outlets;
*  Mobile telephony;

« High definition radio; and

* iPod or similar devices.

We currently program one channel on XM SatelliteliRaWe also offer pod-casts and downloads of postiof our
programming; however, we cannot assure you thatatiangement will continue, will be successfutéoable us to adapt effectively
to these new media technologies. We cannot préthatffect, if any, that competition arising fro@wtechnologies or regulatory
change may have on the radio broadcast industop aur financial condition and results
of operations.

The accounting treatment of goodwill and indefind&sed intangible assets could cause future losdeg to asset impairment

Under FASB ASC Topic 350 “Intangibles—Goodwill anthér,” indefinite-lived intangibles, including brdeast licenses,
goodwill and mastheads are not amortized but idstea tested for impairment at least annually, orenfrequently if events or
circumstances indicate that there may be an imgaitnimpairment is measured as the excess of tingirog value of the indefinite-
lived intangible asset over its fair value. Intdrigiassets that have finite useful lives contirulea amortized over their useful lives
and are measured for impairment if events or cigtances indicate that they may be impaired. Impaitrfosses are recorded as
operating expenses.

We have incurred significant impairment losses wétfpard to our broadcast indefinite-lived intangibbsets. These losses are
attributable to the following variables as the migndrivers used in our assumptions that lead taropairment of broadcast licenses
and goodwill balances (1) an increase in the weigjlatverage cost of capital from 8.0% as of thénggteriod ended December 31,
2007 to 9.5% for the testing period ended DecerBheR009, (2) a decline in the estimated termimaat values assigned to the
licenses as a result of industry wide declinesdia station transaction multiples, (3) a decréagzojected future cash flows from a
range of 2.0% to 3.5% for the testing period endedember 31, 2007 to a range of 1.0% to 2.5% ftdkting period ended
December 31, 2009, and (4) a significant declingrajected revenues from up to a 12.6% increaseqtes at the end of 2007 for
the 2009 year to a 3.0% decline at the end of 2002010, followed by up to a 2.5% projected ingea& 2011 as compared to 2010

We have also incurred significant impairment lossék regard to our non-broadcast indefinite-livethngible assets. These
losses were incurred as a result of our interimaiimmpent testing for the period ended June 30, 2088re was no impairment as of
the interim testing period ended September 30, 20@8e annual testing period ended December 319.2The losses were
attributable to the following variables as the migndrivers used in our assumptions that lead taropairment of mastheads and
goodwill balances: (1) an increase in the weiglateerage cost of capital from 8.0% as of the tegieripd ended December 31, 2007
to 9.0% for the interim testing period ended Judg2B09, (2) a decline in the estimated terminahat values assigned to the assets
as a result of industry wide declines in the tataihber of magazines sold, (3) a decrease in pegjdature cash flows from 2.9% for
the testing period ended December 31, 2007 to 200%he interim testing period ended June 30, 2@0@, (4) a significant decline in
projected profit margins from a range of 3.0% td020 as of the December 31, 2007 testing periodrémge of 0.5% to 6.0% as of
the June 30, 2009 interim testing period.

The valuation of intangible assets is subjective laased on estimates rather than precise caloudatibactual future results are
not consistent with the assumptions and estimated, we may be exposed to impairment charges ifuthee, the amount of which
may be material. The fair value measurements foiralefinite-lived intangible assets use significanobservable inputs which
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reflect our own assumptions about the estimatasthaket participants would use in measuring falue including assumptions
about risk.

Given the current economic environment and unagiéa surrounding the potential negative impacbonbusiness, there can
be no assurance that our estimates and assumpdigersling the duration of the ongoing economic down or the period and
strength of recovery, made for the purpose of ndefinite-lived intangible fair value estimatesIvgitove to be accurate.

If actual future results are not consistent with éissumptions and estimates used, we may be eximosepairment charges in
the future, the amount of which may be materiakddunt rate assumptions are based on an assegsfttantisk inherent in the
future cash flows of the respective market clusae reporting units.

The impairment charges recognized to date are ash-m nature and did not result in a violatiomof then existing credit
facilities or Revolver. However, the potential afudre impairment charges can be viewed as a neggtivor with regard to
forecasted future performance and cash flows. Weugethat we have adequately considered the ecimndomvnturn in our
valuation models and do not believe that the immpaits in and of themselves are a liquidity risk.

We may be unable to integrate the operations anchaigement of acquired stations or businesses, widobld have a material
adverse effect on our business and operating result

Since January 1, 2009, we have acquired two radimas. During 2008, we acquired one radio stadiot two Internet
businesses. We expect to make acquisitions of staons and related non-broadcast businessas ifuture. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to successfullyghatie the operations or management of acquireibissaénd businesses and realize
anticipated revenue synergies, or the operatiomsamagement of stations and businesses that negtduired in the future.
Continued acquisitions of stations will requiretoisnanage a larger and likely more geographicallgrde radio station and non-
broadcast portfolio than historically has beendhse. Our inability to integrate and manage newfyuaed stations or non-broadcast
businesses successfully could have a material seleffect on our business and operating results.

If we are unable to implement our cluster strategye may not realize anticipated operating efficiées

As part of our operating strategy, we attempt tdize efficiencies in operating costs and crosirggbdf advertising by
clustering the operations of two or more radioistat in a single market. However, there can bessorance that this operating
strategy will be successful. Furthermore, we ca@asstire you that the clustering of radio stationsnie market will not result in
downward pressure on advertising rates at one oe wfdthe existing or new radio stations within thester. There can be no
assurance that any of our stations will be ablmamtain or increase its current listening audisrened operating revenue in
circumstances where we implement our clusteriregesty.

Additionally, FCC rules and policies allow a broadter to own a number of radio stations in a givenket and permit, within
limits, joint arrangements with other stations imarket relating to programming, advertising saled station operations. We believe
that radio stations that elect to take advantaghesfe clustering opportunities may, in certainwinstances, have lower operating
costs and may be able to offer advertisers moracditte rates and services. The future developwieotr business in new markets,
as well as the maintenance of our business grawtimoise markets in which we do not currently hadia station clusters, may be
negatively impacted by competitors who are takinghay take advantage of these clustering opporégnity operating multiple
radio stations within markets.

The restrictions on ownership of multiple statiois each market may prevent us from implementing our
cluster strategy.

As part of our growth strategy, we seek to acqadeitional radio stations in markets in which weatly have existing
stations. However, our ability to acquire, opeiatd integrate any such future acquisitions asgiatcluster is limited by antitrust
laws, the Communications Act, FCC regulations ath@oapplicable laws and regulations. Changes yméthese laws or
regulations may affect our ability to acquire addliail stations in radio markets where we alreadg owe or more radio stations. In
1996, Congress passed legislation that requireB@&to periodically conduct reviews of its regigdas, including ones that govern
the maximum number of radio stations an entity imapm or have joint arrangements with relating togpaonming, advertising sales
and station operations (the “Ownership Limits”).€TRCC has adopted radio multiple ownership rulesdepend upon the total
number of radio stations located in the marketatedmining the applicable Ownership Limits. In 208% FCC modified its
definition of the term “market” and its method a@ftdrmining the number of radio stations located fmarket.” Specifically, in
larger markets the FCC replaced its “signal contoathod” of defining a market and determining thenber of radio stations
located in the market with the use of “geographarkats” delineated by The Arbitron Company (“Arbitf), which is a commercial
ratings service, as reported in the BIA databaseskaller radio markets for which Arbitron has detineated a geographic market,
the “signal contour method” continues to be thehodtof defining the market and determining the nendj radio stations in the
market. The methods the FCC uses to define maakietst the number of radio stations an entity may or have joint arrangements
with relating to programming, advertising sales atation operations in areas adjacent to a debdeatbitron market. In 2010, the
FCC will be opening a new phase of rulemaking camog its broadcast ownership rules. The FCC wllspublic comments on the

16



existing rules, including arguments and factuahdat their impact on competition, localism, andetisity and is planning to hold
public meetings around the country on the issumedia ownership rules.

We cannot predict the impact of possible modifmadi to the FCC’s local radio multiple ownershipesibn our business
operations. Likewise, we cannot predict whetherehill be a change in the antitrust laws, Commatiéns Act or other laws
governing the ownership or operation of radio st&j or whether the FCC, Department of Justice )©r Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC”) will modify their regulations drpolicies governing or affecting the acquisitidradditional radio stations in a
market. In addition, we cannot predict whetheriggte party will challenge acquisitions we proposéhe future. These events could
adversely affect our ability to implement our clrsacquisition strategy.

Government regulation of the broadcasting industey the FTC, DOJ and FCC may limit our ability to gaire or dispose of radio
stations and enter into certain agreements.

The Communications Act and FCC rules and poliodegiire prior FCC approval for transfers of contrhland assignments of,
FCC broadcast licenses. The FTC and the DOJ eedigatsactions to determine whether those tramsecshould be challenged
under federal antitrust laws. As we have gaineteagnce in a greater number of markets and pegeenfahe top 50 markets, our
future proposed transactions may be subject to fmegeient and aggressive review by the FTC or t8d Due to market
concentration concerns. This increased level dérevnay be accentuated in instances where we pedposngage in a transaction
with parties who themselves have multiple statiortbie relevant market. The FCC might not appropeagposed radio station
acquisition or disposition when the DOJ has exmessarket concentration concerns with respectedtly or sell side of a given
transaction, even if the proposed transaction wothérwise comply with the FCC’s numerical limits in-market ownership. We
cannot be sure that the DOJ or the FTC will nokgegrohibit or require the restructuring of outdre acquisitions or dispositions
on these or other bases.

Were a complaint to be filed against us or othe€CHi€ensees involved in a transaction with us,rophjection to the
transaction itself, the FCC could delay the grdnborefuse to grant, its consent to an assignroetransfer of control of licenses
and effectively prohibit a proposed acquisitiord@position.

As noted in the immediately preceding risk factbe FCC'’s local radio multiple ownership rules lkitiie maximum number of
stations we may own or operate in a market. Thig lingit our ability to make future radio stationcagsitions in certain
markets. Additionally, this may limit our abilitin certain markets, to enter into agreements whewnebprovide programming to or
sell advertising on radio stations that we do nam.dlt could also limit our ability to sell statisrio other entities that already own
stations in some markets.

We may be adversely affected by statutes dealirly imdecency.

On June 15, 2006, the Broadcast Decency Enforcefmardf 2005 that enhances the FCC's enforcemeits afiles
concerning the broadcast of obscene, indecentodame material became law. This legislation insegbthe FCC'’s authority in this
area to impose substantially higher monetary farfeipenalties, up to $325,000 per violation atota of $3,000,000 for any one
incident. While we do not anticipate these incrdgsenalties to impact us as significantly as sofreo competitors given the nature
of our programming, we could face increased casthe form of fines as a result of this legislation

If we fail to maintain our broadcast licenses withe FCC, we would be prevented from operating aféetradio stations.

We operate each of our radio stations pursuanhéooo more FCC broadcast licenses, generally oft gigars’ duration. As
each license expires, we apply for renewal of itense. However, we cannot be sure that any, oficenses will be renewed, and
renewal is subject to challenge by third partietoattenial by the FCC. In evaluating a broadcastise renewal application, the FCC
must grant the renewal if: (1) the station haseethe public interest, convenience and neceg&tyhere have been no serious
violations of the Communications Act or the FCQles; and (3) there have been no other violatiomshy taken together, constitute
a pattern of abuse. If, however, the station failseet these standards, the FCC may deny thecapplh, after notice and an
opportunity for a hearing, or grant the applicationterms and conditions that are appropriateudioly renewal for less than the
maximum term otherwise allowed. The failure to @@y of our licenses would prevent us from opagathe affected station and
generating revenue from it. If the FCC decidesqitbude conditions or qualifications in any of oigehses, we may be limited in the
manner in which we may operate the affected station

Our advertising revenues in certain markets areirggs sensitive and subject to decline based on ageprojections.

Arbitron has developed new technology to colle¢adar its ratings service. The Portable Peopleav®i(PPM™) is a small,
pager-sized device that does not require activdpukation by the end user and is capable of autmalét measuring radio,
television, Internet, satellite radio and sateli@kevision signals that are encoded for the seriicthe broadcaster. The PPM offers a
number of advantages over the traditional diampgatcollection system including ease of use, meliable ratings data and shorter
time periods between when advertising runs and valuelience listening or viewing habits can be reqabrThis service is already in
a number of our markets and is scheduled to bedatred in more markets in the future. In marketer&twe subscribe to Arbitron
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that have switched to PPM, our ratings have besndensistent. It is not yet clear what long-tempact PPM will have on our
financial results.

Capital requirements necessary to implement acdiosis could pose risks.

We face competition from other broadcasting comgmifor acquisition opportunities. If the prices gouby sellers of these
companies were to rise, we may find fewer acceptabguisition opportunities. In addition, the pured price of possible
acquisitions could require additional debt or egfinancing on our part. Since the terms and alsdity of this financing depend to a
large degree upon general economic conditionssirdi parties over which we have no control, we giawe no assurance that we will
obtain the needed financing or that we will obtstich financing on attractive terms. In additiorr, akbility to obtain financing
depends on a number of other factors, many of wéiietalso beyond our control, such as interess eatd national and local
business conditions. If the cost of obtaining neéfiteancing is too high or the terms of such finagcare otherwise unacceptable in
relation to the acquisition opportunity we are preed with, we may decide to forego that opporjudditional indebtedness could
increase our leverage and make us more vulneral@eanomic downturns and may limit our ability tahstand competitive
pressures.

If we are unable to execute our acquisition strateguccessfully, our business may not continue towr

We intend to continue to selectively acquire rastations and complementary non-broadcast mediadsses. With respect to
the acquisition of radio stations, our acquisitirategy has been, and will continue to focus prilsnan, the acquisition of stations
in the top 50 markets. However, we may not be abidentify and consummate future acquisitions sastully, and stations that we
do acquire may not increase our station operatingme or yield other anticipated benefits. Acqigss in markets in which we
already own stations may not increase our staiaraging income due to saturation of audience ddmaequisitions in smaller
markets may have less potential to increase opgregivenues. With respect to our acquisition siratdf non-broadcast media
businesses, we may not be able to identify andwuongte the acquisition of future non-broadcast médsinesses successfully.
Additionally, we may not be able to effectivelyagrate the operation of newly acquired busines#hsour existing businesses that
could result in reduced operating income from cam-broadcast media businesses. Our failure to ¢éx@euwr acquisition strategy
successfully in the future could limit our abiltty continue to grow in terms of number of stationgrofitability.

Our business is dependent upon the performance @f kmployees, on-air talent and program hosts.

Our business is dependent upon the performanceartthued efforts of certain key individuals, inding Edward G. Atsinger
[, our Chief Executive Officer, and Stuart W. Egpon, our Chairman of the Board. The loss of émeises of such key individuals
could have a material adverse effect upon us. WWar @rto employment agreements with such key intligls. Mr. Epperson has
radio interests unrelated to Salem’s operationswilhcontinue to impose demands on his time. Bisinger has an interest in an
aviation business unrelated to Salem’s operatioaswill continue to impose demands on his time.

We also employ or independently contract with salven-air personalities and hosts of syndicateérptbgrams with
significant loyal audiences on both a national lewe in their respective markets. Several ofauair personalities have a presence
that extends beyond our radio platforms into otlieategic areas. Although we have entered intg-tenm agreements with some of
our executive officers, key on-air talent and pesgrhosts to protect our interests in those relakigs, we can give no assurance that
all or any of these key employees will remain withor will retain their audiences. Competition tioese individuals is intense and
many of our key employees are at-will employees ateounder no legal obligation to remain with uar @mpetitors may choose to
extend offers to any of these individuals on terwtsich we may be unwilling to meet. In additionya all of our key employees
may decide to leave for a variety of personal bepbteasons beyond our control. Furthermore, tipailpaty and audience loyalty of
our key on-air talent and program hosts is higklys#tive to rapidly changing public tastes. A lo§such popularity or audience
loyalty is beyond our control and could limit ounility to generate revenues.

If we are not able to obtain financing or generasaifficient cash flows from operations, we may bealnte to fund future
acquisitions.

We may require significant financing to fund ougaisition strategy. This financing may not be aafli¢ to us. The availability
of funds under our new senior credit facility aydime is dependent upon, among other factorsability to satisfy financial
covenants. Our future operating performance wilsbigject to financial, economic, business, competiregulatory and other
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Adaegly, we cannot assure you that our future dlsis or borrowing capacity
will be sufficient to allow us to complete futurecaiisitions or implement our business plan, whictld have a material negative
impact on our business and results of operations.

If we cannot attract the anticipated listener, pragnmer and advertiser base for our newly acquirextiio stations, we may not
recoup associated operating costs or achieve padbiiity for these radio stations.

We frequently acquire selected assets of radimstathat previously broadcast in formats othentbar primary formats. We
continue to program some of these stations in mangpy formats and we re-program others to oneuofpmimary formats. During,
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and for a period after, the conversion of a ratitian’s format, the radio station typically gertesaoperating losses. The magnitude
and duration of these losses depends on a numifgetofs, including the promotional and marketingts associated with attracting
listeners and advertisers to our radio stationis fltemat and the success of these efforts. Theme guarantee that the operation of
these newly acquired stations or our operatiomeeim formats will attract a sufficient listener aadvertiser base. If we are not
successful in attracting the listener and adverbsse we anticipate, we may not recoup associgterhting costs or achieve
profitability for these radio stations.

If we do not maintain or increase our block programing revenues, our business and operating resulisynbe adversely affected.

The financial success of each of our radio statibasfeature Christian Teaching and Talk prograngms dependent, to a
significant degree, upon our ability to generateereie from the sale of block programming time tbamal and local religious
organizations. Block programming accounted foB2®of our net broadcast revenue for the year ebam@mber 31, 2009, and
38.6% of our net broadcast operating revenue fosttme period of the prior year. We compete figrghogram revenue with a
number of commercial and non-commercial radio Giteti Due to the significant competition for thisdk programming, we may not
be able to maintain or increase our current bladg@mmming revenue.

If we are unable to maintain or grow our advertigigrevenues, our business and operating results rhay
adversely affected.

Depending on their format, our radio stations aredarying degrees dependent upon advertising &r thvenues. In the
advertising market, we compete for revenue witeottommercial religious format and general fornaalio stations, as well as with
other media, including broadcast and cable telenjsiewspapers, magazines, direct mail, Interrgtbdboard advertising. Due to
this significant competition, we may not be ableraintain or increase our current advertising rereen

A sustained economic downturn in key Salem markedsild negatively impact our ability to generate snwues.

We derive a substantial part of our total reverfum® the sale of advertising on our radio statidfa. the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, 48.8%, 46.2%42ar1d6 of our total revenues, respectively, wereegatied from the sale of
advertising. We are particularly dependent onmeeefrom stations in the Los Angeles and Dallasketar which generated 16.9%
and 20.2%, respectively of our total net advergjsievenues for the year ended December 31, 200856686 and 18.6%,
respectively of our total net advertising reveniogshe year ended December 31, 2009. Becaustssitias portions of our revenues
are derived from local advertisers in these keyketar our ability to generate revenues in thosekatarcould be adversely affected
by local or regional economic downturns.

Environmental, health, safety and land use laws arajulations may limit or restrict some of our opsions.

We must comply with various federal, state andllecaironmental, health, safety and land use lawgsragulations that have a
tendency to affect broadcast facilities differentign other uses. We and our properties are sulojscich laws and regulations
relating to the use, storage, disposal, emissidir@lease of hazardous and non-hazardous substamtesnployee health and safety,
as well as zoning restrictions that may affect, agnother things, the ability for us to improve elocate our radio broadcasting
facilities. Historically, we have not incurred sificant expenditures to comply with these laws. ldoer, existing laws, and those
that may be applied in the future, or a findingofiolation of or liability, could require us to k®significant expenditures and
otherwise limit or restrict some of our operations.

Acts of war and terrorism may reduce our revenuedamave other negative effects on our business.

In response to the September 11, 2001 terroratlkston New York City and Washington, D.C., we &ased our news and
community service programming, which consequengigrdased the amount of broadcast time availabledimmercial advertising
and block programming. In addition, these eventsed advertisers to cancel advertisements on atiorss. Future acts of war and
terrorism against the United States, and the cgisntesponse thereto, including the current miitactions in Iraq and Afghanistan,
may also cause a general slowdown in the U.S. tsliviey market, which could cause our revenues tlink=due to advertising
and/or programming cancellations, delays or desanlpayment, and other factors. In addition, the@nts may have other negative
effects on our business, the nature and duratievhath we cannot predict. If future acts of wartemorism occur or the current weak
economic conditions continue or worsen, our finahcondition and results of operations may be nmaltgiand adversely affected.

We are controlled by a few controlling stockholders

As of December 31, 2009, Edward G. Atsinger I8t W. Epperson, Nancy A. Epperson and Edwardt€inger controlled
approximately 86.2% in aggregate of the voting poefeour capital stock. These four stockholderssthave the ability to control
fundamental corporate transactions requiring stoltdr approval, including but not limited to, tHection of all of our directors,
approval of merger transactions involving Salem #uedsale of all or substantially all of Salem’sets. The interests of any of these
controlling stockholders may differ from the intst®of other stockholders in a material manner.
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Our broadcasts often rely on content owned by thparties; obtaining such content could be costlycarequire us to enter into
disadvantageous license or royalty arrangements.

We rely heavily upon content and software ownedhlirgl parties in order to provide programming for droadcasts. The cost
of obtaining all necessary licenses and permissiarse this third-party content and software cammto increase. Although we
attempt to avoid infringing known proprietary righdf third parties in our broadcasting efforts,expect that we may be subject to
legal proceedings and claims for alleged infringetfieom time to time in the ordinary course of mesis. Any claims relating to the
infringement of third-party proprietary rights, evié not meritorious, could result in costly litijan, divert management’s attention
and resources, or require us to enter into royalticense agreements that are not advantageauss to addition, parties making
claims may be able to obtain an injunction, whiolild prevent us from broadcasting all or certairtipos of individual radio
broadcasts containing content owned by third partide also rely on software that we license froimdtparties, including software
that is integrated with internally developed softsvand used to perform key broadcasting and acmufitnctions. We could lose
the right to use this software or it could be madailable to us only on commercially unreasonadims. Although we believe that
alternative software is available from other thiakty suppliers or internal developments, the tdsw inability to maintain any of
these software licenses or the inability of thedtpiarties to enhance in a timely and cost-effeathanner their products in response
to changing customer needs, industry standardscbnological developments could result in limitaf@r delays in broadcasting or
accounting for programming by us until equivalesftware could be developed internally or identifiegdensed and integrated,
which would harm our business.

Proposed legislation requires radio broadcastergtyy royalties to record labels and recording atgis

On December 18, 2007, legislation was introduceddngress that would require terrestrial radio Hoaaters to pay a royalty
to record labels and performing artists for uséhefr recorded songs. Currently, we pay royaltiesang composers and publishers
through BMI, ASCAP and SESAC. The proposed legistetvould add an additional layer of royalties ®ogmid directly to the
record labels and artists. It is currently unknomrat proposed legislation, if any, will become lamd what significance this royalty
would have on our results from operations, cashdlor financial position.

We may be unable to increase or maintain our Intetradvertising revenues, which could have a mateadverse effect on our
business and operating results.

We generate advertising revenue from the salespialy advertisements on our Internet sites. Odityabo increase or maintain
this advertising revenue is largely dependent uhemumber of users actively visiting our Intersiéts. We also must increase user
engagement with our advertisers in order to in@eas advertising revenues. In addition, Intermiteatising techniques are
evolving, and if our technology and advertisementisg techniques do not evolve to meet the neédd\ertisers, our advertising
revenue could decline. Changes in our business Imadieertising inventory or initiatives could alsause a decrease in our
advertising revenue.

In addition, Internet advertisements are reportédigoming a means to distribute viruses over therriet. If this practice
becomes more prevalent, it could result in consarhecoming less inclined to click through onlineetisements, which could
adversely affect the demand for Internet adveisiie do not have long-term agreements with mosuofdvertisers. Any
termination, change or decrease in our advertigtaionships could have a material adverse affeaiur revenues and profitability.
If we do not maintain or increase our advertisieganues, our business, results of operations aaddial condition would be
materially adversely affected.

If we are unable to protect our domain names, o@putation and brands could be adversely affected.

We currently hold various domain name registrati@iating to our brands, including Christianity.cobmePlace.com and
Crosswalk.com. The registration and maintenanaoafain names generally are regulated by governinegéscies and their
designees. Governing bodies may establish additiopdevel domains, appoint additional domain naegistrars or modify the
requirements for holding domain names. As a reatmay be unable to register or maintain reledamtain names. We may be
unable, without significant cost or at all, to peavthird parties from registering domain names déina similar to, infringe upon or
otherwise decrease the value of, our trademark®tmet proprietary rights. Failure to protect oanthin names could adversely
affect our reputation and brands, and make it rddfieult for users to find our websites and oungees.

We have substantial debt and have the ability tounadditional debt. The principal and interest panent obligations of such debt
may restrict our future operations and impair oumbdity to meet our obligations under the notes.

At December 1, 2009, we and the guarantors haveozippately $315 million aggregate principal amoahbutstanding
indebtedness, of which all is senior debt (inclgdine outstanding notes), and of which approxinyek&b million effectively ranks
senior to the outstanding notes to the extent@Bisets securing such debt. In addition, the tefrosr senior credit facility and the
indenture permit us to incur additional indebtedné@scluding up to approximately $15 million thabuid be available under our
senior credit facility, subject to our ability toeet certain borrowing conditions.
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Our substantial debt may have important consequeeiocgou. For instance, it could:
< make it more difficult for us to satisfy our finaal obligations, including those relating to thechange notes;

e require us to dedicate a substantial portiomngf@ash flow from operations to the payment ofregé and principal due
under our debt, which will reduce funds availalledther business purposes, including capital ediperes and
acquisitions;

« place us at a competitive disadvantage compaitidsame of our competitors that may have less debtbetter access
to capital resources; and

< limit our ability to obtain additional financingquired to fund working capital and capital exgemés and for other
general corporate purposes.

Our ability to satisfy our obligations and to redwar total debt depends on our future operatimfppaance and on economic,
financial, competitive and other factors, many difiat are beyond our control. Our business may aoetate sufficient cash flow,
and future financings may not be available to pie\sufficient net proceeds, to meet these obligatar to successfully execute our
business strategy.

The agreements governing our various debt obligasdmpose restrictions on our business and adversdfect our ability to
undertake certain corporate actions.

The agreements governing our various debt obligafimcluding the indenture governing the exchamges offered hereby
and the agreements governing our senior crediitigénclude covenants imposing significant regions on our business. These
restrictions may affect our ability to operate business and may limit our ability to take advaatafjpotential business
opportunities as they arise. These covenants péstactions on our ability to, among other things:

e incur additional debt;

e declare or pay dividends, redeem stock or malkeratistributions to stockholders;

e make investments;

e create liens or use assets as security in athesdctions;

« merge or consolidate, or sell, transfer, leasdigpose of substantially all of our assets;
e engage in transactions with affiliates; and

« sell or transfer assets.

Our senior credit facility also requires us to céynpith a number of financial ratios and covenaamsl restricts our ability to
make certain capital expenditures.

Our ability to comply with these agreements mayatiected by events beyond our control, includingvailing economic,
financial and industry conditions. These covenantdd have an adverse effect on our business birgrour ability to take
advantage of financing, merger and acquisitiontbeiocorporate opportunities. The breach of anthe$e covenants or restrictions
could result in a default under the indenture gowey the exchange notes offered hereby or the sergdit facility. An event of
default under any of our debt agreements could paome of our lenders, including the lenders uridersenior credit facility, to
declare all amounts borrowed from them to be imietetlif due and payable, together with accrued apdidrinterest, which could,
in turn, trigger defaults under other debt obligas and the commitments of the lenders to makbadugxtensions of credit under our
senior credit facility could be terminated. If were unable to repay debt to our lenders, or arerathe in default under any
provision governing our outstanding secured debgations, our secured lenders could proceed agasand the subsidiary
guarantors and against the collateral securingdiat. In addition, acceleration of our other ingelness may cause us to be unable
to make interest payments on the exchange notesegagt the principal amount of or repurchase tlehamge notes or may cause the
subsidiary guarantors to be unable to make paymemsr the guarantees.

To service our indebtedness, we will require a siggant amount of cash. However, our ability to gerate cash depends on many
factors beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on, and to refinaoee,indebtedness, including the exchange notestaafuthd planned capital
expenditures, will depend on our ability to generedsh in the future, which, in turn, is subjeogénmeral economic, financial,
competitive, regulatory and other factors, manwbich are beyond our control.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash ftom operations and we may not have available thutuse borrowings in an
amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebdsdnincluding the exchange notes, or to fund therdiquidity needs. In these
circumstances, we may need to refinance all oragmoof our indebtedness on or before maturity. M&y not be able to refinance
any of our indebtedness, including our senior ¢redility and the exchange notes, on commerciagsonable terms, or at all.
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Without this financing, we could be forced to sadbets or secure additional financing to make upry shortfall in our payment
obligations under unfavorable circumstances. Howeve may not be able to secure additional finagncin terms favorable to us or
at all and, in addition, the terms of our seniadit facility and the indenture governing the exadgnotes limit our ability to sell
assets and also restrict the use of proceeds fuomasale. In addition, we may not be able toassets quickly enough or for
sufficient amounts to enable us to meet our ohitigat including our obligations under the exchangtes.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not Applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

No one physical property is material to our oveopkerations. We believe that our properties agoimd condition and suitable for
our operations; however, we continually evaluatpasfunities to upgrade our properti®ge believe we will be able to renew
existing leases when applicable or obtain compartulilities, as necessary.

Corporate

Our corporate headquarters are located in Camatiitifornia where we own an approximately 40,0q0ase foot office
building.

Radio Broadcasting

The types of properties required to support ouiorathtions include offices, studios, transmititenna and tower sites. A
station’s studios are generally located in an effita downtown or business district. Transmit@tenna and tower sites are located
in areas that provide maximum market coverage. Mtiereown or lease our radio transmitting propertiader agreements that
generally range from five to twenty-five years. W&dieve we will be able to renew any such leasedRpires or obtain comparable
facilities, as necessary. Our SRN and SMR officeb@allas radio stations are located in an offigigding in the Dallas, Texas
metropolitan area, where we own an approximate|Q@2 square foot office building. Our network ofienas are supported by
various offices and studios from which its programgroriginates or is relayed from a remote poinbifiination. Our network
leases satellite transponders used for deliveitg gfrogramming. We also own office buildings inrtddulu, Hawaii, Tampa, Florida,
Miami, Florida and Orlando, Florida.

We lease certain property from our principal staxtlbrs or trusts and partnerships created for émetit of the principal
stockholders and their families. These leaseseseribed in Note 12 of our consolidated financiatesments. All such leases have
cost of living adjustments. Based upon our managémassessment and analysis of local market dondifor comparable
properties, we believe such leases have termaitbats favorable as, or more favorable, to the Gomphan those that would have
been available from unaffiliated parties.

Non-Broadcast

Salem Publishing and Salem Web Network operate femsed office facilities in Nashville, Tennessedando, Florida;
Richmond, Virginia, and Boone, North Carolina. Thase agreements range from two to ten years némgaon the lease term. We
believe we will be able to renew any such leasedkpires or obtain comparable facilities, as nsaps

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We and our subsidiaries, incident to our businesigiies, are parties to a number of legal prodegs| lawsuits, arbitration and
other claims. Such matters are subject to mangrteiaties and outcomes that are not predictaltle asisurance. We maintain
insurance that may provide coverage for such n&t€@wnsequently, we are unable to ascertain theailt aggregate amount of
monetary liability or the financial impact with pect to these matters. We believe, at this tinsg, ttre final resolution of these
matters, individually and in the aggregate, wilt have a material adverse effect upon our annusdalmated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. RESERVED.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY; RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The Company’s Class A common stock trades on th8D¥Q Global Market® (“NASDAQ-NGM”) under the symbSIALM.
On March 5, 2010, the Company had approximatelgté@kholders of record (not including the numbepeisons or entities holding
stock in nominee or street name through varioukdyage firms) and 18,120,092 outstanding sharés @flass A common stock and
two stockholders of record and 5,553,696 outstapdiares of its Class B common stock. The follovtaige sets forth for the fiscal
quarters indicated the range of high and low salie® information per share of the Class A commoglsof the Company as
reported on the NASDAQ-NGM.

2008 2009
1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
High (mid-day) $7.14 $ 4.78 $ 244 $ 181 $1.60 $1.19 $3.49 $5.99
Low (mid-day) $2.80 $ 173 $ 1.20 $ 0.51 $0.25 $0.47 $0.65 $2.19

There is no established public trading marketier€ompany’s Class B common stock.
DIVIDEND POLICY

Due to the transition of the radio broadcastingisidy to a more mature stage of its lifecycle, mmber of broadcasting peers
introduced the payment of dividends. After carefvliew and consideration of its earnings, finahp@sition, capital requirements,
its bank credit facilities and the indenture gowvegrits previously outstanding 7%.% Notes, the Comypzad determined that it was
in the interest of its shareholders to grant aigpeovidend. On July 28, 2006, the Company pasgpecial cash dividend of $0.60 per
share on its Class A and Class B common stockarebblders of record as of the close of busineskibnl17, 2006. The cash
payment amounted to approximately $14.6 milliom August 23, 2007, the Company paid a special dadthend of $0.42 per share
on its Class A and Class B common stock to shadenslof record as of the close of business on ARs2007. The cash payment
amounted to approximately $10.0 million. No divide were paid during the years ended December08B, @ December 31, 2009.

The Company’s sole source of cash available foringaény future dividend payments will be dividendgd to the Company or
payments made to the Company by its subsidiaries.ability of subsidiaries of the Company to malehspayments may be
restricted by applicable state laws or terms oéagrents to which they are or may become a padyCtmpany’s Revolver and the
terms of the indenture governing tié% Notes restrict the payment of dividends on itsiemn stock unless certain specified
conditions are satisfied.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following table sets forth selected financiatadand other operating information of Salem. 3dlected financial data in the
table is derived from the consolidated financiatestnents of Salem. The data should be read igotipn with the consolidated
financial statements, related notes, and othenéiadinformation included (incorporated by referepherein. The data below should
be read in conjunction with, and is qualified bference to, our consolidated financial statementsralated notes and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” and specificdie disclosure concerning
a reconciliation for historical Non-GAAP measure@sgented in “Management’s Discussion and AnalysKmancial Condition and
Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measunesluded in Item 7 of this report.

The Statements of Operations Data for all prioiqukr presented have been reclassified to reflecopierating results of WRRD-
AM, Milwaukee, Wisconsin and WFZH-FM, Milwaukee, ¥¢bnsin as discontinued operations. In 2007, weahalan in place to
sell these radio stations and completed the saleest entities during the year ended Decembe2(®18.

The Statements of Operations Data for all perigdsgnted have been reclassified to reflect theabipgrresults oCCM
Magazineas a discontinued operation as of its final pathign in March 2008.

The Statements of Operations Data for all periogdsgnted have been reclassified to reflect theatipgrresults of WRFD-AM,
Columbus, Ohio in continuing operations from digomned operations. We had entered into an assehase agreement on July 31,
2008, to sell this radio station and exit the Cddusmarket. At that time, the Consolidated Balgbloeets and Statements of
Operations for all periods presented had beenssifiled to reflect the operating results and nsétssof this market as a discontinued
operation as of the date of the asset purchaseragré through December 2009. The sale was exptxrtddse in the fourth quarter
of 2009. On December 30, 2009, the buyer of tderstation advised us that they would not be &blmeet the terms of the asset
purchase agreement. Because of the buyer terminidie agreement, we have reclassified the accoyigaonsolidated Balance
Sheets and Statements of Operations for all pepogisented to reflect the operating results anéssts of this market in continuing
operations. In January 2010, we collected a $@l®mtermination fee from the buyer pursuantéonination of the asset purchase
agreement.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (CONTINUED).

Statement of Operations Data:

Net broadcast revenue

Non-broadcast revenue

Total revenue

Operating expenses:
Broadcast operating expenses
Non-broadcast operating expenses
Corporate expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Legal settlement
Cost of denied tower site, abandoned
projects and terminated transactions

Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible
assets

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations

Other income (expense):
Interest income

Interest expense
Change in fair value of interest rate
swaps

Gain on bargain purchase

Gain (loss) on early redemption of long-
term debt

Other income (expense)

Total other expense

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of tax

Net income (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share data:

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing
operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share data:

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing
operations

Earnings (loss) per share from discontinued
operations

Net earnings (loss) per share
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per steeg

$ 196,885 $ 206,367 $ 206,055 $ 194,113 $ 172,055
8,914 17,896 24,622 28,377 27,158
205,799 224,263 230,677 222,490 199,213
119,740 129,438 130,844 124,881 108,149
8,488 16,680 22,921 25,867 23,555
19,607 24,043 22,314 20,040 14,005
12,859 15,026 ,083 16,136 15,120

650 — — — —

— — — 1,275 1,111

— — — 73,010 27,996

522 (18,653) (2,190) (6,892) 1,676

161,866 166,534 188,971 254,317 191,612
43,933 57,729 41,706 (31,827) 7,601
207 210 183 247 290
(22,559) (26,342) (25,488) (22,381) (20,079)
— — — (4,827) (781)

— — — — 1,634

(24) (3,625) — 4,664 (1,050)

(506) (420) 164 121 (88)
(22,882) (30,177) (25,141) (22,176) (20,074)
21,051 27,552 16,565 (54,003) (12,473)
8,353 11,103 7,379 (19,151) (4,210)

12,698 16,449 9,186 (34,852) (8,263)
(36) 2,550 (1,011) 1,766 (83)
$ 12,662 $ 18,999 $ 8,175 $  (33,086) $ (8,346)
$ 0.49 $ 0.68 $ 039 $ (1.47) $ (0.35)
— 0.11 (0.04) 0.07 —
$ 049 $ 0.78 $ 0.34 $ (1.40) $ (0.35)
$ 0.49 $ 068 $ 0.39 $ 147y % (0.35)
— 0.11 (0.04) 0.07 —
$ 0.49 $ 0.78 $ 0.34 $  (1.40) $ (0.35)
25,735,641 24,215,867 23,785,015 23,671,288 23,803,864
23178 24,223,751 23,788,568 23,671,288 23,803,864
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (CONTINUED).
Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,979 $ 710 $ 447 $ 1,892 $ 8,945
Broadcast licenses 435,178 468,630 464,549 398,135 375,317
Other intangible assets including goodwill, net , 183 30,004 27,607 25,574 22,484
Total assets 645,930 686,264 679,798 607,718 579,045
Long-term debt (including current portion) 327,281 361,026 354,284 325,375 314,047
Stockholders’ equity 249,118 237,716 233,178 203,116 197,199

Cash flows related to:

Operating activities $ 38,400 $ 36,39 $ 30,983 $ 37,901 39,468
Investing activities (83,338) (50,509) (11,312) (21,817) (2,851)
Financing activities 37,548 (3,773) (20,854) (25,004) (29,481)
Other Data:

Station operating income (1) $ 77,145 $ 76,929 $ 75211 $ 69,232 63,906
Station operating income margin (2) 39.2% 37.3% 36.5% 35.7% 37.1%

(1) We define station operating income as net broadeasnue less broadcast operating expenses.
(2) Station operating income margin is station opegaiticome as a percentage of net broadcast revenue.

Station operating income (“SOI”) is not a measurpayformance calculated in accordance with geheaaicepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). Therefore, SOI should be vietvas a supplement to and not a substitute foltsesuoperations presented on
the basis of GAAP. Management believes that staifzerating income is useful, when considered mjuwaction with operating
income, the most directly comparable GAAP finanogasure, because it is generally recognized bsatfie broadcasting industry
as a tool in measuring performance and in applyaigation methodologies for companies in the mesligertainment and
communications industries. This measure is usedmstors and by analysts who report on the inglistprovide comparisons
between broadcast groups. Additionally, we usiostaperating income as one of our key measurepefating efficiency and
contribution to profitability. Station operatingdome does not purport to represent cash provigegberating activities. Our
statement of cash flows presents our cash flowiactnd our income statement presents our histbpgerformance prepared in
accordance with GAAP. Our station operating incasngot necessarily comparable to similarly tittedasures employed by other
companies.

RECONCILIATION OF STATION OPERATING INCOME TO OPERA TING INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Station operating income $ 77,145 $ 76,929 $ 75211 $ 69,232 $ 63,906
Plus non-broadcast revenue 8,914 17,896 24,622 28,377 27,158
Less non-broadcast operating expenses (8,488) (16,680) (22,921) (25,867) (23,555)
Less corporate expenses (19,607) (24,043) 3122 (20,040) (14,005)
Less depreciation and amortization (12,859) (15,026) (15,082) (16,136) (15,120)
Less legal settlement (650) — — — —
Less cost of denied tower site, abandoned proje
and terminated transactions — — — (2,275) (1,111)
Less impairment of indefinite-lived intangible
asset — — — (73,010) (27,996)
Less gain (loss) on disposal of assets (522) 18,653 2,190 6,892 (1,676)
Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations $ 43,933 $ 57,729 $ 41,706 $ (31,827) $ 7,601
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

GENERAL

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsdrin conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and related rintdsded elsewhere in this report. Our consoiddtnancial statements are not
directly comparable from period to period becauseuo acquisition and disposition of selected assétradio stations and our
acquisitions of non-broadcast businesses. SeedNm®ur consolidated financial statements untien I8 for additional information.

OVERVIEW

As a radio broadcasting company with a nationalbradtwork, we derive our broadcast revenue primémmom the sale of
broadcast time and radio advertising on a natiandllocal basis.

Historically, our principal sources of revenue édeen:

the sale of block program time, both to national krtal program producers,
the sale of advertising time on our radio statidrwgh to national and local advertisers, and
the sale of advertising time on our national ratitwork.

The rates we are able to charge for broadcastdimdeadvertising time are dependent upon sever@ri&adncluding:

audience share,

how well our stations perform for our clients,

the size of the market,

the general economic conditions in each market, and
supply and demand on both a local and national.leve

Our sources of revenue and product offerings alseasingly include non-broadcast businesses,dimgiuour Internet and
publishing businesses.

The following table shows the percentage of neaicast revenue for each broadcast revenue source.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Block program time:

National $ 45,598 22.1% $ 42,781 22.0% $ 38,842 22.6%
Local 30,740 14.9 32,099 16.6 31,344 18.2
76,338 37.0 74,880 38.6 70,186 40.8

Advertising:
National 15,022 7.3 13,531 7.0 12,649 7.3
Local 85,527 41.5 76,137 39.2 61,557 35.8
100,549 48.8 89,668 46.2 74,206 43.1
Infomercials 8,511 4.1 8,691 4.5 7,225 4.2
Network 15,247 7.4 15,583 8.0 15,244 8.9
Other 5,410 2.7 5,291 2.7 5,194 3.0
Net broadcast revenue $ 206,055 100.0% $ 194,113 100.0% $ 172,055 100.0%

Our broadcast revenue is affected primarily byphegram rates our radio stations charge, the lefviefoadcast airtime sold
and by the advertising rates our radio stationsretaiorks charge. The rates for block programmiimg tare based upon our stations
ability to attract audiences that will support gregram producers through contributions and pueshas$ their products. Advertising
rates are based upon the demand for advertisirgg titich in turn is based on our stations’ and oek&/ ability to produce results
for their advertisers. We do not subscribe to tiadal audience measuring services for our Chnisfieaching and Talk stations.
Instead, we have marketed ourselves to advertisessd upon the responsiveness of our audiencssldected markets, we do
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subscribe to Arbitron, which develops quarterlyarp to measure a radio station’s audience shateidemographic groups targeted
by advertisers. Each of our radio stations andhetworks has a pre-determined level of time thay tinake available for block
programming and/or advertising, which may varyiffecent times of the day.

Arbitron has developed new technology to collet¢adar its ratings service. The Portable PeopleeWe(PPM") is a small,
pager-sized device that does not require activapubation by the end user and is capable of autmalit measuring radio,
television, Internet, satellite radio and sateligkevision signals that are encoded for the serlicthe broadcaster. The PPM offers a
number of advantages over the traditional diampgatcollection system including ease of use, meliable ratings data and shorter
time periods between when advertising runs and valuelience listening or viewing habits can be reqabrThis service is already in
a number of our markets and is scheduled to bedntred in more markets in the future. It is notgtearr what impact, if any, the
introduction of the PPM will have on our revenuesdtations that subscribe to Arbitron.

As is typical in the radio broadcasting industryr eecond and fourth quarter advertising revenuneigdly exceeds our first
and third quarter advertising revenue. This seddtutduation in advertising revenue correspondghwjuarterly fluctuations in the
retail advertising industry. Quarterly revenue friima sale of block programming time does not tendary significantly, however,
because program rates are generally set annuallgra@recognized on a per program basis.

Our cash flow has historically been affected bgaagitional period experienced by radio stationenyldue to the nature of the
radio station, our plans for the market and otleumstances, we find it beneficial to changedtsifat. This transitional period is
when we develop a radio station’s listener andatust base. During this period, a station may geeeregative or insignificant cash
flow.

In the broadcasting industry, radio stations ofitiize trade or barter agreements to exchangertsivey time for goods or
services in lieu of cash. In order to preservestide of our advertising time for cash, we generatiter into trade agreements only if
the goods or services bartered to us will be usedii business. We have minimized our use of temgleements and have generally
sold most of our advertising time for cash. In 2088 sold 97% of our advertising time for cashadtdition, it is our general policy
not to preempt advertising paid for in cash withetising paid for in trade.

The primary operating expenses incurred in the ositip and operation of our radio stations inclu@eemployee salaries,
commissions and related employee benefits and téRefscility expenses such as rent and utilitié) marketing and promotional
expenses and (iv) music license fees. In addibadhése expenses, our network incurs programmists @nd lease expenses for
satellite communication facilities. We also incadaexpect to continue to incur significant depréoig amortization and interest
expense as a result of completed and future atigumisiand existing and future borrowings.

Salem Web Network™ and Townhall.cdnour Internet businesses, earn revenues fromaike ef streaming services, sales of
advertising and, to a lesser extent, sales of soéwnd software support contracts. Salem Pubgj$hirour publishing business,
earns its revenue by selling advertising in andstptions to its publications and by selling badkalon Press™ generally earns its
revenue from the publishing of books. The revemderalated operating expenses of these businessespmrted as “non-broadcast”
on our Consolidated Statement of Operations.

KNOWN TRENDS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Domestic radio revenues continue to decline. Wiebelthis is primarily the result of the struggliogited States economy and
corresponding reductions in discretionary adverntjsipending by our customers. Beginning in Juy7Z2@ur advertising revenue
was and remains negatively impacted by decliningeettsing from our customers, particularly in tirahcial services and auto
industries. The decline in advertising revenue icbpaoth our broadcast segment and non-broadagsiese. We expect this trend to
continue as long as the United States economy ag&wewever, we cannot quantify the financial intpat our future operating
results. In response to these economic challemgebave initiated several cost reduction strateigielsiding (1) reducing headcount
by approximately 15%, (2) temporarily suspending @ompany match on 401(k) contributions as of 2008, (3) temporarily
suspending the management bonus program, (4)dignitapital expenditures, (5) reducing the basesé&da all employees by 5% as
of February 1, 2009 with certain members of exeeuthanagement reduced by 10%, (6) requiring allleyegs to use accrued
vacation balances by March 31, 2009, (7) offerimgentives to employees to use accrued vacatiomtéedeas of December 31, 2009
and (8) consolidating programming on most of ount&mporary Christian Music stations. We contirmiedrsue opportunities to
sell assets, particularly stations that are in sivategic formats or are underperforming.
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This period of economic uncertainty increases aposure to several risks, including but not limited
« Increasing pressure to sell advertising and bfoigramming time at discounted rates;

* Increases in the length of time to collect reables and higher risk that the accounts becomellentible as our
customers face tight credit markets;

e Ministries are experiencing lower levels of daoas that could negatively impact their abilityporchase and pay for
block programming time;

* We may not be able to find suitable replacemémtsinistries that can no longer purchase andfpailock
programming;

« Limiting our ability to obtain additional finanaj to fund working capital, capital expendituresguasitions and other
corporate requirements;

< Limiting our ability to pursue projects that cdliave been beneficial; and

* Impairment losses on the value of our indefitited intangible assets including broadcast licengeodwill, and
mastheads and impairment losses on other long-tgsdts.

SAME STATION DEFINITION

In the discussion of our results of operations Wwelwe compare our results between periods on aasted basis (that is, the
results of operations of all radio stations andvoek formats owned or operated at any time duritigee period) and on a “same-
station” basis. With regard to fiscal quarters,imedude in our same-station comparisons the resfiltperations of radio stations or
radio station clusters and networks that we owoparate in the same format during the quarter,edlsas the corresponding quarter
of the prior year. Same-station results for ayelir are based on the sum of the same statiortsdésuthe four quarters of that year.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Statements of Operations Data for all perigdsgnted have been reclassified to reflect theatipgrresults of WRRD-AM,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin and WFZH-FM, Milwaukee, Wissimas discontinued operations. In 2007, we hgldmin place to sell
these radio stations and completed the sale diemntluring the year ended December 31, 2008.

The Statements of Operations Data for all periogdsgnted have been reclassified to reflect theabipgrresults oCCM
Magazineas a discontinued operation as of the March 2Q®8igation.

The amounts presented below have been reclastifreflect the operating results of WRFD-AM, ColuwmsbOhio in continuing
operations from discontinued operations. We haeredtinto an asset purchase agreement on Julp3&, @ sell this radio station and
exit the Columbus market. At that time, the Cortadted Balance Sheets and Statements of Operatioal periods presented were
reclassified to reflect the operating results agidassets of this market as a discontinued operati@f the date of the asset purchase
agreement through December 2009. The sale wastegpecclose in the fourth quarter of 2009. On Datwer 30, 2009, the buyer of the
radio station advised us that they would not be &ibimeet the terms of the asset purchase agredBasatuse of the buyer terminating
the agreement, we have reclassified the accompgu@onsolidated Balance Sheets and Statements o&tiwes for all periods
presented to reflect the operating results andsests of this market in continuing operationdamuary 2010, we collected a $0.2
million termination fee from the buyer pursuanttie asset purchase agreement.
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The following table sets forth certain Statemerfit®perations Data for the periods indicated andwshannual changes:

Net broadcast revenue

Non-broadcast revenue

Total revenue

Operating expenses:
Broadcast operating expenses
Non-broadcast operating expenses
Corporate expenses
Depreciation

Amortization
Cost of denied tower site, abandoned projects and
terminated transactions

Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Gain on bargain purchase

Gain (loss) on early redemption of long-term debt

Other income (expense), net

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme
taxes

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nearf

Net income (loss)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009 2008 over 2007 2009 over 2008
(in thousands) % change

$ 206,055 $ 194,113 $ 172,055 (5.8)% (11.4)%

24,622 28,377 27,158 15.3% (4.3)%

230,677 222,490 199,213 (3.5)% (10.5)%

130,844 124,881 108,149 (4.6)% (13.4)%

22,921 25,867 23,555 12.9% (8.9)%

22,314 20,040 14,005 (10.2)% (30.1)%

12,047 13,333 13,441 10.7% 0.8%

3,035 2,803 1,679 (7.6)% (40.1)%

— 1,275 1,111 100.0% (12.9)%

— 73,010 27,996 100.0% (61.7)%

(2,190) (6,892) 1,676 214.7% (124.3)%

188,971 254,317 191,612 34.6% (24.7Y%

41,706 (31,827) 7,601 (176.3)% (123.9)%

183 247 290 35.0% 17.4%

(25,488) (22,381) (20,079) (12.2)% (10.3)%

— (4,827) (781) (100.0)% (83.8)%

— — 1,634 0.0% 100.0%

— 4,664 (2,050) 100.0% (122.5)%

164 121 (88) (26.2)% (172.7)%

16,565 (54,003) (12,473) (426.0)% (76.9)%

7,379 19,151) (4,210) (359.5)% (78.0)%

9,186 (34,852) (8,263) (479.4)% (76.3)%

(1,011) 1,766 (83) (274.7)% (104.7)%

$ 8,175 $ (33,086) $  (8,346) (504.7)% (74.8)%
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The following table presents selected financiahdat the periods indicated as a percentage dftetanue.
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
Net broadcast revenue 89 % 87 % 86 %
Non-broadcast revenue 11 % 13 % 14 %
Total revenue 100 % 100 % 100 %
Operating expenses:
Broadcast operating expenses 57 % 56 % 54 %
Cost of denied tower site, abandoned projects and
terminated transactions — % 1 % —%
Non-broadcast operating expenses 10 % 12 % 12 %
Corporate expenses 10 % 9 % 7 %
Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets — % 33 % 14 %
Depreciation 5 % 6 % 7 %
Amortization 1 % 1 % 1 %
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 1) % B) % 1 %
Total operating expenses 82 % 115 % 96 %
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations 18 % (15) % 4 %
Other income (expense):
Interest income — % — % — %
Interest expense 11) % (10) % (10) %
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps — % 2) (% — %
Gain on bargain purchase — % — % 1 %
Gain (loss) on early redemption of long-term debt — % 2 % 1) %»
Other expense, net — % — % — %
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome taxes 7 % 25) % 6) %
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 3 % 9 % 2 %
Income (loss) from continuing operations 4 % (16) % 4 %
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — % 1 % — %
Net income (loss) 4 % (15) % 4 %

Year ended December 31, 2009 compared to year ebdegmber 31, 2008

NET BROADCAST REVENUMet broadcast revenue decreased $22.0 milliohle¥%, to $172.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from $194.1 million for the sgragod of the prior year. On a same station bagisbroadcast revenue
declined $22.3 million, or 11.7%, to $167.4 millitor the year ended December 31, 2009, from $188llibn for the same period of
the prior year. The decline in net broadcast ragda comprised of a $14.6 million decrease inlladaertising revenues across all
station formats, a $3.9 million decrease in natigmagram revenue primarily on our Christian Teaghéind Talk and News Talk
stations, a $1.5 million decrease in infomerciakraie primarily on our Christian Teaching and Takl News Talk formats, a $0.8
million decrease in local program revenue acrasstation formats, a $0.3 million decrease in nelwevenue, and a $0.5 million
decrease in event revenue primarily associatedauttCelebrate Freedom festivals. Revenue fronediding as a percentage of our
net broadcast revenue decreased to 43.1% for Hreepeled December 31, 2009, from 46.2% for the gmaried of the prior year.
Revenue from block program time as a percentageiofiet broadcast revenue increased to 40.8% doyehr ended December 31,
2009, from 38.6% for the same period of the prigairy Block programming revenue has continueddrease as a percentage of our
total broadcast revenue, particularly on our ClanisTeaching and Talk stations. The trend in #tba broadcast industry is of
declining advertising revenues resulting in the afsielock programming or infomercials to offset theclines. The growth of block
programming and infomercial revenue has slowed. eWfct these trends to continue; however, we daquamntify the financial
impact on our future operating results.

NON-BROADCAST REVENUBon-broadcast revenue decreased $1.2 milliod,3%, to $27.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from $28.4 million for the sgragod of the prior year. The decrease is comgrigea $1.0 million decrease in
publishing revenue associated with magazines anlisbon Salem Publishing and a $0.2 million decr@aselvertising revenues
associated with our internet businesses on ourngéliork.

BROADCAST OPERATING EXPENSH®Bo0adcast operating expenses decreased $16.8mibiidl 3.4%, to $108.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009, from $124.9amiftr the same period of the prior year. On aesatation basis, broadcast
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operating expense decreased $17.0 million, or 14ta%104.1 million for the year ended December2)9, compared to $121.1
million for the same period of the prior year. Tdexline in broadcast operating expenses reflacoeerall cost reduction initiative
that includes a $12.8 million decrease in persenglated costs due to reductions in work force saddry reductions, a $2.5 million
decrease in advertising expenses, a $0.3 millienedse in LMA fees, a $0.4 million decrease in pobidn and programming
expenses, a $0.5 million decrease in facility-eslatosts and a $0.3 million reduction in professiservice fees. We expect our
staffing levels to remain at reduced levels givenweakened United States economy. We also eikpeetsing levels of bad debt
charges that may have a material impact on ouratiotaged financial position, results of operati@ms cash flows.

NON-BROADCAST OPERATING EXPENSHB$on-broadcast operating expenses decreased $ddnor 8.9%, to $23.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2009, caenpéo $25.9 million for the same period of theopsiear. The decrease includes
a $1.6 million decline in personnel and circulatexpenses associated with print magazines and lwo&slem Publishing and a
$0.9 million reduction in advertising, promotiondastreaming expenses on Salem Web Network, pgroéitet by an increase of
$0.2 million in operating expenses on Salem Consi#neducts due to offering expanded product lines.

CORPORATE EXPENSE&orporate expenses decreased $6.0 million, d&80to $14.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2009, compared to $20.0 million for the sameopleof the prior year. The decrease reflectsnigact of an overall cost
reduction initiative that include a reduction innkdorce and salary reductions resulting in a $4ifion reduction in personnel-
related costs and a $2.5 million decline in nomcsteck-based compensation expense due to the e accelerated vesting of
unvested options voluntarily surrendered by membgésgnior management in September 2008. Thispagslly offset by an
increase of $0.2 million in facility related costsd a $0.4 million executive bonus accrual.

DEPRECIATION.Depreciation expense increased $0.1 million, o?%0).® $13.4 million for the year ended December2D9,
compared to $13.3 million for the same period efphior year. The increase reflects the impaceoént capital expenditures
associated with computer software, data processidgffice equipment that have shorter estimatefutves than towers and
broadcast assets.

AMORTIZATION. Amortization expense decreased $1.1 million,@d%, to $1.7 million for the year ended Decemtier 3
2009, compared to $2.8 million for the same peabthe prior year. The decrease is due to highwrazation recognized in early
2008 on intangibles such as advertising agreenagmt®ther business contracts that were acquird@0@ with an estimated useful
life of one year.

COST OF DENIED TOWER SITE, ABANDONED PROJECTS ARRMINATED TRANSACTIONSCosts associated with a
tower relocation project for radio station KDOW-AMan Francisco, California, that was rejected leyGhy of Hayward, of $0.9
million were recognized during the year ended Ddmam31, 2009 along with costs of $0.2 million assted with capital projects
that will not be pursued. Terminated transactioste@and abandoned license upgrades of $1.3 mithiothhe same period of the prior
year consist of capital projects that were abandahing the year and fees associated with theitation of our agreement to
purchase KTRO-AM in Portland, Oregon.

IMPAIRMENT OF INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETH accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 “Intanggbie
Goodwill and Other,” we review the recorded valaésur indefinite-lived intangible assets includibgadcast licenses, goodwiill,
and mastheads on an annual basis or more frequeoatigditions indicate that we may have an impant During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we recorded an impairment charg26.8 million associated with the value of loast licenses and goodwill
in the Dallas, Atlanta, Detroit, Portland and Clewel market clusters, an impairment charge of &iiln associated with the value
of goodwill and mastheads in the non-broadcast segnfFor the same period of the prior year, wenaded a $73.0 million
impairment charge associated with the value ofdicast licenses and goodwill in the Boston, Detigveland, Louisville, Tampa,
Miami, Orlando, Sacramento, Omaha, and Nashvill&kataclusters.

The impairment charges resulted from weakeningpratdition valuations due to lower revenues and la@r@wth expectations.
These trends are not specific to any of our indigidnarket clusters, but rather are affecting védna in the industry as a whole.
We acquired radio stations at various times oveddst thirty four years, many of which were anmati under prior accounting
standards. As a result of this prior amortizatibe, fair value of our broadcast licenses and tiesugjoodwill exceeds the carrying
value in impacted markets. The markets and estitiewhich impairment charges were recorded duttiegyear ended December
31, 2009 accounted for 27.5% of total revenueshiemperiod compared to 27.9% for the same perigteprior year.

(GAIN) LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETSe loss on disposal of assets of $1.7 milliontlieryear ended December 31, 2009,
includes the sale of radio station KPXI-FM, Tylesrigview, Texas for $0.4 million resulting in a geecloss of $1.6 million and
various fixed assets disposals. Gain on dispdsadsets of $6.9 million for the same period of thier year includes the sale of
radio station WRVI-FM, Louisville, Kentucky for $8million resulting in a pre-tax gain of $1.1 milfi, the sale of radio station
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KTEK-AM, Houston, Texas for $7.8 million resultinig a pre-tax gain of $6.1 million, partially offsey various fixed assets
disposals.

GAIN ON BARGAIN PURCHASHn accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805 “Business Gorations,” effective as of January
1, 2009, any excess of fair value of the acquiretcassets over the acquisition consideration sleatecognized as a gain on a bargain
purchase. Prior to recording a gain, the acquieinigty must reassess whether all acquired assdtassumed liabilities have been
identified and recognized and perform re-measurésrterverify that the consideration paid, assetmigied, and liabilities assumed
have been properly valued. We underwent such aesamsent, and as a result, have recorded a g#ie dwargain purchase WZAB-
AM in Miami, Florida, of $1.6 million. If new infanation is obtained during the measurement periadiafacts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date that, dwn, would have affected the measurement of theuatsaecognized for assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, we will retrogjwety adjust the amounts recognized as of the ia¢tpn date. We believe that the
gain on bargain purchase resulted from variou®fadhat may have impacted the acquisition pric&/gAB-AM, including, without
limitation, significant declines in broadcast rewes throughout the industry.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)nterest income represents interest earned orsexash. Interest income increased to $0.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2009, caenpéo $0.2 million for the same period of the pgiear. Interest expense
decreased $2.3 million or 10.3% to $20.1 milliontfee year ended December 31, 2009, compared td $2ftion for the same
period of the prior year due to a lower net outdiag debt balance and lower interest rates dutiegyear. Interest expense for the
year ended December 31, 2009, also includes arfilidn charge associated with the termination of mterest rate swaps. Change
in fair value of interest rate swaps of $0.8 milliepresents the change in the fair market valwipéwaps. Other expense, net, of
$0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2@98tes to bank commitment fees associated witltiadit facilities. Other
income, net, of $0.1 million for the same periodha prior year consists of non-recurring reimborsets received, including $0.2
million associated with the terminated sale of KKM{®I in Seattle, Washington, partially offset witark commitment fees
associated with our credit facilities.

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXEB. accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740 “Income Takesr benefit
from income taxes was $4.2 million for the yearemh@®ecember 31, 2009 compared to $19.2 millionHersame period of the prior
year. Provision for income taxes as a percentdgeome before income taxes (that is, the effectax rate) was 33.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2009 compared to 35.5% foratime period of the prior year. The effective tae far each period differs from
the federal statutory income rate of 35.0% dudeoeffect of state income taxes, certain expeisgste not deductible for tax
purposes, and changes in the valuation allowaree fhe utilization of certain state net operatioggsl carry-forwards.

INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, NETT@K. The loss from discontinued operations of $0.1
million, net of taxes, for the year ended Decen8ier2009 relates to facility charges incurred anltilwaukee property offset by a
gain from recording fixed assets that had beenddraed and written-off at the Milwaukee facility alader placed back into service
in other markets. The income from discontinuedrapens of $1.8 million, net of taxes, for the sapegiod of the prior year includes
the gain of $1.3 million on the sale of WRRD-AM, IMaukee, Wisconsin, a $0.8 million gain on the sdl®VFZH-FM, Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, and the operating result<G8M Magazine

NET INCOME (LOSS) We recognized a net loss of $8.3 million for ylear ended December 31, 2009 compared to a net loss
of $33.1 million for the same period of the pri@ay. The decrease in losses of $24.8 million cefla reduction in operating losses
of $39.4 million, a $2.1 million decrease in otleapenses, net, a $15.0 million decrease in tagflisnand a $1.8 million increase in
losses from discontinued operations impacted bR @8 sale of Milwaukee stations at a gain. Tleicdon in operating losses of
$39.4 million is comprised of a $62.7 million retioa in operating expenses that includes a $45liomidecrease in impairment
losses and the $8.6 million unfavorable impactaihg on asset sales offset by a $23.2 million deserén operating revenues. The
decreases in other expenses, net of $2.1 milliclidies a $2.3 million decrease in interest expehge$4.0 million favorable impact
from changes in the fair value of our interest mtaps partially offset by a $1.1 million loss @btiretirement compared to income
of $4.7 million in the prior year.
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Year ended December 31, 2008 compared to year ebdegmber 31, 2007

NET BROADCAST REVENURet broadcast revenue decreased $12.0 millios,8%, to $194.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008, from $206.0 million for the sgragod of the prior year. On a same station bagisbroadcast revenue
declined $12.1 million, or 6.2%, to $186.7 millitor the year ended December 31, 2008, from $198I@mfor the same period of
the prior year. The decline in revenue includ&8 4 million decrease in local advertising reveanell of our radio station formats,
a $2.8 million decrease in national program revegmcipally on our Christian Teaching and Talktistas, and a $0.5 million
decline in event revenue on our Contemporary Garnigtlusic format stations, offset by a $0.2 millimcrease in infomercial
revenue. Revenue from advertising as a percetagr net broadcast revenue decreased to 46.2%dorear ended December 31,
2008, from 48.8% for the same period of the priary Revenue from block program time as a pergeraéour net broadcast
revenue increased to 38.6% for the year ended Dsee®1, 2008, from 37.0% for the same period ofptther year. Block
programming revenue has continued to increasepascantage of our total broadcast revenue, paatigubn our Christian Teaching
and Talk stations. The trend in the radio broatileg$ndustry is of declining advertising revenuesulting in the use of block
programming or infomercials to offset the declinéglditionally, the growth of block programming aimdomercial revenue has
slowed. We expect these trends to continue; homvexecannot quantify the financial impact on autufe operating results.

NON-BROADCAST REVENUBon-broadcast revenue increased $3.8 millior,502%, to $28.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008, from $24.6 million for the sgregod of the prior year. The increase is compiriziea $0.9 million increase in
revenue on Xulon Press, a $0.7 million increaszdivertising revenue on Townhall.com, a $0.9 milliscrease in ministry streaming
and banner advertising revenue on OnePlace.cof3andillion increase in revenue from Salem ConsuRreducts, an entity
launched in the second half of 2007, a $0.4 milimease in revenue associated with Townhall Magaza new publication
launched in early 2008, and a $1.0 million incraasevenue generated from our radio station webghat were redesigned and
launched beginning in the second half of 2007 bfisea $0.2 million decrease in our CCM magazines.

BROADCAST OPERATING EXPENSH®Bo0adcast operating expenses decreased $5.9 miliah6%, to $124.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2008, from $130.8amiftor the same period of the prior year. On aesatation basis, broadcast
operating expense decreased $7.3 million, or 5t8%118.0 million for the year ended December D& compared to $125.2
million for the same period of the prior year. Tdecline in broadcast operating expenses includsamillion decrease in
advertising expenses, a $5.1 million decreaserisop@el related costs and a $0.3 million decreasational commissions
associated with lower revenues, offset by a $0IBomiincrease in music license fees, a $1.6 nmlliocrease in bad debt expense, a
$1.2 million increase in facility related expensésvhich $0.5 million is attributable to higher litif costs, a $0.3 million increase in
production and programming, and a $0.2 million &éase in LMA fees associated with operating raditicst KTRO-AM in Portland,
Oregon. We expect the trend of increasing bad egiense to continue given the weakened Unite@Sttonomy.

NON-BROADCAST OPERATING EXPENSHB$on-broadcast operating expenses increased $idhmor 12.8%, to $25.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2008, caenpéo $22.9 million for the same period of theopgiear. The increase includes
$1.2 million of costs associated with Townhall Mzige, a $0.6 million increase in advertising coat$0.3 million increase in
production costs associated with Xulon Press, & 8fllion increase in streaming expenses on OneRtam, a $0.2 million increase
in operating costs associated with Salem Consumzetuets, a $0.6 million increase in salary andteel&xpenses on Townhall.com,
and a $0.3 million increase in costs associateld miintenance of radio station websites.

CORPORATE EXPENSE&orporate expenses decreased $2.3 million, @%4,0to $20.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2008, compared to $22.3 million for the sameopleof the prior year. The decrease is attribletab an overall cost reduction
initiative, including a reduction in headcount thesulted in lower personnel related costs of $3l0on, a decrease of $1.2 million
of non-cash stock based compensation expense tioarily to substantially no new grants being offérand a decrease of $1.3
million in accounting service fees and public rejmgy costs, offset by a $1.6 million charge for reash stock-based compensation
expense associated with the accelerated expensumyested options voluntarily surrendered by memsloé senior management in
September 2008, a $0.4 million increase in bad egbenses, and a $1.2 million increase in salgpgese associated with employee
severance packages as a result of staff reductfesexpect the trend of increasing bad debt exptmsontinue given the weakened
United States economy

DEPRECIATION.Depreciation expense increased $1.3 million, 09%) to $13.3 million for the year ended December 31
2008, compared to $12.0 million for the same pedbthe prior year. The increase reflects the iohjph approximately $5.8 million
of capital expenditures made during the year em@kxbmber 31, 2007, that were primarily associatiéidl @@mputer software, data
processing and office equipment that have shostimated useful lives.

AMORTIZATION. Amortization expense decreased $0.2 million,.684] to $2.8 million for the year ended DecemberZD8,
compared to $3.0 million for the same period ofghier year. The decrease is due to higher anaitiz recognized in early 2007 on
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intangible assets such as advertising agreemedtsthar business contracts that were acquired @6 20th an estimated useful life
of one year.

COST OF DENIED TOWER SITE, ABANDONED PROJECTS ARRMINATED TRANSACTIONSTerminated transaction
costs and abandoned license upgrades of $1.3 mifiothe year ended December 31, 2008 consistifal projects that were
abandoned during the year and fees associatedheitfermination of our agreement to purchase KTR®+A Portland, Oregon.

IMPAIRMENT INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSET3n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 “Intangghe Goodwill
and Other,” we review the recorded values of adefinite-lived intangible assets including broatdaenses, goodwill, and
mastheads on an annual basis or more frequentniitions indicate that we may have an impairmenting the year ended
December 31, 2008, we recorded an impairment chlarg@3.0 million associated with the value of loast licenses and goodwill
in the Boston, Detroit, Cleveland, Louisville, Taaiami, Orlando, Sacramento, Omaha, and Nashwvifleket clusters. The
impairment charge resulted from weakening raditicstavaluations as a result of lower revenues amget growth expectations.
These trends are not specific to any of our indigidnarket clusters, but rather are affecting védna in the industry as a whole.
We acquired radio stations at various times oveddst thirty four years, many of which were anmati under prior accounting
standards. As a result, the carrying value oflmaadcast licenses and goodwill exceeds the fairevia impacted markets. For the
years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007, the reddravhich impairment charges were recorded du2io@8 accounted for
16.4% and 16.3% of total net revenues.

(GAIN) LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETSain on disposal of assets of $6.9 million for year ended December 31, 2008 was
primarily comprised of the sale of radio station WHEM, Louisville, Kentucky for $3.0 million resulig in a pre-tax gain of $1.1
million, the sale of radio station KTEK-AM, Houstofiexas for $7.8 million resulting in a pre-taxmgaif $6.1 million, partially
offset by various fixed assets disposals. A gainligposal of assets of $2.2 million for the yezderl December 31, 2007 was
comprised of the sale of selected assets of radims WKNR-AM in Cleveland, Ohio, for $7.0 milliowhich resulted in a pre-tax
gain of $3.4 million offset by the loss recognizedthe sale of selected assets of radio station W¥Rl, Nashville, Tennessee for
$0.9 million resulting in a pre-tax loss of $0.9lian and $0.7 million associated with various fixasset disposals.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)nterest income of approximately $0.2 million &ach of the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007 was primarily from interest earned on ss@ash. Interest expense decreased $3.1 millid®.2% to $22.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008, compared to $25i6mfibr the same period of the prior year due toveer net outstanding debt
balance and lower interest rates during the y€drange in fair value of interest rate swaps of $dilBon represents the change in
the fair market value of our swaps. Other incong, of $0.1 million for the year ended DecemberZD8 consists of non-recurring
reimbursements received, including $0.2 millionoasated with the terminated sale of KKMO-AM in StWashington, partially
offset with bank commitment fees associated withavedit facilities. Other income, net of $0.2 lioih for the year ended December
31, 2007 consisted primarily of royalty income frosal estate properties partially offset with banknmitment fees associated with
the credit facilities.

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXEB. accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740 “Income Takesr benefit
from income taxes was $19.2 million for the yeadeshDecember 31, 2008 compared to $7.4 millionHersame period of the prior
year. Provision for income taxes as a percenthgecome before income taxes (that is, the effectax rate) was 35.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2008 compared to 44.5% foratime period of the prior year. The effective tae far each period differs from
the federal statutory income rate of 35.0% dudeoeffect of state income taxes, certain expelsgste not deductible for tax
purposes, and changes in the valuation allowaree fhe utilization of certain state net operatioggsl carry-forwards.

INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, NET OF TARhe income from discontinued operations of $fifion, net
of taxes, for the year ended December 31, 2008des the gain of $1.3 million on the sale of WRRBLAMilwaukee, Wisconsin, a
$0.8 million gain on the sale of WFZH-FM, Milwauke&isconsin, and the operating resultsC@M Magazine The $1.0 million
loss from discontinued operations for the sameoplesf the prior year includes the operating resoiitthese entities as of the period
end without the gain from the sale and the $1.8aniloss previously recognized in association witl impairment of goodwill
associated witlcCM Magazine

NET INCOME (LOSS) We recognized a net loss of $33.1 million for yiear ended December 31, 2008 compared to net
income of $8.2 million for the same period of thmpyear. The change of $41.3 million is compdigd the $73.0 million
impairment of indefinite-lived intangible asset$@5 million decrease in operating income exclegif’the impairment loss, and a
$1.7 million increase in interest expense, inclesi¥the change in fair value of our interest staps, offset by the change on our
tax provision of $26.5 million, $4.7 million increain gain on disposal of assets and a $2.8 miliorease in income from
discontinued operations.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

The performance of a radio broadcasting companyssomarily measured by the ability of its statitmgenerate station
operating income. We define station operating ine@f80I") as net broadcast revenue less broadgestting expenses.
Accordingly, changes in net broadcast revenue apadzast operating expenses, as explained aboxe ahdirect impact on changes
in SOI.

SOl is not a measure of performance calculateddéoraance with GAAP. SOI should be viewed as gkupent to and not a
substitute for our results of operations presentethe basis of GAAP. Management believes thatiS@Iluseful non-GAAP
financial measure to investors, when consideremmunction with operating income, the most dinecthmparable GAAP financial
measure, because it is generally recognized byattie broadcasting industry as a tool in measuprgormance and in applying
valuation methodologies for companies in the meglidertainment and communications industries. f@asure is used by investors
and analysts who report on the industry to procioimparisons between broadcasting groups. Addifignalir management uses SOI
as one of the key measures of operating efficiepmfjtability and our internal review associatetthaour impairment analysis of
indefinite-lived intangible assets. SOl does napput to represent cash provided by operating #ietss Our statement of cash flows
presents our cash flow activity and our incomeestent presents our historical performance pregaradcordance with GAAP. SOI
as defined by and used by our company is not nagssomparable to similarly titted measures enyplb by other companies.

Year ended December 31, 2009 compared to year eBdegmber 31, 2008

STATION OPERATING INCOMESOI decreased $5.3 million, or 7.7% to $63.9iailfor the year ended December 31, 2009
compared to $69.2 million for the same period efphior year as a result of the changes in netdwast revenue and broadcast
operating expense explained above. As a percepfagst broadcast revenue, SOI increased to 37at%é year ended December
31, 2009 from 35.7% for the same period of therpr@ar. On a same station basis, SOI declined®8li®n, or 7.7%, to $63.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2009 fr@8.8 million for the same period of the prior yeds a percentage of same
station net broadcast revenue, same station S@ased to 37.8% for the year ended December 38, 20tnpared to 36.2% for the
same period of the prior year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of I5@ non-GAAP financial measure) to operating ineof@s presented in our
financial statements) for the year ended DecembgeP@09 and 2008:
Year Ended December 31,

2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Station operating income $ 69,232 $ 63,906
Plus non-broadcast revenue 28,377 27,158
Less non-broadcast operating expenses (25,867) (23,555)
Less corporate expenses (20,040) (14,005)
Less depreciation and amortization (16,136) (15,120)
Less cost of denied tower site, abandoned progexiderminated transactions (1,275) (1,111)
Less impairment of indefinite-lived intangible asse (73,010) (27,996)
Less gain (loss) on disposal of assets 6,892 (1,676)
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations $ (31,827) $ 7,601

Year ended December 31, 2008 compared to year eBdegmber 31, 2007

STATION OPERATING INCOMESOI decreased $6.0 million, or 7.9% to $69.2iarilfor the year ended December 31, 2008
compared to $75.2 million for the same period efphior year, as a result of the changes in netdirast revenue and broadcast
operating expense explained above. As a percenfags broadcast revenue, SOI decreased to 37 %d year ended December
31, 2008 from 36.5% for the same period of therpr@ar. On a same station basis, SOI declined ®4li®n, or 6.6%, to $68.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2008 fraf8.$ million for the same period of the prior yeds a percentage of same
station net broadcast revenue, same station S@eakeed to 36.8% for the year ended December 38, 208npared to 37.0% for the
same period of the prior year.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of 5@ non-GAAP financial measure) to operating ineof@as presented in our
financial statements) for the year ended DecembgP@08 and 2007:
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Station operating income $ 75,211 $ 69,232
Plus non-broadcast revenue 24,622 28,377
Less non-broadcast operating expenses (22,921) (25,867)
Less corporate expenses (22,314) (20,040)
Less depreciation and amortization (15,082) (16,136)
Less cost of denied tower site, abandoned proggatderminated transactions — (1,275)
Less impairment of indefinite-lived intangible asse — (73,010)
Less gain (loss) on disposal of assets 2,190 6,892
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations $ 41,706 $ (31,827)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMAT ES

The discussion and analysis of our financial caodiand results of operations are based upon msatidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordatit€&AAP. The preparation of these financial sta¢ats requires management
to make estimates and judgments that affect thertegh amounts of assets, liabilities, revenueseapanses, and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongdiagis, we evaluate our estimates, including thelséed to acquisitions and
upgrades of radio station and network assets, tevegtognition, allowance for doubtful accountgdeill and other non-intangible
assets, uncertain tax positions, valuation allowgdeferred taxes), long-term debt and debt couamnpliance, and stock-based
compensation. We base our estimates on historxgarzznce and on various other assumptions thaielieved to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which fitrerbasis for making judgments about the carry@lges of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourcesu® results may differ from these estimates unlifégrent assumptions or
conditions.

We believe the following accounting policies and thlated judgments and estimates are criticaluatogy policies that affect
the preparation of our consolidated financial stegets.

Accounting for acquisitions and upgrades of raditation and network assets

A majority of our radio station acquisitions hawnsisted primarily of the FCC licenses to broaduastparticular market. We
often do not acquire the existing format, or wergethe format upon acquisition when we find itdferial. As a result, a
substantial portion of the purchase price for thgets of a radio station is allocated to the brasidecense. It is our policy generally
to retain third-party appraisers to value radidistes, networks or non-broadcast properties. Tloeations assigned to acquired
broadcast licenses and other assets are subjegtiveir nature and require our careful consideraéind judgment. We believe the
allocations represent appropriate estimates ofdinealue of the assets acquired. As part ofvddeation and appraisal process, the
third-party appraisers prepare reports that assaures to the various asset categories in our ¢imhstatements. Our management
reviews these reports and determines the reasomssi®f the assigned values used to record théséamuof the radio station,
network or non-broadcast properties at the clogbefransaction.

We undertake projects from time to time to upgraderadio station technical facilities and/or FO@ddcast licenses. Our
policy is to capitalize costs incurred up to thénpavhere the project is complete, at which timetremsfer the costs to the
appropriate fixed asset and/or intangible asseigoates. When the completion of a project is caygint upon FCC or other
regulatory approval, we assess the probable fiemnefit of the asset at the time that it is recdraied monitor it through the FCC or
other regulatory approval process. In the evemtdiguired approval is not considered probabl&é@iptoject is abandoned, we write-
off the capitalized costs of the project.

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue when pervasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred or thecgehas been rendered,
the price to the customer is fixed or determinaiid collection of the arrangement fee is reasonaddured.

Revenue from radio programs and commercial aduegtis recognized when the program or commercibt@mdcast. Revenue
is reported net of agency commissions, which al®itzted based on a stated percentage applieadss @illing. Our customers
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principally include not-for-profit charitable orgaations and commercial advertisers. Revenue ftansale of products and services
from our non-broadcast businesses is recognized wigeproducts are shipped and the services agemeth. Revenues from the sale
of advertising in our magazines are recognized ypdolication. Revenues from the sale of subscmistim our publications are
recognized over the life of the subscription. Rewes from book sales are recorded by when shipateoirs.

Advertising by the radio stations exchanged fordgoand services is recorded as the advertisingpadioast and is valued at the
estimated value of goods or services received beteceived. The value of the goods and servamsved in such barter
transactions is charged to expense when used.e¥éed broadcast advertising provided in exchanggdods and services as
broadcast revenue and the goods or services receiexchange for such advertising as broadcashtipg expenses.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts fdinested losses resulting from the inability of @ustomers to make required
payments. An analysis is performed by applyingotsr percentages based on the age of the recei@abllether subjective and
historical analysis. A considerable amount of jmégt is required in assessing the likelihood amate realization of these
receivables including the current creditworthinesach customer. If the financial condition of austomers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to mafiayments, additional allowances may be required.

Accounting for discontinued operations

We regularly review underperforming stations, maftirly those in non-strategic formats, to detemifra sale might be a better
way to monetize the station assets. When a statignoup of stations is considered for sale, wéen the transaction to determine if
or when the entity qualifies as a discontinued apen in accordance with the criteria of FASB AS@pic 205-20 “Discontinued
Operations.” This pronouncement specifies thabferations and cash flow of the entity disposefiabe sold) have or will be
eliminated from the ongoing operations as a regfithie disposal and that we will not have significaontinuing involvement in the
operations after the disposal transaction. Wendedicluster as a group of radio stations operatitige same geographic market,
sharing the same building and equipment and beeagaged by a single general manager. General managecompensated based
on the results of their cluster as a whole, notrésalts of any individual radio stations. Therefove have determined that an entity
qualifies for a discontinued operation when managgirhaving the authority to approve the actiomts to a plan to sell the asset
(disposal group), the sale is probable, and theewdll result in the exit of a particular geographaarket.

We entered a plan to sell all radio stations inNtilevaukee market during 2007. We sold radio statwVRRD-AM in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin for $3.8 million on March 2808 and sold radio station WFZH-FM in Milwaukeeisébnsin for $8.1
million on May 30, 2008. We entered into an LMAthwvthe buyer of WFZH-FM effective as of February 2808, under which the
buyer began programming the station and payingjarityaof operational costs of the station. The@opanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations réfledperating results and net assets of the Miteastations as a discontinued
operation for the year ended December 31, 2008.

We ceased publishing ti@CM Magazineas of March 2008. The operating resultsG@M Magazinéhave been reported as a
discontinued operation as of this date. The acemyipg Consolidated Statements of Operations retihecoperating results of this
entity as a discontinued operation for the yeaedridecember 31, 2008.

On July 31, 2008, we entered into an asset purcdmgreement to sell radio station WRFD-AM in Colusb@hio for $4.0
million. As a result of the sale, we were to ¢k Columbus, Ohio market. The Consolidated Ba&tweets and Statements of
Operations for all periods presented were recliassés of the date of the asset purchase agreémeaftect the operating results and
net assets of this market as a discontinued operdirough December 2009. The sale was expecteldge in the fourth quarter of
2009. On December 30, 2009, the buyer of the rstditton advised us that they would not be ablaget the terms of the asset
purchase agreement. Because of the buyer termirtignagreement, we have reclassified the accomppa@ponsolidated Balance
Sheets and Statements of Operations for all pepogisented to reflect the operating results anésexts of this market in continuing
operations. In January 2010, we collected a $@llbmtermination fee from the buyer pursuant e asset purchase agreement.
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The following table sets forth the components ebime (loss) from discontinued operations as reifiedsnet of tax, for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009:
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Net revenue $ 3,229 $ 772 $ 3)
Operating expenses 4,816 841 193
Operating income (loss) $ (1,587) $ (69) $ (196)
Gain (loss) on sale of radio station assets — 3,360 (12)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $  (1,587) $ 3,291 $ (207)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (576) 1,525 (124)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neagf $ (1,011) $ 1,766 $ (83)

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets

Approximately 69% of our total assets consist diiimite-lived intangible assets, such as broadaastses, goodwill and
mastheads, the value of which depends significamfn the operating results of our businesseshdmrase of our radio stations, we
would not be able to operate the properties withiogitrelated FCC license for each property. Braatlicenses are renewed with the
FCC every eight years for a nominal cost that ge@sed as incurred. We continually monitor outicata’ compliance with the
various regulatory requirements. Historically,@lour broadcast licenses have been renewed anthef their respective periods,
and we expect that all broadcast licenses williooietto be renewed in the future. Accordingly, wasider our broadcast licenses to
be indefinite-lived intangible assets in accordanith Financial Accounting Standards Board Accongtbtandards Codification
(“FASB ASC") Topic 350, “Intangibles — Goodwill ar@dther.” We do not amortize goodwill or other ifidée-lived intangible
assets, but rather test for impairment at leashahnor more frequently if events or circumstancelcate that an asset may be
impaired. The unit of accounting used to test beaatllicenses is the cluster level, which we definga group of radio stations
operating in the same geographic market, shariagdime building and equipment and being managedsingle general manager.
Goodwill and mastheads, primarily attributable tw non-broadcast operating segment, are testéa dtusiness unit level, which we
define by publication or website. Broadcast licansecount for approximately 95% of our indefiniteetl intangible assets.

Goodwill and magazine mastheads account for thaireng 5%.

We complete our annual impairment tests in thetfogquarter of each year. Based on deterioratingroraconomic factors,
including declining radio industry revenues throogh2009 and a weakening in prevailing radio statiansaction multiples, we
tested our goodwill and other indefinite-lived inggble assets for impairment in the second, thidi f@urth quarters of 2009.

The valuation of intangible assets is subjective laased on estimates rather than precise caloudatibactual future results are
not consistent with the assumptions and estimated, we may be exposed to impairment charges ifuthee, the amount of which
may be material. The fair value measurementsdoiralefinite-lived intangible assets use significanobservable inputs that reflect
our own assumptions about the estimates that mpekétipants would use in measuring fair valududing assumptions about risk.
The unobservable inputs are defined in FASB ASCid 8R0 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosured’eagel 3 inputs
discussed in detail in Note 8 to our Consolidatethfcial Statements.

When performing our impairment testing for broaddiaenses we review the financial performancehefinarket clusters
against established internal benchmarks. Thediegt of our impairment testing process compareéatin value as determined from
valuations obtained in prior periods from an indegent third-party to the carrying value to deteriine degree by which the
amounts differ. We have historically discountee piior period appraised fair values by 25% to 78éfusting our discount
percentages higher each period beginning with 6082esting based on reduced revenues and oveagtetrconditions, including
declines in market values associated with radinostsales. If the discounted prior period failweaexceeded the carrying value of
the broadcast licenses, the assets were deeméal mimpaired. For our impairment reviews conmgdaduring 2009, we did not
discount the prior period appraised fair valueof Broadcast market cluster as in most marketsahging value has been reduced
to equal the fair value. Due to the number of nee@praisals, we compared actual operating reeasi®f the period end to the
projected revenues used in the most recent apfraidarkets with actual operating results that exiesl the projections, which were
not subject to changes in other assumptions sutifeaseighted average cost of capital, were deametb be impaired.

The second step of our impairment testing procesgpares the carrying value of the broadcast licefeeeach market cluster
including goodwill to the station operating inco(fi80I") for each market cluster including goodvals of the period end. If the
carrying value of the broadcast licenses was less $ix times the annualized SOI, the broadcastdies were deemed not to be
impaired. As radio stations are typically soldtbhe basis of a multiple of projected operating meausually up to a multiple of
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eight, we believe that a benchmark of six appeanservative even in today’s market. We evaluaae3®1 multiples used in our
testing based on market data available as of esting date.

For the market clusters that did not meet the matielbenchmarks, Bond & Pecaro, an independent-giartl appraisal and
valuation firm, was engaged to perform an appraitébe indefinite-lived intangible asset(s). BaadPecaro utilized an income
approach to value broadcast licenses. The incammach measures the expected economic benefitththbroadcast licenses
provides and discounts these future benefits wsidigcounted cash flow analysis. The discounteld ffas/ analysis assumes that the
broadcast licenses are held by hypothetical sfadtations and the values yielded by the discoucdst flow analysis represent the
portion of the stations value attributable solelyhie broadcast license. The discounted cashrfiodel incorporates variables such
as projected revenues, operating profit marging,aadiscount rate. The variables used reflecbhistl company growth trends,
industry projections, and the anticipated perforoganf the business. The discounted cash flow ptioje period was determined to
be ten years; which is typically the time radidistaoperators and investors expect to recover thegstments as widely used by
industry analysts in their forecasts.

The key assumptions used in the Bond & Pecaro sisdly estimate the fair value of each major categbassets in our
broadcast segment for each testing period werellasvé:

As of the interim testing period ended June 30, 2@0 Broadcast Licenses Goodwill
Discount rate 9.5% 9.5%
Market growth rates next 12 months (13.2%) - (15.2%) (13.2%) - (15.2%)
Out-year market growth range (0.2%) — 2.5% (0.2%) — 2.5%
Market share range 0.7% - 20.2% 0.7% - 20.2%
Operating profit margin range 4.7% - 40.9% 4.7% - 40.9%
As of the interim testing period ended September 3@2009: Broadcast Licenses Goodwill
Discount rate 9.5% 9.5%
Market growth rates next 12 months (2.0%) (2.0%)
Out-year market growth range 0.4% - 2.5% 0.4% - 2.5%
Market share range 0.7% - 15.3% 0.7% - 15.3%
Operating profit margin range 4.7% - 40.7% 4.7% - 40.7%
As of the annual testing period ended December 32009: Broadcast Licenses Goodwill
Discount rate 9.5% 9.5%

2010 Market growth rates (3.0%) (3.0%)
Out-year market growth range 0.3% - 3.8% 0.3% - 3.8%
Market share range 0.7% - 15.3% 0.7% - 15.3%
Operating profit margin range 4.7% - 38.3% 4.7% - 38.3%

We also test goodwill balances within the broadsagiment for impairment on an annual basis anddstwnnual tests when
there are indications of impairment. The firspsté our goodwill impairment test, used to idenfiigtential impairment, compares
the appraised fair value of the market clustenfiarkets with actual operating results that exced¢deestimates used in the appraisal
model to the carrying value of the market clusteriuding goodwill. If the appraised fair valueceeded the carrying value,
goodwill was deemed not to be impaired. For matkegters that were not appraised, we determinedhtplied fair value of the
market cluster as a multiple of SOI as noted insmaond test of the FCC license value. If the iieapfair value exceeded the
carrying value of the market cluster, goodwill veeeemed not to be impaired. Market clusters théhhdi meet these two tests were
subject to appraisal.

The second test of the goodwill impairment testdu® measure the impairment loss, compared dhieesppraised value or the
implied fair value of the market cluster includiggodwill to the carrying value of the market clustecluding goodwill. If the
carrying value exceeded these amounts, a lossegagimized in an amount equal to the excess.
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The results of our impairment testing for our broast segment for each testing period during the gieded December 31, 2009
were as follows:

As of the interim testing period ended June 30, 280
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Market Cluster internal benchmarks carrying value
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Yes 0.0% 1)
Portland, OR Yes 0.0% 1)
Colorado Springs, CO Yes 66.6%

Note (1) Markets with a 0.0% spread betweenvalue and carrying value were deemed to be impaised
of the balance sheet date with corresponding adprsts to the FCC license value recorded.

As of the interim testing period ended September 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Market Cluster internal benchmarks carrying value
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Yes 1.1%
Atlanta, GA Yes 0.0% Q)
Detroit, Ml Yes 0.0% Q)
Portland, OR Yes 0.0% Q)
Cleveland, OH Yes 0.0% Q)

Note (1) Markets with a 0.0% spread betweenviaine and carrying value were deemed to be impaired
as of the balance sheet date with correspondingstmdgnts to the FCC license value recorded.

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Market Cluster internal benchmarks carrying value
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Yes 4.6%
Atlanta, GA Yes 3.6%
Detroit, Ml Yes 0.0% (1)
Portland, OR Yes 3.4%
Phoenix, AZ Yes 17.1%
Honolulu, HI Yes 30.6%
Minneapolis, MN Yes 91.4%

Note (1) Markets with a 0.0% spread betweenvalue and carrying value were deemed to be impaised
of the balance sheet date with corresponding adprsts to the FCC license value recorded.

As a result of our review and valuation for theitesperiod ended December 31, 2009, we recograzae-tax impairment
charge of $0.2 million associated with the valubmfadcast licenses in the Detroit market. Theas mo goodwill impairment for
the testing period ended December 31, 2009. litiaddwe recognized (1) pre-tax impairment chardesng our September 30,
2009, interim review and valuation of $14.1 milliassociated with the value of broadcast licens#éiserCleveland, Atlanta, Detroit
and Portland markets; and (2) pre-tax impairmeat@s recognized during our June 30, 2009 integiriew and valuation of $12.1
million associated with the value of broadcastriges in the Dallas and Portland markets and $dlébmassociated with the value of
goodwill in the Dallas market. For the annual esviand valuation for the period ended DecembeRBQ8, we recognized
impairment charges of $73.0 million associated whihvalue of broadcast licenses and goodwill @Bbston, Detroit, Cleveland,
Louisville, Tampa, Miami, Orlando, Sacramento, Omaind Nashville market clusters.

These broadcast impairments were driven in paddmjining revenue at the industry and market lewddslining radio stations
transaction multiples and a higher cost of capithk impairments are indicative of a trend in thealdcast industry and are not
unique to the Company.

When performing impairment testing for our non-laheast indefinite-lived intangible assets, we revibw financial
performance of the reporting unit against establisinternal benchmarks. The first step of our impant testing compares the fair
value as determined from an independent third-fartize carrying value to determine the degree biglwthe amounts differed. We
have historically discounted the prior period apged fair values by 25% to 70%, adjusting our dist@ercentages higher each
period beginning with our 2008 testing based omiced revenues and overall market conditions. dfdiscounted fair value
exceeded the carrying value of the indefinite-liuaangible assets, the assets were deemed netitopaired.
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The second step of our impairment testing procesyared the carrying value of the indefinite-livethngible assets,
specifically mastheads and goodwill, for each répgrunit as of the testing date to the enterpralaee. Enterprise value is defined as
six times the net operating income for each repgrnit as of the trailing 12 months plus the ralovalue of the property, plant
and equipment of the operating unit. For the tggtieriod ended December 31, 2009, we used thel attiaperating income for
each reporting unit for the last twelve months. Mexdia entities are typically sold on the basia afultiple of projected operating
income, usually in excess of eight, we believe ghhenchmark of six appears conservative everdinyte market. We evaluate the
multiples used in our testing based on market desdlable as of each testing date. If the carryialge of the intangibles is less than
the enterprise value, the intangible assets amme@@ot to be impaired.

For the reporting units that did not meet the im¢benchmarks, Bond & Pecaro, an independent-fiarty appraisal and
valuation firm, was engaged to perform an apprat#he indefinite-lived asset(s). Bond & Pecaritiagd an income approach to
estimate the fair value of the businesses. Thenirecapproach measures the expected economic baheBesassets bring to the
holder. The fair value of the business may be esga@ by discounting these future benefits. Theodisied cash flow model
incorporated variables such as projected revempesating cash flow margins, and a discount rate. Viariables used reflect
historical company growth trends, industry projecsi, and the anticipated performance of the busifds discounted cash flow
projection period was determined to be ten yeahsghwis typically the time media and technologyp®uy investors expect to
recover their investments as widely used by inguatalysts in their forecasts.

The key assumptions used in the Bond & Pecaro sisdly estimate the fair value of each major categbassets in our non-
broadcast segment for each testing period duriegydlar ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Other indefinite-lived

As of the interim testing period ended June 30, 200 intandible assets Goodwill
Discount rate 9.0% 9.0%
Operating cash flow growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Long-term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Other indefinite-lived

As of the interim testing period ended September 3R2009: intangible assets Goodwill
Discount rate 17.0% 17.0%
Operating cash flow growth rate 3.5% 3.5%
Long-term growth rate 3.5% 3.5%

Other indefinite-lived

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009: intandible assets Goodwill
Discount rate 9.5% 9.5%
Operating cash flow growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Long-term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%

We also test goodwill balances within the non-bozestl segment for impairment on an annual basidatwleen annual dates
when there are indications of impairment. The fitsip of the goodwill impairment test is used tnidfy potential impairment; by
comparing the appraised fair value of the reporting to the carrying value of the reporting unitiuding goodwill. If the appraised
fair value exceeded the carrying value, goodwilswlaemed not to be impaired. For reporting unéswere not appraised, we used
the implied fair value of the reporting unit, otemprise value, as noted in our second test oiintleenal review. If the implied fair
value exceeded the carrying value, goodwill wasrknot to be impaired. If these criteria are net,ra second test was applied.

The second test of the goodwill impairment testdu® measure the amount of any impairment losapeoed either the
appraised fair value or the implied fair value ld teporting unit including goodwill to the carrgimalue of the reporting unit
including goodwill. If the carrying value exceedbeése amounts, a loss was recognized in an amquat ® the excess. During the
interim testing period for the second quarter d20ve recognized an impairment charge of $1.danilhssociated with the value of
goodwill and mastheads in our non-broadcast segnfemtthe interim testing period ended SeptemBe2809 and testing period
ended December 31, 2009, there were no impairmeodgnized.
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The results of our impairment testing process forrmn-broadcast segment for each testing periodgithe year ended
December 31, 2009 were as follows:

As of the interim testing period ended September 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Reporting Unit internal benchmarks carrying value
Salem Publishing Yes 26.1%

As of the interim testing period ended September 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Reporting Unit internal benchmarks carrying value
Salem Web Network Yes 35.5%
Townhall.com Yes 57.0%

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Reporting Unit internal benchmarks carrying value
Salem Publishing Yes 26.6%

The economic downturn over the last two years legstively impacted our ability to generate reventiég discount rate
assumptions used are based on an assessmentigktimherent in the future cash flows of the redpe market clusters and
reporting units. Cash flows and operating incomesich of our reporting units is contingent upamdbility of the entity to generate
revenues. Our radio stations are to varying degfepsndent upon advertising for their revenues.r@urbroadcast operating
entities are also dependent upon advertising rexzdnualuded in our broadcast valuation estimatesaa&3% decline in advertising
revenue for 2010 as compared to 2009 followed btoup2.5% increase in 2011 as compared to 20tided in our non-broadcast
valuation estimates are projected profit margingmfo 1.9% projected for 2010, increasing to 2i8%011. Failure to achieve the
anticipated growth rates and/or declines in exoéfisose amounts may result in future impairmessés, the amount of which may
be material.

Uncertain tax positions

We account for income taxes in accordance with FASIE Topic 740 “Income Taxes.” Upon the adoptiéthe provisions on
January 1, 2007 we had $3.0 million in liabilitire$ated to uncertain tax positions, including $®ifion recognized under FASB
ASC Topic 450 “Contingencies” and carried forwaraini prior years and $2.1 million recognized upoambn of the tax provision
changes as a reduction to retained earnings. dadlin the $2.1 million accrual was $0.1 milliofated interest, net of federal
income tax benefits. During 2008, we recognizegtedecrease of $0.2 million in liabilities and>ecember 31, 2008, had $3.7
million in liabilities for unrecognized tax benesitincluded in this liability amount were $0.1 nafi accrued for the related interest,
net of federal income tax benefits, and $0.1 millior the related penalty recorded in income tgxeese on our Consolidated
Statements of Operations. During 2009, we recegh&net increase of $0.1 million in liabilitiesdeat December 31, 2009, had $3.8
million in liabilities for unrecognized tax benedit Included in this liability amount were $0.1 lioih accrued for the related interest,
net of federal income tax benefits, and $0.1 millior the related penalty recorded in income tgxe@se on our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

A summary of the changes in the gross amount cfaagnized tax benefits for the year ended DeceBibe2009, is as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 3,659
Additions based on tax positions related to theenuryear 329
Additions based on tax positions related to prigirg 19
Reductions related to tax positions of prior years -
Decrease due to statute expirations (204)
Related interest and penalties, net of federab&mefits (49)
Balance as of December 31,2009 $ 3,754

43



Valuation allowance (deferred taxes)

For financial reporting purposes, we recorded aatidn allowance of $2.4 million as of December 3109 to offset a portion
of the deferred tax assets related to the stateperating loss carryforwards. Management requlasliews our financial forecasts
in an effort to determine our ability to utilizeetimet operating loss carryforwards for tax purpogescordingly, the valuation
allowance is adjusted periodically based on managémestimate of the benefit the Company will reedrom such carryforwards.

Derivative instruments

We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates.agtively monitor these fluctuations and use @ginre instruments from time
to time to manage the related risk. In accordaritie @ur risk management strategy, we use derivatisguments only for the
purpose of managing risk associated with an alésleiljty, committed transaction, or probable foasted transaction that is identified
by management. Our use of derivative instrumentg masult in short-term gains or losses that mayease the volatility of our
earnings.

Under FASB ASC Topic 815 “Derivatives and Hedginigé effective portion of the gain or loss on a e instrument
designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedgisggument shall be reported as a component of attraprehensive income (outside
earnings) and reclassified into earnings in theespariod or periods during which the hedged forechsansaction affects earnings.
The remaining gain or loss on the derivative insteat, if any, shall be recognized currently in @zgs.

On April 8, 2005, we entered into an interest mtap arrangement for the notional principal amai$30.0 million whereby
we were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.99% aspared to LIBOR on our then outstanding bank crieditity borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, was»apmately $0.9 million based on the difference betwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $3.1anillvhen the underlying bank credit facility wasterated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was $0.2 million. Effective on October N&0ve had elected a one-month
reset on our Term Loan C rather than the three Ima®et period. As this interest rate swap agraepwntained a three-month reset
period, the swap was no longer effective and ngdomjualified as a cash flow hedge. Changes ifahealue of this swap as of
October 1, 2008 were reported in current periodnme rather than deferred in other comprehensiveniec An additional $0.3
million of accumulated other comprehensive loss reatassified into interest expense as of Decerhp2009 in order to recognize
the impact over the same period in which the hedigetsaction affected earnings. On December 1,,20@%emaining $1.0 million
in accumulated other comprehensive loss was refitgbsito interest expense.

On April 26, 2005, we entered into an interest stap arrangement for the notional principal amafi$30.0 million whereby
we were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.70% aspared to LIBOR on our then outstanding bank crieditity borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, was>xpaiely $0.8 million based on the difference beiwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $2.9amillvhen the underlying bank credit facility washerated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was $0.3 million. Effective on October D&Qve had elected a one-month
reset on our Term Loan C rather than the three Imaset period. As this interest rate swap agreenantained a three-month reset
period, the swap was no longer effective and ngdomjualified as a cash flow hedge. Changes ifahealue of this swap as of
October 1, 2008 were reported in current periodnime rather than deferred in other comprehensiveniec An additional $0.3
million of accumulated other comprehensive loss reatassified into interest expense as of Decerhp2009 in order to recognize
the impact over the same period in which the hedgatsaction affected earnings. On December 1,,20@%emaining $0.7 million
in accumulated other comprehensive loss was refitabsto interest expense.

On May 5, 2005, we entered into a third interet# savap arrangement for the notional principal amad $30.0 million
whereby were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.58%6ompared to LIBOR on then outstanding bank tfadility borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, wasapmately $0.8 million based on the difference betwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $2.7anillvhen the underlying bank credit facility wasterated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was $0.3 million. Effective on October D&Qve had elected a one-month
reset on our Term Loan C rather than the three Imaset period. As this interest rate swap agreenantained a three-month reset
period, the swap was no longer effective and ngéomjualified as a cash flow hedge. Changes ifaihealue of this swap as of
October 1, 2008 were reported in current periodnme rather than deferred in other comprehensiveniec An additional $0.2
million of accumulated other comprehensive loss reatassified into interest expense as of Decerhp2009 in order to recognize
the impact over the same period in which the hedigetsaction affected earnings. On December 1, ,20@%emaining $0.6 million
in accumulated other comprehensive loss was refitabsto interest expense.
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Fair value accounting

FASB ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements anccldsures” established a single definition of faatue in generally
accepted accounting principles and expanded disgagquirements about fair value measurementspiidwasion applies to other
accounting pronouncements that require or pernit/edue measurements. We adopted the fair valaeigions for financial assets
and financial liabilities effective January 1, 2008e adoption had a material impact on our codatdid financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. We adopted fair valuigirons for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancalbilities effective January 1,
2009. This includes applying the fair value condegi) nonfinancial assets and liabilities iniljaineasured at fair value in business
combinations; (ii) reporting units or nonfinancésets and liabilities measured at fair value mjurzction with goodwill impairment
testing; (iii) other nonfinancial assets measurefdiavalue in conjunction with impairment assessits; and (iv) asset retirement
obligations initially measured at fair value. Thdoption of the fair value provisions of FASB ASCpi® 820 to nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities did not have a matkmapact on our consolidated financial positiorsukes of operations or cash flows.

The fair value provisions include guidance on howestimate the fair value of assets and liabilitiethe current economic
environment and reemphasizes that the objectieefair value measurement remains an exit priceelfvere to conclude that there
has been a significant decrease in the volumeearad bf activity of the asset or liability in reil@n to normal market activities,
guoted market values may not be representativaiofélue and we may conclude that a change iratialo technique or the use of
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate.

The degree of judgment utilized in measuring theviaue of financial instruments generally cortekato the level of pricing
observability. Pricing observability is affected dywumber of factors, including the type of finahénstrument, whether the financial
instrument is new to the market, and the charatiesispecific to the transaction. Financial instemts with readily available active
quoted prices or for which fair value can be meaddrom actively quoted prices generally will havhigher degree of pricing
observability and a lesser degree of judgmentzetilin measuring fair value. Conversely, finantiatruments rarely traded or not
guoted will generally have less (or no) pricing @ysbility and a higher degree of judgment utiliz@dneasuring fair value.

FASB ASC Topic 820 established a hierarchal disgl$ramework associated with the level of pricotgervability utilized in
measuring fair value. This framework defined theaels of inputs to the fair value measurement @ss@nd requires that each fair
value measurement be assigned to a level corresmptadthe lowest level input that is significaatthe fair value measurement in its
entirety. The three broad levels of inputs defibgdhe FASB ASC Topic 820 hierarchy are as follows:

* Level 1 Inputs—quoted prices (unadjusted) in @&ctharkets for identical assets or liabilities tiet reporting entity
has the ability to access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 Inputs—inputs other than quoted pricesuited within Level 1 that are observable for theeasr liability,
either directly or indirectly. If the asset or lidly has a specified (contractual) term, a Levéh@ut must be
observable for substantially the full term of tleset or liability; and

* Level 3 Inputs—unobservable inputs for the assdability. These unobservable inputs reflect émgity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions that marketijpantits would use in pricing the asset or liahjlégd are
developed based on the best information availabtee circumstances (which might include the répgréntity’s
own data).

As a result of the adoption of the fair value psims, we modified the assumptions used in meagtiim fair value of our
derivative positions. Specifically, we now inclutthe impact of our own credit risk on derivativebiities measured at fair value as
defined. Counterparty credit-risk adjustments gmgliad to derivatives, such as over-the-countelvdtives, where the base valuation
uses market parameters based on LIBOR interestuates. Not all counterparties have the same ttris#fias that implied by the
relevant LIBOR curve, so it is necessary to conside market value of the credit risk of the coupéety in order to estimate the fair
value of such an item. Bilateral or “own” credikiadjustments are applied to our own credit rigkermvwaluing derivatives measured
at fair value. Credit adjustments consider thengstiéd future cash flows between the Company arabiiaterparties under the terms
of the instruments and affect the credit risk amhluation of those cash flows, rather than atdaitime assessment of the current
recognized net asset or liability.

The fair value of our liabilities was impacted hyr @redit ratings as established by agencies ssidhoady’s Investor Services
(“Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”). The estited change in the fair value of these liabilitias|uding the credit risk and all
other market variables, was a gain of $1.5 milfienthe period ended December 31, 2009. We satiledutstanding swap
transactions on December 1, 2009 when we termir@iethen existing bank credit facilities, resudtim a loss of $2.3 million. The
loss represents the difference in the discountkbvas estimated in accordance with FASB ASC T8giz and the actual amount the
bank was willing to accept in an arms-length tratisa.
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As of December 31, 2009, each major category aftasaeasured at fair value on a non-recurring laasisategorized as
follows:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As of December 31, 2009: (Dollars in thousands)
Non-recurring assets subject to fair value measentm
Broadcast licenses $ 156,286 — — $ 156,286
Goodwill 483 — — 483
Other indefinite-lived intangible assets 1,961 — — 1,961
Total $ 158,730 — — $ 158,730

Long-term debt and debt covenant compliance

Our classification of borrowings under our Revolasrlong-term debt on our balance sheet is basedoassessment that, under
the terms of our Credit Agreement and after comsideour projected operating results and cash flfimwshe coming year, no
principal payments are required to be made. Thegections are estimates dependent upon a nuafitf@ctors including
developments in the markets in which we are opggati and economic and political factors, amongpfhctors. Accordingly, these
projections are inherently uncertain and our aatesiilts could differ from these estimates.

Stock-Based compensation

We have one stock option plan, The Amended andaRes1999 Stock Incentive Plan, (the “Plan”) unabich stock options
and restricted stock units are granted to emplqgydiezctors, officers and advisors of the CompaAymaximum of 3,100,000 shares
are authorized under the Plan, of which 1,341,8atstanding and 304,688 are exercisable as cdrbleer 31, 2009.

We account for stock based compensation underrthaspns of FASB ASC Topic 718 “Compensation—St@kmpensation.”
We record equity awards under the fair value methitid share-based compensation measured as ofdhedpte, based on the fair
value of the award. The exercise price of optisrexjual to the market price of Salem Communicatmemmon stock on the date of
grant. We use the straight-line attribution mettmdecognize share-based compensation costsloweetvice period of the award.
Upon exercise, cancellation, forfeiture, or expinatof stock options, or upon vesting or forfeitaferestricted stock units, deferred
tax assets for options and restricted stock uniiis multiple vesting dates are eliminated for emebting period on a first-in, first-out
basis as if each vesting period was a separatedawar

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, ‘rbwing Disclosures about Fair Value Measuremenighjth provides
amendments to the FASB ASC Subtopic 820-10 thatiregew disclosures regarding (i) transfers in amidof Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements and (ii) activity in Level 3 f@lue measurements. ASU 2010-06 also clarifiesting disclosures regarding (i) the
level of asset and liability disaggregation angféir value measurement inputs and valuation tiechas. The new disclosures and
clarifications of existing disclosures are effeetfor interim and annual reporting periods begigrafter December 15, 2009, except for
the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuamkesettlements in the roll forward of activitylievel 3 fair value measurements. Those
disclosures are effective for fiscal years begigrifter December 15, 2010, and for interim periwitlin those fiscal years. We are
currently evaluating the disclosure impact of agwpbn our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-Myltiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements” (*“ASUC2013"). ASU
2009-13 provides guidance for arrangements withtipleldeliverables. Specifically, the updated acting standard requires an
entity to allocate arrangement consideration atrtbeption of an arrangement to all of its delil#es based on their relative selling
prices. ASU 2009-13 also eliminates the residusthod of allocation and requires use of the retasi®lling-price method in all
circumstances in which an entity recognizes revdéauan arrangement with multiple deliverables. UAB09-13 is effective as of
January 2011 with early adoption permitted. We dbaxpect the adoption of ASU No. 13 to have a ngtampact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslatddate No. 2009-05, Fair Value Measurements ascld3ures (“ASU
2009-05"), which is effective for financial statentg issued for interim and annual periods enditer a&ugust 2009. ASU 2009-05
amends FASB ASC Subtopic 820-10 (“FASB ASC 820-10%e update provides clarification on the techagjfor measurement of
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fair value required of a reporting entity when atgd price in an active market for an identicability is not available. The adoption
of this statement did not have a material impacbanconsolidated financial position, results oémions or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, TheB-A&ounting Standards Codification TM and the lrehy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles—a replacement of A5 162 (“SFAS No. 168"), which is effective fonfincial statements issued
for interim and annual periods ending after Septamits, 2009. SFAS No. 168 created FASB ASC Subtbpic10 (“FASB ASC
105-10"). FASB ASC 105-10 identifies the sourceaofounting principles and the framework for sétecprinciples used in the
preparation of financial statements of nongovernalamtities that are presented in conformity viith GAAP (the GAAP
hierarchy). This standard had no impact on owrfaial position, results of operations or cash ow

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsadteents (“SFAS No. 165"), codified in FASB ASCl#opic 855-10,
which establishes accounting and disclosure stasdar events that occur after the balance sheetldda before financial statements
are issued or are available to be issued. It defimancial statements as available to be isswegliting the disclosure of the date
through which an entity has evaluated subsequemite\and the basis for that date, whether it beldibe the financial statements
were issued or the date they were available tssieed. We adopted SFAS No. 165 upon issuance.stridard had no impact on
our consolidated financial position, results of igens or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositidRSP”) No. SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2, Recognitiad Presentation of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairments (“FSP No. SFAS-2End SFAS 124-2"), which is codified in FASB ASDbtopic 320-10.
FSP No. SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 provide guidemdetermine whether the holder of an investmeit debt security for which
changes in fair value are not regularly recognineshrnings should recognize a loss in earningswhe investment is impaired.
This FSP also improves the presentation and disdosf other-than-temporary impairments on debtequity securities in the
consolidated financial statements. We adopted R&FSFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 beginning April 1020This FSP had no
impact on our consolidated financial position, tesaf operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 10hd Accounting Principles Board (“APB”") Opinion NAPB 28-1, Interim
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial InstrutegtFSP No. SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1"). FSP No. SH®7-1 and APB 28-1,
which is codified in FASB ASC Subtopic 825-10-58quire disclosures about fair value of financiatinments for interim reporting
periods of publicly traded companies as well aarinual financial statements. We adopted FSP NoSSF/-1 and APB 28-1
beginning April 1, 2009. This FSP had no impacbanconsolidated financial position, results oégiions or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 15Ddtermining Fair Value When the Volume and LeveRofivity for the
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased dddntifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly (‘FSlo. SFAS 157-4"). FSP
No. SFAS 157-4, which is codified in FASB ASC Sutits 820-10-35-51 and 820-10-50-2, provides aduttiguidance for
estimating fair value and emphasizes that evereifet has been a significant decrease in the volunrddevel of activity for the asset
or liability and regardless of the valuation tecjug(s) used, the objective of a fair value measaentmemains the same. We adopted
FSP No. SFAS 157-4 beginning April 1, 2009. TH&PFhad no impact on our consolidated financialtfpwsiresults of operations or
cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 1411Riccounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilitiessumed in a Business
Combination That Arise from Contingencies (“FSP BBAS 141(R)-1"). FSP No. SFAS 141(R)-1, whichaslified in FASB ASC
Topic 805, “Business Combinations,” addresses eafptin issues related to the measurement, accouantid disclosure of assets and
liabilities arising from contingencies in a busise®mbination. We adopted FSP No. SFAS 141(R)ehugsuance. This FSP had
no impact on our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. 141(Bjirg@ss Combinations (“FSP No. SFAS 141(R)"), whécbodified in
FASB ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations ,” whazintinues to require the treatment that all buissreombinations be
accounted for by applying the acquisition methoddé&f the acquisition method, the acquirer recogrigal measures the identifiable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and anngent consideration and contractual continges)as a whole, at their fair value
as of the acquisition date. Under ASC Topic 80Brahsaction costs are expensed as incurred. Tideugce in ASC Topic 805 will
be applied prospectively to business combinationsvhich the acquisition date is on or after thgibring of the first annual
reporting period beginning after December 15, 20U8.adopted ASC Topic 805 on January 1, 2009 ardrasult, we recorded a
gain of $1.6 million related to the acquisitionWwZAB-AM, Miami, Florida.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have historically financed acquisitions throbgirowings, including borrowings under credit fabk and, to a lesser extent,
from operating cash flow and selected asset dispnsi We expect to fund future acquisitions framstt on hand, proceeds from debt
and equity offerings, borrowings under our creddility, operating cash flow and possibly through sale of income-producing
assets. We have historically funded, and will ammito fund, expenditures for operations, admiaiiste expenses, capital
expenditures and debt service required by our tfadiities and the notes from operating cash floarrowings under our credit
facility and, if necessary, proceeds from the séleelected assets or radio stations.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents were $8.9 million on Béee 31, 2009 compared to $1.9 million as of theesperiod of the prior
year. As of December 31, 2009, we had workingteapf $24.1 million compared to $16.0 million five same period of the prior
year. The increase is working capital include§ 4 $nillion increase in cash.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Our cash flows from continuing operations are prilpalerived from our earnings from ongoing opewas prior to non-cash
expenses such as impairment losses, depreciatiantiaation, bad debt, and stock-based compensatidrchanges in our working
capital. Net cash generated from continuing op@ratincreased to $39.5 million for the year enBedember 31, 2009 from $38.0
million for the same period of the prior year.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our investing activities primarily relate to capixpenditures, strategic acquisitions or disposgiof radio station’s assets and
strategic acquisitions of non-broadcast businesiies.cash used in investing activities was $2.#ianifor the year ended December
31, 2009 compared to $21.8 million for the sameéogleof the prior year. The decrease of $18.9 millivas due to a $5.4 million
decrease in capital expenditures, a $8.7 milliccrekese in purchases of broadcast assets, a $lidhrdiécrease in non-broadcast
business purchases, a $5.0 million decrease indarthases and the favorable impact of a $1.7aniltiash reimbursement for tower
related costs during 2009, partially offset by e0$8illion decrease in proceeds from asset disposal

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities primarily relate to prodseand repayments under our credit facility, paymehcapital lease
obligations, payments of dividends and repurchasesir Class A Common Stock. Net cash used imfiiray activities increased to
$29.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 $25.0 million for the same period of the pry@ar. The increase includes
$232.5 million of cash used to pay our Term Loaar8 Term Loan C in full as of December 1, 2009,.$88illion of cash used to
redeem our 7 ¥% Notes, $2.9 million paid for feesoaiated with the issuance of our né@?® Notes offset by proceeds from our
new 9/:% Notes of $298.1 million compared to the samequkof the prior year in which we repaid $30.4 roiflion our credit
facility and redeemed $4.7 million of ou¥,% Notes.

Credit Facilities

Senior Credit Facility

On December 1, 2009, our parent company, Salem Qmigations Corporation entered into a new senieditfacility, which
is a revolving credit facility (“Revolver”). We beve that the Revolver will allow us to meet oungeing operating requirements,
fund capital expenditures, and satisfy our debtiserrequirements. The Revolver is a three-ye@rélion credit facility, which
includes a $5 million subfacility for standby lettef credit, a subfacility for swingline loansug to $5 million and an optional $10
million incremental facility under which we may nease the commitments available, subject to thes@nd conditions of the credit
agreement relating to the Revolver (the “Creditégmnent”). Amounts outstanding under the Revolver beerest at a rate based on
LIBOR plus a spread of 3.50% per annum or at theeBate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) pkmead of 2.50% per annum
plus 2.50%, at our option as of the date of deteation. Additionally, we pay a commitment fee oa tinused balance of 0.75% per
year. If an event of default occurs, the interagt may increase by 2.00% per annum. Amountsandstg under the Revolver may
be paid and then reborrowed at Salem’s discretitimowt penalty or premium.
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With respect to financial covenants, the Credité&gnent includes a maximum leverage ratio of 700@cand a minimum
interest coverage ratio of 1.5 to 1. The Credite®gnent also includes other negative covenantatbatustomary for credit facilities
of this type, including covenants that, subjeattoeptions described in the Credit Agreement,ictdhre ability of Salem and the
guarantors (i) to incur additional indebtedned}di make investments; (iii) to make distributiptsans or transfers of assets; (iv) to
enter into, create, incur, assume or suffer totexiyg liens; (v) to sell assets; (vi) to enter ittmsactions with affiliates; (vii) to
merge or consolidate with, or dispose of all orssabtially all assets to, a third party; (viii)poepay indebtedness; and (ix) to pay
dividends.

Senior Secured Second Lien Notes

On December 1, 2009, we issued $300.0 million jgradamount of 9% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due December
2016 (“9/:% Notes”) at a discount for $298.1 million resudtiim an effective yield of 9.75%. Interest is duel payable on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing Juned1b, ihtil maturity. We are not required to makiegpal payments on the
9°/,% Notes that are due in full in December 2016. Fheo Notes are guaranteed by all of our existing doimesstricted
subsidiaries. We are required to pay $28.9 milfenyear in interest on th&96 Notes. As of December 31, 2009, accrued interest
on %/:% Notes was $2.4 million. The discount is beingyained to interest expense over the term of théoMNotes based on the
effective interest method. As of December 31, 2@@proximately $16,000 of the discount has beeagmized as interest expense.

Prior Credit Facility

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Salem Communicatiomédihg Corporation (“Salem Holding”), was the baorer under our
prior credit facilities. The prior credit faciks included commitments of $75.0 million seniorused reducing revolving credit
facility (“revolving credit facility”), a $75.0 milon term loan B facility (“Term Loan B facility”and a $165.0 million term loan C
facility (“term loan C facility”). On December 2009, we used the proceeds of thig® Notes, a portion of the senior credit facility,
and approximately $27 million of cash on hand ttyftepay amounts outstanding under the Term Loand $71.2 million, the Term
Loan C of $160.0 million, and to fully repay alltstanding aggregate principal of $89.7 million ba ¥ %% Notes. We recorded a
loss of $1.7 million which included $1.1 million ahamortized bank loan fees on the prior creditifpc$0.1 million of unamortized
bond issue costs on the 7 3% Notes and $0.4 milidegal and dealer fees associated with thengptif the 7 %% Notes and prior
credit facility.

Swingline Credit Facility

On June 1, 2005, we entered into an agreementdairagyline credit facility (“Swingline”) with a beowing capacity of $5.0
million. The agreement was most recently amendeduoe 1, 2009 and had a borrowing capacity of 84ll&n. The interest rate
was the bank’s prime rate plus 0.75% per annuntoateral for the Swingline, we pledged our cogieroffice building. We
terminated the Swingline as of December 1, 2009.

7°1,% Notes

In December 2002, Salem Holding issued $100.0anilfirincipal amount of¥,% Notes. The indenture for th&.% Notes
contained restrictive covenants that, among otiags, limited the incurrence of debt by Salem Hajdand its subsidiaries, the
payment of dividends, the use of proceeds of sigelcifsset sales and transactions with affiliatbsotigh the use of an unrestricted
subsidiary, we repurchased $9.4 million of oti% Notes for $4.7 million in December 2008. Thiswsaction resulted in a $4.7
million pre-tax gain on the early retirement of tekhrough the use of an unrestricted subsidiag/repurchased $1.0 million of our
7%.% Notes for $0.3 million in April 2009. This trartseon resulted in a $0.7 million pre-tax gain oe #arly retirement of debt. As
of September 30, 2009, there was $89.7 million egage principal amount of thé/#6 Notes outstanding. Based on this principal
amount, Salem Holding was required to pay $7.0ionilper year in interest on th&.,% Notes. As of December 1, 2009, we used the
net proceeds from the offering of th&,% Notes, borrowings under the Revolver, and appnately $27 million of cash on hand to
fund the payment of consideration and certain aedéding to the early settlement of the Tendee©éind consent solicitation with
respect to the outstanding $89.7 million in aggregeincipal amount of the’/®6 Notes. Accrued interest on the tenderéde
Notes was also paid. Since all outstandifigg@Notes were tendered, accepted for payment angeibad, the indenture relating to
the 7/,% Notes was discharged.
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Summary of long-term debt obligations

Long-term debt consisted of the following at théabae sheet date indicated:

As of December 31, 2008 As of December 31, 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Revolving credit facility under senior credit fatyil $ — $ 15,000
Term loans under prior credit facility 232,467 —
9°s% senior secured second lien notes due 201 — 298,111
7 ¥2% senior subordinated notes due 2010 90,605 —
Seller financed note to acquire Townhall.com 1,295 —
Capital leases and other loans 1,008 936

$ 325,37t $ 314,047
Less current portion 3,766 78

$ 321,60¢ $ 313,969

In addition to the amounts listed above, we alsgehaterest payments related to our long-term dslibllows as of December 31,
2009:

Outstanding borrowings of $15.0 million under thevBIver, with interest payments equal to LIBOR #3us0% or
at prime rate plus 2.50%;

$300.0 million senior secured second lien noteb sémi-annual interest payments at an annual f&%%; and
Commitment fee of 0.75% on the unused portion efrévolver.

Credit Rating Agencies

On a continuing basis, credit rating agencies siscMoody'’s Investor Services (“Moody’s”) and Starttl& Poor’s (“S&P”)
evaluate our debt. On April 2, 2009, Moody’s dovatted our credit rating. The downgrade was prethpy the impact of the
downturn in the economy on our performance, possitddequate cushion under our financial coveramisrefinancing risk
associated with our pending debt maturities. Qredib, 2009, S&P placed our B- credit rating ad agbur CCC credit rating on
our 7%% Notes on CreditWatch with negative implaa$. This action was based on concerns regadiingeed for a
comprehensive intermediate-term refinancing. Otofer 19, 2009, S&P maintained our credit ratings.

In connection with our refinancing that was compieon December 1, 2009, both Moody's and S&P upgtanlir credit ratings.
On December 1, 2009, Moody'’s increase our ratingd2. On November 25, 2009, S&P upgraded our trating to B with a stable
outlook.

Impairment Losses on Goodwill and Indefinite-Livddtangible Assets

We have incurred significant impairment losses wéfpard to our broadcast indefinite-lived intangibksets. These losses are
attributable to the following variables as the misndrivers used in our assumptions that lead taropairment of broadcast licenses
and goodwill balances (1) an increase in the weigjlatverage cost of capital from 8.0% as of thénggteriod ended December 31,
2007 to 9.5% for the testing period ended DecerBheR009, (2) a decline in the estimated termimaat values assigned to the
broadcast licenses as a result of industry widéirgecin radio station transaction multiples, (3)exrease in projected future cash
flows from a range of 2.0% to 3.5% for the testiegiod ended December 31, 2007 to a range of 10024586 for the testing period
ended December 31, 2009, and (4) a significanireah projected revenues from up to a 12.6% irsgqaojected at the end of 2007
for the 2009 year to a 3.0% decline at the endd6®Zor 2010, followed by up to a 2.5% projectect@ase in 2011 as compared to
2010

We have also incurred significant impairment lossék regard to our non-broadcast indefinite-livathngible assets. These
losses were incurred as a result of our interimaiimmpent testing for the period ended June 30, 2088re was no impairment as of
the interim testing period ended September 30, 20@Be annual testing period ended December 319.2The losses were
attributable to the following variables as the migndrivers used in our assumptions that lead taropairment of mastheads and
goodwill balances: (1) an increase in the weiglateerage cost of capital from 8.0% as of the tegtergpd ended December 31, 2007
to 9.0% for the interim testing period ended Judg2B09, (2) a decline in the estimated terminahat values assigned to the assets
as a result of industry wide declines in the tataihber of magazines sold, (3) a decrease in pegjdature cash flows from 2.9% for
the testing period ended December 31, 2007 to 200%he interim testing period ended June 30, 2@0@, (4) a significant decline in
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projected profit margins from a range of 3.0% td020 as of the December 31, 2007 testing periodrémge of 0.5% to 6.0% as of
the June 30, 2009 interim testing period.

Cash flows and operating income for each of ouomépg units is contingent upon the ability of thetity to generate revenues.
Our radio stations are to varying degrees depengmom advertising for their revenues. Our non-bcaatioperating entities are also
dependent upon advertising revenue. The econormvatdion over the last two years has negatively ingzhour ability to generate
revenues. Included in our broadcast valuation egémare a 3% decline in advertising revenue f&a02% compared to 2009
followed by up to a 2.5% increase in 2011 as comgbéw 2010. Included in our non-broadcast valuagistiimates are projected profit
margins of 11.5% to 27.0% projected for 2010. Ded in excess of these amounts, declines thaneXxteyond calendar year 2010,
and/or failure to achieve the anticipated growtiesanay result in future impairment losses, theuwhof which may be material.

Given the current economic environment and ung#iéa surrounding the potential negative impacbonbusiness, there can
be no assurance that our estimates and assumpdigenrsling the duration of the ongoing economic down or the period and
strength of recovery, made for the purpose of ndefinite-lived intangible fair value estimatesIvgitove to be accurate. Using
market indicators from several industry analysts,amticipate the decline in revenues to level nff begin to show improvements of
between 2.0% to 2.5% for the year ended Decemhe2@1L as compared to the year ended DecembeD3Q, 2

The valuation of intangible assets is subjective laased on estimates rather than precise caloudatibactual future results are
not consistent with the assumptions and estimated, we may be exposed to impairment charges ifuthee, the amount of which
may be material. The fair value measurements foiraefinite-lived intangible assets use significanobservable inputs that reflect
our own assumptions about the estimates that mpekétipants would use in measuring fair valududing assumptions about risk.
If actual future results are not consistent with dssumptions and estimates used, we may be eximosaplairment charges in the
future, the amount of which may be material. Distaate assumptions are based on an assessmastrifk inherent in the future
cash flows of the respective market clusters apdrtang units.

The impairment charges recognized to date are ash-m nature and did not result in a violatiomof then existing credit
facilities or Revolver. However, the potential afdre impairment charges can be viewed as a negftbtor with regard to
forecasted future performance and cash flows. Wieugethat we have adequately considered the eciendomvnturn in our
valuation models and do not believe that the inmpaits in and of themselves are a liquidity risk.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2008 and 2009, Salem did not hayeelationships with unconsolidated entities oaficial partnerships, such
as entities often referred to as structured finamwcapecial purpose entities, which would have testablished for the purpose of
facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or otloatractually narrow or limited purposes. Aslsugalem is not materially
exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or dtesk that could arise if Salem had engaged thawlationships.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our aggregate cotiie obligations at December 31, 2009, and thenastd timing and effect
that such obligations are expected to have oniquidity and cash flow in future periods.
Payments Due by Period

Contractual Less than 1-3 3-5 More Than 5
Obligations Total One year years years years
(Dollars in thousands)
Long-term debt, including current portio 313,111 — 15,000 — 298,111
Interest payments on long-term debt (1) 204,318 9,505 58,997 57,857 57,959

Capital lease obligations and other loan 936 78 163 90 605
Operating leases 67,889 8,919 14,756 12,245 1,969
Total contractual cash obligations 586,254 38,502 88,916 70,192 388,644
I L] L} L | I
(1) Interest payments on long-term debt are basedenautstanding debt and respective interest ratésimterest rates on

variable-rate debt held constant through matutithe December 31, 2009 rates. Interest ultimgialg on these
obligations may differ based on changes in intenasts for variable-rate debt, as well as any piaterepayments or
future refinancing. See Note 6 to the accompangonsolidated financial statements for furtheaii&t
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates.agtively monitor these fluctuations and use @ginre instruments from time
to time to manage the related risk. In accordarite @ur risk management strategy, we use derivatisguments only for the
purpose of managing risk associated with an alésleiljty, committed transaction, or probable foasted transaction that is identified
by management. Our use of derivative instrumentg masult in short-term gains or losses that mayease the volatility of our
earnings.

Under FASB ASC Topic 815 “Derivatives and Hedginigé effective portion of the gain or loss on a e instrument
designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedgisggument shall be reported as a component of attraprehensive income (outside
earnings) and reclassified into earnings in theespatiod or periods during which the hedged forechsansaction affects earnings.
The remaining gain or loss on the derivative insteat, if any, shall be recognized currently in @zgs.

On April 8, 2005, we entered into an interest mtap arrangement for the notional principal amai$30.0 million whereby
we were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.99% aspared to LIBOR on our then outstanding bank crieditity borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, was»apmately $0.9 million based on the difference betwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $3.1anillvhen the underlying bank credit facility wasterated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was a $0.6 million gain and upon terminaifdhe swap we recognized a
$0.8 million loss. Effective on October 1, 200# had elected a one month reset on our Term Lo@th@r than the three month
reset period. As this interest rate swap agreeomnttined a three month reset period, the swaphwédenger effective and no
longer qualified as a cash flow hedge. Changéisarair value of this swap as of October 1, 20@8eneported in current period
income rather than deferred in other comprehensn@me. An additional $0.3 million of accumulatither comprehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense as of Decemp20Q9 in order to recognize the impact over theesperiod in which the hedged
transaction affected earnings. On December 1, 20@%emaining $1.0 million in accumulated othempoehensive losses was
reclassified into interest expense.

On April 26, 2005, we entered into an interest stap arrangement for the notional principal amafi$30.0 million whereby
we were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.70% aspared to LIBOR on our then outstanding bank crieditity borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, was>xpaiely $0.8 million based on the difference betwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $2.9amillvhen the underlying bank credit facility washerated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was a $0.5 million gain and upon terminaifdhe swap we recognized a
$0.8 million loss. Effective on October 1, 200& had elected a one month reset on our Term Laath@r than the three month
reset period. As this interest rate swap agreeowmnttined a three month reset period, the swaphwédenger effective and no
longer qualified as a cash flow hedge. Changéisarair value of this swap as of October 1, 20@8eneported in current period
income rather than deferred in other compreherisa@me. An additional $0.3 million of accumulatettier comprehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense as of Decemp20@9 in order to recognize the impact over theesperiod in which the hedged
transaction affected earnings. On December 1, 20@%emaining $0.7 million in accumulated othempoehensive losses was
reclassified into interest expense.

On May 5, 2005, we entered into a third interet# savap arrangement for the notional principal amad $30.0 million
whereby we were to pay a fixed interest rate 08%%s compared to LIBOR on then outstanding baeditcfacility borrowing.
Interest expense for year ended December 31, 2e39approximately $0.8 million based on the diffeeebetween the interest
rates. The swap was settled on December 1, 2002f@ million when the underlying bank credit fagiwas terminated. The
ineffective portion of this swap reported in cutrperiod expenses was a $0.5 million gain and uponination of the swap we
recognized a $0.7 million loss. Effective on Oaplh, 2008, we had elected a one month reset ofiean Loan C rather than the
three month reset period. As this interest ratepsagreement contained a three month reset pénedwap was no longer effective
and no longer qualified as a cash flow hedge. Gésin the fair value of this swap as of Octobeé2QD8 were reported in current
period income rather than deferred in other congmsive income. An additional $0.2 million of acaueated other comprehensive
loss was reclassified into interest expense asgkbber 1, 2009 in order to recognize the impaet the same period in which the
hedged transaction affected earnings. On Decemt#80B, the remaining $0.6 million in accumulatéideo comprehensive losses
was reclassified into interest expense.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Salem Communications Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgieets of Salem Communications Corporation absidiaries (collectively,

the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008thedelated consolidated statements of operat&inskholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the pesnded December 31, 2009. Our audits also inclidedinancial statement
schedule of the Company listed in Item 15(a). THewmncial statements and financial statement salleeare the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sgean opinion on these financial statements basedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8lo/United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet éndibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintmgcial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examinotga test basis, evidence supporting the amoutsisclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing ttwuating principles used and significant estimatesle by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement predemaWe believe that our audits provided a reabtenhasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagrferred to above present fairly, in all materspects, the financial position of
Salem Communications Corporation and subsidiasesf @ecember 31, 2009 and 2008, and the resuttseafoperations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the pleeisded December 31, 2009, in conformity with W&herally accepted accounting
principles. Also, in our opinion, the related firtéal statement schedule, when considered in oglat the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presentyg faiall material respects the information settictherein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrat&ements, the Company has adopted the progigbiStatement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (R), “Business Contina,” codified in Accounting Standards Codificati(ASC) Topic No. 805,
and the remaining provisions of Statement of Fir@nccounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Meaastents,” codified in ASC
Topic No. 820 on January 1, 2009.

We were not engaged to examine management’s assessh the effectiveness of Salem Communicationsp@ation and
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial refiog as of December 31, 2009, included in the agaming Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportamgl, accordingly, we do not express an opiniorethre

SingerLewak LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 12, 2010
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SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per shaeta)

December 31,

ASSETS 2008 2009

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,892 $ 8,945

Restricted cash — 100

Trade accounts receivable (less allowance for douétcounts of $8,821 in 2008 and

$10,303 in 2009) 28,530 27,289

Other receivables 304 282

Prepaid expenses 2,540 3,177

Deferred income taxes 5,670 4,700
Total current assets 38,936 44,493
Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulagg@etiation of $94,553 in 2008 and
$107,14:in 2009) 133,910 121,174
Broadcast licenses 398,135 375,317
Goodwill 18,230 17,642
Other indefinite-lived intangible assets 2,892 1,961
Amortizable intangible assets (net of accumulatedréization of $16,706 in 2008 and
$18,412 in 2009) 4,452 2,881
Bond issue costs 268 7,078
Bank loan fees 981 1,515
Notes receivable 2,881 2,673
Other assets 7,033 4,311
Total assets $ 607,718 $ 579,045

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 919 $ 1,758
Accrued expenses 5,748 5,318
Accrued compensation and related expenses 5,463 4,677
Accrued interest 983 2,450
Deferred revenue 5,672 6,005
Income tax payable 346 87
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lealskgations 3,766 78
Total current liabilities 22,897 20,373
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, ¢eseent portion 321,609 313,969
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements 7,898 —
Deferred income taxes 43,106 38,973
Deferred revenue 7,877 7,728
Other liabilities 1,215 803
Total liabilities 404,602 381,846

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Class A common stock, $0.01 par value; authoriZ@8@,000 shares; 20,437,742

issued and 18,120,092 outstanding at December08B &nd 2009 204 204
Class B common stock, $0.01 par value; authorife@®,000 shares; 5,553,696
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2008 ar@ 200 56 56
Additional paid-in capital 228,251 228,839
Retained earnings 10,452 2,106
Treasury stock, at cost (2,317,650 shares at Dezegih 2008 and 2009) (34,006) (34,006)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,841) —
Total stockholders’ equity 203,116 197,199
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 607,718 $ 579,045

See accompanying no
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SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per shasta)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009

Net broadcast revenue $ 206,055 $ 194,113 $ 172,055
Non-broadcast revenue 24,622 28,377 27,158
Total revenue 230,677 222,490 199,213
Operating expenses:

Broadcast operating expenses exclusive of depieciahd

amortization shown below (including $1,239, $1,25f6 $1,246

for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 ar@, 200

respectively, paid to related parties) 130,844 124,881 108,149

Non-broadcast operating expenses exclusive of digpi@ and

amortization shown below 22,921 25,867 23,555

Corporate expenses exclusive of depreciation aradtaation

shown below (including $368, $188 and $135 forythars ended

December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, tpaielated

parties) 22,314 20,040 14,005

Depreciation (including $761, $1,506 and $1,965leryears
ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respsgtioehnon-
broadcast businesses) 12,047 13,333 13,441

Amortization (including $2,885, $2,720 and $1,6@dthe years
ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respsgtioehon-

broadcast businesses) 3,035 2,803 1,679
Cost of denied tower site, abandoned projects emmditated
transactions — 1,275 1,111
Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets — 73,010 27,996
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets (2,190) (6,892) 1,676
Total operating expenses 188,971 254,317 191,612
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations 41,706 (31,827) 7,601
Other income (expense):
Interest income 183 247 290
Interest expense (25,488) (22,381) (20,079)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps — (4,827) (781)
Gain on bargain purchase — — 1,634
Gain (loss) on early redemption of long-term debt — 4,664 (1,050)
Other income (expense), net 164 121 (88)
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes 16,565 (54,003) (12,473)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 7,379 (19,151) (4,210)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 9,186 (34,852) (8,263)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netaf (1,011) 1,766 (83)
Net income (loss) $ 8,175 $ (33,086) $ (8,346)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (2,267) (480) —
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 5,908 $ (33,566) $ (8,346)

See accompanying notes
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SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sharg¢aja

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009

Basic earnings per share data:

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing

operations $ 0.39 $ (1.47) $ (0.35)

Income (loss) per share from discontinued

operations (0.04) 0.07 —

Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.34 (1.40) (0.35)
Diluted earnings per share data:

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing

operations $ 0.39 $ (1.47) $ (0.35)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.04) 0.07 —

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.34 (2.40) (0.35)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 23,785,015 23,671,288 23,803,864
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 23,788,568 23,671,288 23,803,864

See accompanying notes
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Stockholders’
equity, December
31, 2006

Options exercised
and lapse of
restricted shares
Tax benefit related
to stock options
exercised

Class A common
stock shares
repurchased

Adoption of FIN 48

Dividends
Stock-based
compensation

Net unrealized
income on interest
rate swaps

Net income
Stockholders'
equity, December
31, 2007

Lapse of restricted
shares

Tax benefit related
to stock options
exercised
Stock-based
compensation

Net unrealized
(loss) on interest
rate swaps

Change in fair value
of interest rate
swaps

Net loss

Stockholders'
equity, December
31, 2008
Stock-based
compensation
Change in fair value
of interest rate
swaps

Termination of
interest rate swaps

Net loss

Stockholders'
equity, December
31, 2009

SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Dollars in thousands, except share data

Class A Class B Accumulated
Common Stock Common Stock Additional Other
Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total
20,424,242 204 5,553,696 56 221,466 47,433 (32,218) 775 237,716
8,500 — — — 29 — — — 29
— — — — 1 — — — 1
— — — — — — (1,788) - (1,788)
— — — — — (2,060) — = (2,060)
— — — — — (10,010) — — (10,010)
— — — — 3,382 — — = 3,382
— _ — — — — — (2,267) (2,267)
— — — — — 8,175 — — 8,175
20,432,742 204 5,553,696 56 224,878 43,538 (34,006) (1,492) 233,178
5,000 — — — — — — — —
— — — — @ — - — ®
— — — — 3,374 — — — 3,374
— — — — — — — (480) (480)
131 131
— — — — — (33,086) — — (33,086)
20,437,742 204 5,553,696 56 228,251 10,452 (34,006) (1,841) 203,116
— — — — 588 — — — 588
— — — — — — — 482 482
— — — — — — — 1,359 1,359
— — — — — (8,346) — — (8,346)
20,437,742 204 5,553,696 56 228,839 2,106 (34,006) — 197,199

See accompanying notes
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SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from conitiguoperations to
operating activities:
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond issue costs and bank loas fe
Amortization and accretion of financing items
Provision for bad debts
Deferred income taxes
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

(Dollars in thousand$

net cash provided by

Cost of denied tower site, abandoned projects emdinated transactions

Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Gain on bargain purchase
(Gain) loss on early redemption of debt
Non cash interest charges related to interessreaps
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Income taxes payable
Net cash provided by continuing operating ati&si
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Deposits on radio station acquisitions
Purchases of broadcast businesses and assets
Purchases of non-broadcast businesses
Purchases of real estate from principal stocldrsld
Proceeds from the disposal of assets
Reimbursement of tower relocation costs
Other
Net cash used in investing activities of aounitig operations
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repurchase of Class A common stock
Payments of costs related to bank credit fagditi
Payments of bond issue costs
Payments to terminate interest rate swap agresmen
Payments to redeenr®/,% Note:
Proceeds from issuanc¥s36 Notes, net of original issue discount
Proceeds from borrowings under credit facilities
Payments of long-term debt and notes payable
Net borrowings and repayment of Swingline créatility
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Tax benefit related to stock options exercised
Payment of cash dividend on common stock
Payments on capital lease obligations and dali@nced note
Restricted cash
Book overdraft
Net cash used in financing activities

See accompanying notes
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
9,186 $ (34,852) $ (8,263)
3,382 3,374 588

15,082 16,136 15,120
1,161 1,161 1,400
102 49 21
3,233 5,006 4,881
6,351 (18,145) (3,161)
— 4,827 781
= 1,275 1,111
— 73,010 27,996
(2,190) (6,892) 1,676
— — (1,634)
= (4,664) 1,050
— — 1,841
(1,333) (3,023) (3,618)
(291) 81 (430)
(4,535) (1,396) 643
592 1,844 127
156 (128) (401)
87 238 (260)
30,983 37,901 39,468
(15,895) (9,084) (3,731)
(1,237) (2,725) 2,725
— (12,418) (3,745)
(987) (1,339) —
— (5,013) —
7,972 9,253 353
— — 1,742
(1,165) (491) (195)
(11,312) (21,817) (2,851)
(1,788) — —
— — (2,850)
— — (7,163)
— — (8,679)
— (4,698) (89,945)
— — 298,095
18,000 15,000 15,000
(27,331) (30,402) (232,468)
1,711 (2,952) —
29 — =
1 (1) —
(10,010) — =
(32) (1,396) (1,371)
— — (100)
(1,434) (555) —
(20,854) (25,004) (29,481)




SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(Dollars in thousand3

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Operating cash flows 984 (1,485) (83)
Investing cash flows (64) 11,850 —
Total cash inflow (outflows) from discontirieperations 920 10,365 (83)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (263) 1,445 7,053
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 710 447 1,892
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 447 $ 1,892 $ 8,945
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest 28,892 17,974 14,200
Income taxes 368 428 314
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Assets acquired through capital lease olitigat 800 — —
Capital expenditures 286 — —
Note receivable acquired in exchange foraatttion — 1,500 —

See accompanying notes
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SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeinBlem Communications Corporation (“Salem” "We'ttee “Company”)
include the Company and its wholly-owned subsidmriAll significant intercompany balances andgeations have been
eliminated.

The Company is a holding company with substantiatiyassets, operations or cash flows other thanvéstments in
subsidiaries. The Company, excluding its subsieliais herein referred to as Parent. In May 28®® Company formed Salem
Communications Holding Corporation (“Salem Holdipngd Delaware corporation with substantially noceéssoperations or cash
flows other than its investments in subsidiari8alem Holding was the issuer of the 7%.% Senior Rlibated Notes due 2010
(“7%% Notes”) discussed in Note 6. The Guaran@rare wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Compatiiy,comprise substantially all
the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries @ijchave fully and unconditionally guaranteed aijpoint and several basis and the
7¥.% Notes. On June 30, 2008, the Company compéetedrganization of certain legal entities. Unifhés reorganization, Salem
Holding now owns all operating assets of the Comgpther than CCM Communications, Inc. The opegasiasets of CCM
Communications, Inc. remain owned by Salem Holdiige reorganization did not impact the Consolid&alance Sheets and
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On December 12, 2008, the Company formed Salenstmant Corporation (“SIC”), a wholly-owned subsigiaf Salem
Communications Corporation. SIC issued a promisaote to Salem Holding in the amount of $4.75imill On December 18,
2008, SIC purchased $9.4 million of Salem Holding%:% Notes (“Notes”) at a 50% discount from a grotiNote holders. Salem
Holding agreed to cancel the outstanding promissotg in exchange for the cancellation by SIC efT#49% Notes. On a
consolidated basis, the transaction resulted ih.a fillion pre-tax gain on the early retirementebt. On April 7, 2009, SIC
issued a promissory note to Salem Holding in thewrhof $0.3 million. On April 9, 2009, SIC purdea $1.0 million of Salem
Holding’s 7%% Notes for $0.3 million. Salem Holdiagreed to cancel the outstanding promissoryinagchange for the
cancellation by SIC of the 7 %% Notes. On a cadat#d basis, the transaction resulted in a $0llfompre-tax gain on the early
retirement of debt.

Description of Business

Salem is a domestic U.S. radio broadcast compahighvwas traditionally provided talk and music peogming targeted at
audiences interested in Christian and family issi&em operated 94 radio stations across theetlSitates at December 31, 2008
and 2009. We also own and operate Salem Radiodik®“SRN"), SRN News Network (“SNN"), Salem Musitetwork
(“SMN"), Reach Satellite Network (“RSN”), Salem MadRepresentatives (“SMR”) and Vista Media Représgres (“VMR”).

SRN, SNN, SMN and RSN are radio networks, whictdpoe and distribute talk, news and music progrargriarradio stations in
the U.S., including some of Salem'’s stations. SAfEd VMR sell commercial air time to national adigents for Salem’s radio
stations and networks, and for independent raditost affiliates.

In addition to our radio broadcast business, we aign and operate a non-broadcast media divisibis. division consists of
Salem Web Network (“SWN?"), a provider of online @tian and conservative-themed content and stregrSialem Publishing™, a
publisher of Christian magazines and Xulon Pteagrovider of print-on-demand publishing servitageting the Christian
audience. SWN'’s content, both in text and audio,lmaaccessed through our national portals thatdecOnePlace.com,
Crosswalk.corfy Christianity.com and Townhall.c6mSWN’s content can also be accessed through oat fadio station websites,
which provide content of interest to local listemeWe also own and operate Salem Consumer Productsiline site providing
books, DVD’s and editorial content. The revenue eelated operating expenses of these businessesparted as “non-broadcast”
on the consolidated Statements of Operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments, ghased with an initial maturity of three monthdess, to be cash equivalents.
The carrying value of our cash equivalents apprakéu fair value at each balance sheet date.
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Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes amounts that are conathgtestricted in connection with a security agneat between the Company
and Traveler’s Insurance.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when pervasive evidersme afrangement exists, delivery has occurred osehdce has been
rendered, the price to the customer is fixed oerheinable and collection of the arrangement feeasonably assured.

Revenues from radio programs and commercial advegtare recognized when the program or advertisemmdroadcast.
Revenue is reported net of agency commissions,hidrie calculated based on a stated percentagedpplgross billing. Salem'’s
broadcasting customers principally include notgoofit charitable organizations and commercial atisers. Internet related
revenues are recognized upon their delivery, eitireugh the number of impressions or length oétwhthe advertisement
placement.

Revenues from the sale of products and services énar non-broadcast businesses are recognized tlvbgmoducts are shipped
and the services are rendered. Revenues fronatb®fadvertising in Salem Publishing’s publicatiare recognized upon
publication. Revenues from the sale of subscHistim Salem Publishing’s publications are recoghizeer the life of the
subscription. Revenues from book sales are reddsgeXulon Press when shipment occurs.

Advertising by the radio stations exchanged fordgoand services is recorded as the advertisingedioast and is valued at the
estimated value of goods or services received beteceived. The value of the goods and servexesved in such barter
transactions is charged to expense when usederBatvertising revenue included in broadcast reedouthe years ended December
31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 was approximately $5.4anijl$4.9 million and $5.0 million, respectivelyncabarter expenses were
approximately the same as barter revenue for eagbdy We record broadcast advertising provideeiichange for goods and
services as broadcast revenue and the goods acesereceived in exchange for such advertising@adzast operating expenses.

Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has one employee compensation platrilged more fully in “Note 11. Stock Option PlanWe account for stock
based compensation in accordance with the prosdirinancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBEcounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718 “Compensation—Stoclo@pensation.” We account for equity awards underfair value method
with share-based compensation measured as ofdné dpte, based on the fair value of the awarce é}dercise price of options is
equal to the market price of Salem Communicati@mron stock on the date of grant.

We use the straight-line attribution method to ggipe share-based compensation costs over thesqreiiod of the award.
Upon exercise, cancellation, forfeiture, or expinatof stock options, or upon vesting or forfeitaferestricted stock units, deferred
tax assets for options and restricted stock unifs multiple vesting dates are eliminated for eaehting period on a first-in, first-out
basis as if each vesting period was a separatelaivarcalculate the excess tax benefits availablef the date of adoption for use in
offsetting future tax shortfalls, we followed thigeanative transition method discussed in the FASEC Topic 718.

Accounting For Upgrades of Radio Station and Netwde Assets

From time to time we undertake projects to upgrauateradio station technical facilities and/or Fed€@ommunications
Commission (“FCC”) licenses. Our policy is to dapize costs up to the point where the projecbimglete, at which point we
transfer the costs to the appropriate fixed ags#oa intangible asset categories. In certaincagdeere a project's completion is
contingent upon FCC or other regulatory approval will assess the probable future benefit of tteetaat the time that it is recorded
and monitor it through the FCC or other regulatapproval process. If the required approval iscaoisidered probable or the project
is abandoned, we write-off the capitalized costthefproject.

Accounting for Discontinued Operations
We regularly review underperforming stations, mattirly those in non-strategic formats, to detemifra sale might be a better

way to monetize the station assets. When a statignoup of stations is considered for sale, wéen the transaction to determine if
or when the entity qualifies as a discontinued apen in accordance with the criteria of FASB AS@b®pic. 205-20, “Discontinued
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Operations.” This pronouncement specifies thabferations and cash flow of the entity disposefiabe sold) have or will be
eliminated from the ongoing operations as a regfithie disposal and that we will not have significaontinuing involvement in the
operations after the disposal transaction. Wendedicluster as a group of radio stations operatitige same geographic market,
sharing the same building and equipment and beengaged by a single general manager. General Meagecompensated based
on the results of their cluster as a whole, notrésalts of any individual radio stations. Therefove have determined that an entity
qualifies for a discontinued operation when managgirhaving the authority to approve the actiomts to a plan to sell the asset
(disposal group), the sale is probable, and theewsdll result in the exit of a particular geographiarket. The markets and entities
that we have accounted for as a discontinued dparate explained in more fully in “Note 3 — Sigo#nt Transactions.”

Accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atlesstaccumulated depreciation. Cost representsist@ical cost of acquiring
the asset, including the costs necessarily incuodxting it to the condition and location necegdar its intended use. For assets
constructed for our own use, such as towers arldibgithat are discrete projects for which costssaparately accumulated and for
which construction takes considerable time, wenetcapitalized interest. The amount capitalizetthéscost that could have been
avoided had the asset not been constructed ardésiton the average accumulated expenditures étcaver the capitalization
period at the weighted average rate applicableitmatstanding variable rate debt. We capitalinéerest of $0.4 million and
$45,000 during the years ended December 31, 2002@00, respectively. Repair and maintenance esstsharged to expense as
incurred. Capital improvements are capitalized mtiey extend the life of the asset or enhancetiadity or ability of the asset to
benefit operations. Depreciation is computed ustilegstraight-line method over estimated usef@dias follows:

Category Life

Buildings 40 years

Office furnishings and equipment 5-10 years
Antennae, towers and transmitting equipment 20 years

Studio and Production equipment 10 years
Computer software and website development costs 3 years

Record and tape libraries 5 years
Automobiles 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lesser of 15 years®ofifease

The carrying value of property, plant and equipniemvaluated periodically in relation to the opieig performance and
anticipated future cash flows of the underlyingioagtations and businesses for indicators of inmpairt. When indicators of
impairment are present and the cash flows estintated generated from these assets is less thaathgng value of these assets, an
adjustment to reduce the carrying value to therfarket value of the assets is recorded, if necgs$do adjustments to the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment were ndadieg the years ended December 31, 2007, 2002609

Accounting for Internally Developed Software and Wekite Development Costs

We capitalize costs incurred during the applicatiermelopment stage related to the developmentteifrial-use software as
specified in FASB ASC Topic 350-40 “Internal-Useft3@re.” Capitalized costs are generally amortiaedr the estimated useful
life of three years. Costs incurred related todtweceptual design and maintenance of internal-offéeare are expensed as incurred.
Website development activities include planningigie and development of graphics and content farwebsites and operation of
existing sites. Costs incurred that involve prawdadditional functions and features to the webaie capitalized. Costs associated
with website planning, maintenance, content devakat and training are expensed as incurred. Qiapitiecosts are generally
amortized over the estimated useful life of threarg. We capitalized $1.2 million, $1.8 milliondg$il.2 million during the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respegtretdted to internally developed software and sitebdevelopment costs.
Amortization expense of amounts capitalized wag $dillion, $0.7 million and $1.3 million for the ges ended December 31, 2007,
2008 and 2009, respectively.

Accounting for Amortizable Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost less acateduhmortization. Typically, intangible assetgehaeen acquired in
conjunction with the acquisition of various radtatens and non-broadcast businesses. They ang baiortized over the following
estimated useful lives using the straight-line rodth

Category Life
Customer lists and contracts Lesser of 5 years or life of contract
Favorable and assigned leases Life of the lease
Other 5-10 years
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The carrying value of amortizable intangible asse¢sevaluated periodically in relation to the gpeg performance and
anticipated future cash flows of the underlyingioagtations and businesses for indicators of inmpant. In accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 360 “Property, Plant and Equipment,” wiragicators of impairment are present and the wadisted cash flows
estimated to be generated from these assets arthéasthe carrying amounts of these assets, astadint to reduce the carrying
value to the fair market value of these assetsdsrded, if necessary. No adjustments to the ic@rgmounts of amortizable
intangible assets have been made during the yadesiddecember 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009.

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Approximately 69% of our total assets consist diiinite-lived intangible assets, such as broadaastses, goodwill and
mastheads, the value of which depends significamfn the operating results of our businesseshdmrase of our radio stations, we
would not be able to operate the properties withiogitrelated broadcast license for each prop@tpadcast licenses are renewed
with the FCC every eight years for a nominal chat ts expensed as incurred. We continually mowitm stations’ compliance with
the various regulatory requirements. Historicadlly of our broadcast licenses have been renewtdtkand of their respective
periods, and we expect that all broadcast licemsiesontinue to be renewed in the future. Accoglin we consider our broadcast
licenses to be indefinite-lived intangible assatadcordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 “IntangibleGeodwill and Other.” We do
not amortize goodwill or other indefinite-lived amtgible assets, but rather test for impairmergadtlannually or more frequently if
events or circumstances indicate that an assebmaypaired. Please refer to “Note 2 — Impairn@rdoodwill and Other
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets” for a furtheisdussion of our testing plan and impairments razgl. The unit of accounting
used to test broadcast licenses is the clustel, tich we define as a group of radio stationsratieg in the same geographic
market, sharing the same building and equipmenbant managed by a single general manager. Gdamivdlmastheads, primarily
attributable to our non-broadcast operating segnaeattested at the business unit level, which @fnd by publication or website.

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assets

We record gains or losses on the disposal of asge to the proceeds, if any, compared to théoek value. Exchange
transactions are accounted for in accordance WAtBB-ASC Topic 845 “Non-Monetary Transactions.” Foe year ended
December 31, 2009, we recorded a loss on dispbsakets of $1.7 million that included the saleaafio station KPXI-FM, Tyler-
Longview, Texas for $0.4 million resulting in a gex loss of $1.6 million. For the year ended Deber 31, 2008, we recorded a
gain on the disposal of assets of $6.9 million Wwhicluded the sale of radio station WRVI-FM, Louile, Kentucky for $3.0
million resulting in a pre-tax gain of $1.1 millipthe sale of radio station KTEK-AM, Houston, Tefas$7.8 million resulting in a
pre-tax gain of $6.1 million, partially offset byamous fixed assets disposals. A gain on dispoisassets of $2.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007 was comprised of the fakdaerted assets of radio station WKNR-AM in Clawe, Ohio, for $7.0
million which resulted in a pre-tax gain of $3.4llioh offset by the loss recognized on the saleadécted assets of radio station
WVRY-FM, Nashville, Tennessee for $0.9 million résg in a pre-tax loss of $0.5 million and $0.7limn associated with various
fixed asset disposals.

Leases

We lease various facilities including broadcastdpand transmitter sites. When a lease is enteredietermine the
classification of the lease as either a capitaparating lease based on the factors listed in FASB Topic 840 “Leases.” Lease
terms generally range from one to twenty-five yamith rent expense recorded on a straight linesbfasifinancial reporting
purposes. We also sublease owned towers undeusaagreements with other broadcasters. Leases tggnerally cover a sixty year
term, over which time we recognize rental incomeatraight-line basis. Deferred rent revenue $&8 million and $4.9 million at
December 31, 2008 and 2009, respectively.

Leasehold Improvements

We may elect to construct or otherwise invest asé&hold improvements to properties. We capitdfieecost of the
improvements that are then amortized over the shoftthe useful life of the improvement or the eéning lease term.

Bond Issue Costs and Bank Loan Fees

Bond issue costs represent costs incurred in cotipmwith the issuance of th&96 Senior Secured Second Lien Notes on
December 1, 2009 (*8% Notes”). The costs are being amortized oveteha of the 9,% Notes as an adjustment to interest
expense. Bank loan fees represent costs incuiitbdhve new Senior Credit Facility, which is a reang credit facility (“Revolver”)
entered on December 1, 2009. The costs are beingiaed over the three-year term of the Revolgeamadjustment to interest
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expense. During the year ended December 31, 2p@@oximately $0.1 million of bond issues costsensritten off upon the

calling and retirement of the 7 %% Notes. Alsonlythe year ended December 31, 2009, bank loanaesociated with our prior
credit facility of $1.1 million were written-off. During the year ended December 31, 2008, apprdzign&28,000 of bond issue costs
were written off in conjunction with the early redption of $9.4 million of the ¥4% Notes through the use of an unsecured
subsidiary, SIC.

Partial Self-Insurance on Employee Health Plan

We provide health insurance benefits to eligibl@layees under a self-insured plan whereby the Compays actual medical
claims subject to certain stop loss limits. Weordcself-insurance liabilities based on actualrokafiled and an estimate of those
claims incurred but not reported. Any projectidriasses concerning our liability is subject toighhdegree of variability. Among
the causes of this variability are unpredictablemal factors such as future inflation rates, gesnn severity, benefit level changes,
medical costs and claim settlement patterns. Shadlifferent amount of claims occur compared tatwtias estimated or costs of
the claims increase or decrease beyond what wispatéd, reserves may need to be adjusted inutiveef. The self-insurance
liability was $0.5 million at December 31, 2008 &@09, respectively.

Local Programming and Marketing Agreement Fees

We enter into Local Marketing Agreement (“LMA”) diime Brokerage Agreements (“TBA”) in connection lwécquisitions of
radio stations that are pending FCC regulatory arof transfer of the broadcast licenses. Utideterms of these agreements, we
make specified periodic payments to the owner sharge for the right to program and sell advewigor a specified portion of the
station’s inventory of broadcast time. We recadanues and expenses associated with the portibe station’s inventory of
broadcast time it manages. Nevertheless, as tHerhaf the FCC license, the owner-operator retaorgrol and responsibility for
the operation of the station, including respongibdver all programming broadcast on the stative also enter into LMA'’s in
connection with dispositions of radio stations.stith cases we may receive periodic payments imagxge for allowing the buyer to
program and sell advertising for a portion of tteien’s inventory of broadcast time.

Derivative Instruments

We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates.agtively monitor these fluctuations and use @give instruments from time
to time to manage the related risk. In accordante aur risk management strategy, we use derivatisguments only for the
purpose of managing risk associated with an alssleiljty, committed transaction, or probable foasted transaction that is identified
by management. Our use of derivative instrumentgmsult in short-term gains or losses that mayeiase the volatility of our
earnings.

Under FASB ASC Topic 815 “Derivatives and Hedgirlgé effective portion of the gain or loss on a dalive instrument
designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedgisggument shall be reported as a component of attraprehensive income (outside
earnings) and reclassified into earnings in theespariod or periods during which the hedged forechsansaction affects earnings.
The remaining gain or loss on the derivative insient, if any, shall be recognized currently in @ags. Please refer to “Note 7
Derivative Instruments” for a further discussioroof derivative instruments.

Fair Value Accounting

FASB ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements anccldsures” established a single definition of faatue in generally
accepted accounting principles and expanded disgagquirements about fair value measurementspiidwasion applies to other
accounting pronouncements that require or pernmitvedue measurements. We adopted the fair valaeigions for financial assets
and financial liabilities effective January 1, 2008e adoption had a material impact on our codatdid financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. We adopted fair valogipions for nonfinancial assets and nonfinandaddilities effective January 1,
2009. This includes applying the fair value condeg(i) nonfinancial assets and liabilities initjaineasured at fair value in business
combinations; (ii) reporting units or nonfinancésets and liabilities measured at fair value mjurzction with goodwill impairment
testing; (iii) other nonfinancial assets measurefdiavalue in conjunction with impairment assessits; and (iv) asset retirement
obligations initially measured at fair value. Trdoption of the fair value provisions of FASB ASCpi® 820 to nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities did not have a matkitiapact on our consolidated financial positiorsukés of operations or cash flows.

The fair value provisions include guidance on howestimate the fair value of assets and liabilitiethe current economic
environment and reemphasizes that the objectieefair value measurement remains an exit priceelfvere to conclude that there
has been a significant decrease in the volumeeara bf activity of the asset or liability in reil@n to normal market activities,
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guoted market values may not be representativaiofélue and we may conclude that a change iratialo technique or the use of
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate.

The degree of judgment utilized in measuring thevalue of financial instruments generally cortekato the level of pricing
observability. Pricing observability is affected &#ywumber of factors, including the type of finahénstrument, whether the financial
instrument is new to the market, and the charatiesispecific to the transaction. Financial instemts with readily available active
quoted prices or for which fair value can be meagdrom actively quoted prices generally will hahigher degree of pricing
observability and a lesser degree of judgmentzetilin measuring fair value. Conversely, finantiatruments rarely traded or not
quoted will generally have less (or no) pricing etvsbility and a higher degree of judgment utilizeeaneasuring fair value. Please
refer to “Note 8 Fair Value Accounting” for a fugthdiscussion.

Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Positions

We account for income taxes in accordance witHigtdéity method of providing for deferred incomaxes. Deferred income
taxes arise from temporary differences betweenakéasis of assets and liabilities and their reggbamounts in the financial
statements. We account for income taxes in acoosdaith FASB ASC Topic 740 “Income Taxes.” Upor tidoption of the
provisions on January 1, 2007, we had $3.0 miliiolebilities related to uncertain tax positions;luding $0.9 million recognized
under FASB ASC Topic 450 “Contingencies” and carfigrward from prior years and $2.1 million recaggd upon adoption of the
tax provision changes as a reduction to retainedrags. Included in the $2.1 million accrual w&s$million related interest, net of
federal income tax benefits. During 2008, we redped a net decrease of $0.2 million in liabiliteesd at December 31, 2008, had
$3.7 million in liabilities for unrecognized taxmefits. Included in this liability amount were $0million accrued for the related
interest, net of federal income tax benefits, abd $nillion for the related penalty recorded inante tax expense on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. During 28@%ecognized a net increase of $0.1 millionabhilities and at December 31,
2009, had $3.8 million in liabilities for unrecogad tax benefits. Included in this liability amowere $0.1 million accrued for the
related interest, net of federal income tax besiedibd $0.1 million for the related penalty recdriaeincome tax expense on our
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

A summary of the changes in the gross amount cfaagnized tax benefits for the year ended DeceBibe2009, is as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 3,659
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryear 329
Additions based on tax positions related to priegrg 19
Reductions related to tax positions of prior years —
Decrease due to statute expirations (204)
Related interest and penalties, net of federabtmefits (49)
Balance as of December 31, 2009 $ 3,754
L}

Comprehensive Loss

We recognized the gains and losses on the effeptiv#n of our interest rate swap derivative instents that were designated
as, and qualified as, cash flow hedges as a compoh©ther Comprehensive Loss as defined by FASE Aopic 220
“Comprehensive Income.” As of October 1, 2008 elected a one-month reset on our Term Loan C rétiagr the three month reset
period. As our interest rate swap agreements oatthree month reset period, the swaps are rgetogffective and no longer
qualify as cash flow hedges. As a result, chanyé®e fair value of our swaps are no longer defééin other comprehensive income,
but rather impact current period income.

Other comprehensive loss recognized in prior psrieflects changes in the fair value of each ofoash flow hedges for the
time that the cash flow hedges qualified as effectis follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008

(Dollars in thousands)
Mark-to-market loss $ (3,779) $ (800)
Less tax benefit (1,512) (320)
Other comprehensive loss, net of t $ (2,267) $ (480)
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Basic and Diluted Net Earnings Per Share

Basic net earnings per share has been computegl theiwveighted average number of Class A and @agsares of common
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted reahings per share is computed using the weightethge number of shares of
Class A and Class B common stock outstanding dihniageriod plus the dilutive effects of stock ops.

Options to purchase 2,422,024, 562,175 and 1,38%B&res of Class A common stock and unvestedatestistock shares of
5,000, zero and 5,000 were outstanding at DeceB81he2007, 2008 and 2009. Diluted weighted avesigees outstanding exclude
outstanding stock options whose exercise price é&xcess of the average price of the Company'kgidce. These options are
excluded from the respective computations of diutet income or loss per share because their effecitd be anti-dilutive. The
number of anti-dilutive shares as of December 8D/2vas 2,418,471. There were no dilutive sharethe years ended
December 31, 2008 or 2009.

The following table sets forth the shares usedtopute basic and diluted net earnings per shardégperiods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
Weighted average shares 23,785,015 23,671,288 23,803,864
Effect of dilutive securities - stock options 3,553 — —
Weighted average shares adjusted for dilutive gezsir 23,788,568 23,671,288 23,803,864

Segments

We have one reportable operating segment—radio bastidg. The remaining non-reportable segmentsisoof our Internet
businesses, SWN, Townhall.com, and Salem ConsumeuBts and our publishing businesses, Salem Pitdisand Xulon Press,
which do not meet the reportable segment quamgatiresholds and accordingly are aggregated abruadcast. The radio
broadcasting segment also operates various ratimries. We present our segment operating resulifoie 16.

Concentrations of Business and Credit Risks

The majority of our operations are conducted intipldl locations across the country. Our credh rssspread across a large
number of customers, none of which account fogaicant volume of revenue or outstanding receliesb We do not normally
require collateral on credit sales; however, crbiitories are reviewed before extending substiarriglit to any customer. We
establish an allowance for doubtful accounts basecdustomers’ payment history and perceived créeskis. Bad debt expense has
been within management’s expectations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the rogported in the financial statements and aceoyipg notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Significanteeréor which management uses estimates are all@fanbad debts, income tax
valuation allowance, impairment analysis for indeé-lived intangible assets including broadcasrises and goodwill, impairment
analysis on other long-lived assets, stock-basetpeasation expense, and liabilities incurred undempartial self-insurance plan.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the priarymancial statements to conform to the currearypresentation. These
reclassifications include the accounting for WRRBtAMilwaukee, Wisconsin, WFZH-FM, Milwaukee, Wiscgin, andCCM
Magazine as discontinued operations as discussed in Noh& accompanying Consolidated Balance SheetStatdments of
Operations reflect the operating results and redtaf these entities as discontinued operatmmihé years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008. All prior periods have been rexfiesl to reflect the operating results and neetsssf these stations as discontinued
operations to conform to the current period prestent.

These reclassifications also include the operaisglts of WRFD-AM, Columbus, Ohio which are shaagnpart of continuing
operations from discontinued operations. We haeredtinto an asset purchase agreement on Julp3&, @ sell this radio station and
exit the Columbus market. At that time, the Cortaitd Balance Sheets and Statements of Operatioal periods presented were
reclassified to reflect the operating results agidassets of this market as a discontinued operati@f the date of the asset purchase
agreement through December 2009. The sale wasterpecclose in the fourth quarter of 2009. On Delwer 30, 2009, the buyer of the
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radio station advised us that they would not be &bimeet the terms of the asset purchase agredBeeatuse of the buyer terminating
the agreement, we have reclassified the accompg@onsolidated Balance Sheets and Statements oatiwes for all periods
presented to reflect the operating results andssgtts of this market in continuing operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, ‘rbwimg Disclosures about Fair Value Measuremenighjth provides
amendments to the FASB ASC Subtopic 820-10 thatiregew disclosures regarding (i) transfers in amidof Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements and (ii) activity in Level 3 f@lue measurements. ASU 2010-06 also clarifiesting disclosures regarding (i) the
level of asset and liability disaggregation angféiir value measurement inputs and valuation tiechas. The new disclosures and
clarifications of existing disclosures are effeetfor interim and annual reporting periods begigrafter December 15, 2009, except for
the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuamzksettlements in the roll forward of activityliavel 3 fair value measurements. Those
disclosures are effective for fiscal years begigrifter December 15, 2010, and for interim perisitlin those fiscal years. We are
currently evaluating the disclosure impact of agwpbn our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-Myltiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements” (*“ASUGZ013"). ASU
2009-13 provides guidance for arrangements withiplaldeliverables. Specifically, the updated acting standard requires an
entity to allocate arrangement consideration atrtbeption of an arrangement to all of its delil@es based on their relative selling
prices. ASU 2009-13 also eliminates the residusthod of allocation and requires use of the retasi®lling-price method in all
circumstances in which an entity recognizes revdéauan arrangement with multiple deliverables. UAB09-13 is effective as of
January 2011 with early adoption permitted. We dbaxpect the adoption of ASU No. 13 to have a n@tampact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslafddate No. 2009-05, Fair Value Measurements ascld3ures (“ASU
2009-05"), which is effective for financial statemtg issued for interim and annual periods enditer a&ugust 2009. ASU 2009-05
amends FASB ASC Subtopic 820-10 (“FASB ASC 820-10%e update provides clarification on the techagjfor measurement of
fair value required of a reporting entity when @tgal price in an active market for an identicability is not available. The adoption
of this statement did not have a material impaocvanconsolidated financial position, results oéagions or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, TheB-A&ounting Standards Codification TM and the ldiehy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles—a replacement of Be5 162 (“SFAS No. 168"), which is effective fonfincial statements issued
for interim and annual periods ending after Septmils, 2009. SFAS No. 168 created FASB ASC Subtbptc10 (“FASB ASC
105-10"). FASB ASC 105-10 identifies the sourcesefounting principles and the framework for séfecprinciples used in the
preparation of financial statements of nongovernalemtities that are presented in conformity viith GAAP (the GAAP
hierarchy). This standard had no impact on owrfaial position, results of operations or cash fow

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsagieents (“SFAS No. 165”), codified in FASB ASCl&opic 855-10,
which establishes accounting and disclosure stdsdar events that occur after the balance sheethia before financial statements
are issued or are available to be issued. It defimancial statements as available to be isseedjring the disclosure of the date
through which an entity has evaluated subsequemnits\and the basis for that date, whether it beldibe the financial statements
were issued or the date they were available tefeed. We adopted SFAS No. 165 upon issuance. sfdndard had no impact on
our consolidated financial position, results of ghens or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositidRSP”) No. SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2, “Recognitéom Presentation
of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments” (“FSP No. SFA%-2 and SFAS 124-2"), which is codified in FA8B8C Subtopic 320-
10. FSP No. SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 provide guieléo determine whether the holder of an investimea debt security for
which changes in fair value are not regularly regépgd in earnings should recognize a loss in egawwhen the investment is
impaired. This FSP also improves the presentatiohdisclosure of other-than-temporary impairmemtglebt and equity securities
in the consolidated financial statements. We adbp®P No. SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 beginninglAp2009. This FSP had
no impact on our consolidated financial positiGsults of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 10%d Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion NAPB 28-1, Interim
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrutegt=SP No. SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1"). FSP No. SHA7-1 and APB 28-1,
which is codified in FASB ASC Subtopic 825-10-58quire disclosures about fair value of financiatinments for interim reporting
periods of publicly traded companies as well agrinual financial statements. We adopted FSP NASSI©7-1 and APB 28-1
beginning April 1, 2009. This FSP had no impacbanconsolidated financial position, results oégiions or cash flows.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 15Ddtermining Fair Value When the Volume and LeveRofivity for the
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased dddntifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly (‘fF$lo. SFAS 157-4"). FSP
No. SFAS 157-4, which is codified in FASB ASC Sutits 820-10-35-51 and 820-10-50-2, provides aduttiguidance for
estimating fair value and emphasizes that evereifet has been a significant decrease in the volurddevel of activity for the asset
or liability and regardless of the valuation teciug(s) used, the objective of a fair value measaentmemains the same. We adopted
FSP No. SFAS 157-4 beginning April 1, 2009. TH&PFhad no impact on our consolidated financialtfposiresults of operations or
cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 1411RMccounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilitiessiimed in a Business
Combination That Arise from Contingencies (“FSP BBAS 141(R)-1"). FSP No. SFAS 141(R)-1, whichaslified in FASB ASC
Topic 805, “Business Combinations,” addresses eafitin issues related to the measurement, accouatid disclosure of assets and
liabilities arising from contingencies in a busise®mbination. We adopted FSP No. SFAS 141(R)ehugsuance. This FSP had
no impact on our consolidated financial positicsults of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. 141(Birgss Combinations (“FSP No. SFAS 141(R)"), whécbodified in
FASB ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations ,” whadntinues to require the treatment that all bissrembinations be
accounted for by applying the acquisition methoddéf the acquisition method, the acquirer recognizel measures the identifiable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and anngent consideration and contractual continges)as a whole, at their fair value
as of the acquisition date. Under ASC Topic 80Brahsaction costs are expensed as incurred. Tideugce in ASC Topic 805 will
be applied prospectively to business combinationsvhich the acquisition date is on or after thgibeing of the first annual
reporting period beginning after December 15, 20U8.adopted ASC Topic 805 on January 1, 2009 armdrasult, we recorded a
gain of $1.6 million related to the acquisitionWZAB-AM, Miami, Florida..

NOTE 2. IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND OTHER INDEFINITE -LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We account for goodwill and other indefinite-livelangible assets in accordance with the Finagabunting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification (“FASB A3Tbpic 350 “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other.” We dot amortize
goodwill or other indefinite-lived intangible assebut rather test for impairment annually or noeguently if events or
circumstances indicate that an asset may be inthaBeoadcast licenses account for approximatetp @5 our indefinite-lived
intangible assets. Goodwill and magazine masthaettsunt for the remaining 5%.

We complete our annual impairment tests in thetfoguarter of each year. Based on deterioratingyoraconomic factors,
including declining radio industry revenues throogh2009 and a weakening in prevailing radio statifansaction multiples, we
tested our goodwill and other indefinite-lived inggble assets for impairment in the second, thidi f@urth quarters of 2009.

The valuation of intangible assets is subjective laased on estimates rather than precise caloudatibactual future results are
not consistent with the assumptions and estimated,we may be exposed to impairment charges ifuthiee, the amount of which
may be material. The fair value measurementsdoiralefinite-lived intangible assets use significanobservable inputs that reflect
our own assumptions about the estimates that mpekétipants would use in measuring fair valududing assumptions about risk.
The unobservable inputs are defined in FASB ASCid 8R0 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosured’eagel 3 inputs
discussed in detail in Note 8 “Fair Value Accougtin

When performing our impairment testing for broaddiasnses we review the financial performancehefmarket clusters
against established internal benchmarks. Thediegt of our impairment testing process comparedéatin value as determined from
valuations obtained in prior periods from an indegent third-party to the carrying value to detemiine degree by which the
amounts differ. We have historically discountee phior period appraised fair values by 25% to 78éfusting our discount
percentages higher each period beginning with 6082esting based on reduced revenues and ovaetktnconditions, including
declines in market values associated with radigostaales. If the discounted prior period failwaexceeded the carrying value of
the broadcast licenses, the assets were deeméal mimpaired. For our impairment reviews conmgdaduring 2009, we did not
discount the prior period appraised fair valueof Broadcast market cluster as in most marketsahging value has been reduced
to equal the fair value. Due to the number of nee@praisals, we compared actual operating reseasi®f the period end to the
projected revenues used in the most recent apfraidarkets with actual operating results that exiesl the projections, which were
not subject to changes in other assumptions suttieaseighted average cost of capital, were deerétb be impaired.

The second step of our impairment testing procesgares the carrying value of the broadcast licefmeeach market cluster
to the station operating income (“SOI”) for eachrked cluster as of the period end. If the carryiatpe of the broadcast licenses
were less than six times the annualized SOI, tbadwast licenses were deemed not to be impairethd\s stations are typically
sold on the basis of a multiple of projected opegaincome usually up to a multiple of eight, wdidee that a benchmark of six
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appears conservative even in today’s market. Vétuate the SOl multiples used in our testing basedharket data available as of
each testing date.

For the market clusters that did not meet the matielbenchmarks, Bond & Pecaro, an independent-giartl appraisal and
valuation firm, was engaged to perform an apprai#the indefinite-lived asset(s). Bond & Pecaritiagd an income approach to
value broadcast licenses. The income approachuresathe expected economic benefits that the besadicenses provides and
discounts these future benefits using a discourdast flow analysis. The discounted cash flow amabssumes that the broadcast
licenses are held by hypothetical start-up statemsthe values yielded by the discounted cash dloalysis represent the portion of
the stations value attributable solely to the boaatilicense. The discounted cash flow model pa@tes variables such as projected
revenues, operating profit margins, and a discoatet The variables used reflect historical compgnowth trends, industry
projections, and the anticipated performance obtlness. The discounted cash flow projectioropenias determined to be ten
years; which is typically the time radio statioreagtors and investors expect to recover their invests as widely used by industry
analysts in their forecasts.

The key assumptions used in the Bond & Pecaro sisdly estimate the fair value of each major categbassets in our
broadcast segment for each testing period werellasvé:

As of the interim testing period ended June 30, 2@0

Broadcast Licenses

Goodwill

Discount rate

Market growth rates next 12 months
Out-year market growth range
Market share range

Operating profit margin range

9.5%
(13.2%) - (48.2
(0.2%) — 2.5%
0.7% - 20.2%
4.7% - 40.9%

9.5%
(13.2%) - (15.2%)
(0.2%) — 2.5%
0.7% - 20.2%
4.7% - 40.9%

As of the interim testing period ended September 3@2009: Broadcast Licenses Goodwill
Discount rate 9.5% 9.5%
Market growth rates next 12 months (2.0%) (2.0%)

Out-year market growth range
Market share range
Operating profit margin range

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009:

0.4% - 2.5%
0.7% - 15.3%
4.7% - 40.7%

Broadcast Licenses

0.4% - 2.5%
0.7% - 15.3%
4.7% - 40.7%

Goodwill

Discount rate

2010 Market growth rates
Out-year market growth range
Market share range
Operating profit margin range

9.5%
(3.0%)
0.3% - 3.8%
0.7% - 15.3%
4.7% - 38.3%

9.5%
(3.0%)
0.3% - 3.8%
0.7% - 15.3%
4.7% - 38.3%

We also test goodwill balances within the broadsagiment for impairment on an annual basis anddstwnnual tests when
there are indications of impairment. The firspsté our goodwill impairment test, used to idenfiigtential impairment, compares
the appraised fair value of the market clustenfiarkets with actual operating results that exced¢deestimates used in the appraisal
model to the carrying value of the market clusteriuding goodwill. If the appraised fair valueceeded the carrying value,
goodwill was deemed not to be impaired. For matkegters that were not appraised, we determinedhtplied fair value of the
market cluster as a multiple of SOI as noted insmaond test of the FCC license value. If the iieapfair value exceeded the
carrying value of the market cluster, goodwill veeeemed not to be impaired. Market clusters théhhdi meet these two tests were
subject to appraisal.

The second test of the goodwill impairment tesédu® measure the impairment loss, compared dhieesppraised value or the
implied fair value of the market cluster includiggodwill to the carrying value of the market clustecluding goodwill. If the
carrying value exceeded these amounts, a lossegagimized in an amount equal to the excess.
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The results of our impairment testing for our broast segment for each testing period during the gieded December 31, 2009
were as follows:

As of the interim testing period ended June 30, 280
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Market Cluster internal benchmarks carrying value
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Yes 0.0% (1)
Portland, OR Yes 0.0% 1)
Colorado Springs, CO Yes 66.6%

Note (1) Markets with a 0.0% spread betweenviaime and carrying value were deemed to be impaised
of the balance sheet date with corresponding adprsts to the FCC license value recorded.

As of the interim testing period ended September 32009
Percentage by which fair

Impairment based on value exceeds carrying
Market Cluster internal benchmarks value
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Yes 1.1%
Atlanta, GA Yes 0.0% 1)
Detroit, Ml Yes 0.0% 1)
Portland, OR Yes 0.0% (1)
Cleveland, OH Yes 0.0% 1)

Note (1) Markets with a 0.0% spread betweenvialine and carrying value were deemed to be impaised
of the balance sheet date with corresponding adprss to the FCC license value recorded.

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009
Percentage by which fair

Impairment based on value exceeds carrying
Market Cluster internal benchmarks value
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Yes 4.6%
Atlanta, GA Yes 3.6%
Detroit, Ml Yes 0.0% 1)
Portland, OR Yes 3.4%
Phoenix, AZ Yes 17.1%
Honolulu, HI Yes 30.6%
Minneapolis, MN Yes 91.4%

Note (1) Markets with a 0.0% spread betweenvialine and carrying value were deemed to be impaised
of the balance sheet date with corresponding adgrsts to the FCC license value recorded.

As a result of our review and valuation for theitesperiod ended December 31, 2009, we recograzae-tax impairment
charge of $0.2 million associated with the valubmfadcast licenses in the Detroit market. Theas mo goodwill impairment for
the testing period ended December 31, 2009. litiaddwe recognized (1) pre-tax impairment chardesng our September 30,
2009, interim review and valuation of $14.1 milliassociated with the value of broadcast licenséiserCleveland, Atlanta, Detroit
and Portland markets; and (2) pre-tax impairmeat@és recognized during our June 30, 2009 intezirrew and valuation of $12.1
million associated with the value of broadcastri&es in the Dallas and Portland markets and $dlébmassociated with the value of
goodwill in the Dallas market. For the annual esviand valuation for the period ended DecembefBQa8, we recognized
impairment charges of $73.0 million associated whih value of broadcast licenses and goodwill @Bbston, Detroit, Cleveland,
Louisville, Tampa, Miami, Orlando, Sacramento, Omaind Nashville market clusters.

These broadcast impairments were driven in paddmjining revenue at the industry and market leddslining radio stations
transaction multiples and a higher cost of capithk impairments are indicative of a trend in thealdcast industry and are not
unique to the Company.

When performing impairment testing for our non-lateast indefinite-lived intangible assets, we revibe/ financial
performance of the reporting unit against establisimternal benchmarks. The first step of our impant testing compares the fair
value as determined from an independent third-fartize carrying value to determine the degree biglwthe amounts differed. We
have historically discounted the prior period apged fair values by 25% to 70%, adjusting our distgercentages higher each
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period beginning with our 2008 testing based omced revenues and overall market conditions. dfdiscounted fair value
exceeded the carrying value of the indefinite-liidngible assets, the assets were deemed netitogaired.

The second step of our impairment testing procesyared the carrying value of the indefinite-livethngible assets,
specifically mastheads and goodwill, for each répgrunit as of the testing date to the enterpralee. Enterprise value is defined as
six times the net operating income for each repgrtnit as of the trailing 12 months plus the ralovalue of the property, plant
and equipment of the operating unit. For the tggti@riod ended December 31, 2009, we used thel atuaperating income for
each reporting unit for the last twelve months. mdedia entities are typically sold on the basia afultiple of projected operating
income, usually in excess of eight, we believe ¢hhenchmark of six appears conservative everdiyte market. We evaluate the
multiples used in our testing based on market desdlable as of each testing date. If the carryialge of the intangibles is less than
the enterprise value, the intangible assets amme@@ot to be impaired.

For the reporting units that did not meet the imébenchmarks, Bond & Pecaro, an independent-fiarty appraisal and
valuation firm, was engaged to perform an apprat#he indefinite-lived intangible asset(s). BaadPecaro utilized an income
approach to estimate the fair value of the busasesehe income approach measures the expectedmiconenefits these assets
bring to the holder. The fair value of the businewss/ be expressed by discounting these future hen€he discounted cash flow
model incorporated variables such as projectedwe® operating cash flow margins, and a discaiat The variables used reflect
historical company growth trends, industry projeict, and the anticipated performance of the busiridse discounted cash flow
projection period was determined to be ten yealsghwis typically the time media and technologypedy investors expect to
recover their investments as widely used by inguatalysts in their forecasts.

The key assumptions used in the Bond & Pecaro sisdly estimate the fair value of each major categbassets in our non-
broadcast segment for each testing period durieydlar ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Other indefinite-lived

As of the interim testing period ended June 30, 280 intandible assets Goodwill
Discount rate 9.0% 9.0%
Operating cash flow growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Long-term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Other indefinite-lived
As of the interim testing period ended September 3@009: intangible assets Goodwill
Discount rate 17.0% 17.0%
Operating cash flow growth rate 3.5% 3.5%
Long-term growth rate 3.5% 3.5%

Other indefinite-lived

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009: intandible assets Goodwill
Discount rate 9.5% 9.5%
Operating cash flow growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Long-term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%

We also test goodwill balances within the non-bozesti segment for impairment on an annual basidatwleen annual dates
when there are indications of impairment. The fitsip of the goodwill impairment test is used tnitify potential impairment by
comparing the appraised fair value of the reporting to the carrying value of the reporting unitiuding goodwill. If the appraised
fair value exceeded the carrying value, goodwilswlaemed not to be impaired. For reporting unéswere not appraised, we used
the implied fair value of the reporting unit, otemprise value, as noted in our second test oiintleenal review. If the implied fair
value exceeded the carrying value, goodwill wasriegenot to be impaired. If these criteria are net,ra second test was applied.

The second test of the goodwill impairment testdu® measure the amount of any impairment losapeoed either the
appraised fair value or the implied fair value ld teporting unit including goodwill to the carrgimalue of the reporting unit
including goodwill. If the carrying value exceedbese amounts, a loss was recognized in an amquat ® the excess. During the
interim testing period for the second quarter d20ve recognized an impairment charge of $1.Janilssociated with the value of
goodwill and mastheads in our non-broadcast segntemtthe interim testing period ended SeptemBefB09 and testing period
ended December 31, 2009, there were no impairmeodgnized.
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The results of our impairment testing process forrmn-broadcast segment for each testing periodgithe year ended
December 31, 2009 were as follows:

As of the interim testing period ended September 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Reporting Unit internal benchmarks carrying value
Salem Publishing Yes 26.1%

As of the interim testing period ended September 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Reporting Unit internal benchmarks carrying value
Salem Web Network Yes 35.5%
Townhall.com Yes 57.0%

As of the annual testing period ended December 32009
Percentage by which

Impairment based on fair value exceeds
Reporting Unit internal benchmarks carrying value
Salem Publishing Yes 26.6%

The economic downturn over the last two years legstively impacted our ability to generate reventiée discount rate
assumptions used are based on an assessmentigktimherent in the future cash flows of the redje market clusters and
reporting units. Cash flows and operating incomesich of our reporting units is contingent upom ability of the entity to generate
revenues. Our radio stations are to varying degfepsndent upon advertising for their revenues.r@urbroadcast operating
entities are also dependent upon advertising rexdnualuded in our broadcast valuation estimatesae&3% decline in advertising
revenue for 2010 as compared to 2009 followed btowp2.5% increase in 2011 as compared to 20tuded in our non-broadcast
valuation estimates are projected profit marginsmfo 1.9% projected for 2010, increasing to 2i8%011. Failure to achieve the
anticipated growth rates and/or declines in exoé#isose amounts may result in future impairmessés, the amount of which may
be material.

NOTE 3. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

On December 1, 2009, we entered into a new $30dl®msenior credit facility, which is a revolvingedit facility
(“Revolver”) and issued $300 million of new sensercured second lier/@6 notes due December 2016%:% Notes”) at a discount
for $298.1 million resulting in an effective yietd 9.75%. The revolver includes a $5 million sudifty for standby letters of credit,
a subfacility for swingline loans of up to $5 nlli and an optional $10 million incremental facilitgder which we may increase the
commitments available, subject to the terms andlitions of the credit agreement relating to the édesr (the “Credit Agreement”).
The net proceeds from th&,3 Notes of $291.7 million, borrowings under our Bleer of $15.0 million and cash on hand were used
to repay and terminate Salem Holding’s then exgstiredit facilities which included the Term LoaraBd Term Loan C and to
repurchase all of the outstanding 734% Notes du€.201

On July 24, 2009, we completed the purchase obrsidition WZAB-AM in Miami, Florida for $1.0 millie. The accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations reflect gegaiing results of this radio station as of thguésition date. The business
combination is not material in the aggregate oividdally to our financial position as of the datkacquisition.

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805 “Business Govations,” effective as of January 1, 2009, angess of fair value of
the acquired net assets over the acquisition ceratidn shall be recognized as a gain on a bamathase. Prior to recording a
gain, the acquiring entity must reassess whetheacglired assets and assumed liabilities have idesrtified and recognized and
perform re-measurements to verify that the conatitar paid, assets acquired, and liabilities assuinawe been properly valued. We
underwent such a reassessment, and as a res@trdwrded a gain on the bargain purchase of WZABwAMiami, Florida, of
$1.6 million. If new information is obtained withthe measurement period about facts and circucesahat existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affelctiee measurement of the amounts recognized fetsagsquired and liabilities
assumed, we will retrospectively adjust the amotetegnized as of the acquisition date. We beliraethe gain on bargain
purchase resulted from various factors that mag lapacted the acquisition price of WZAB-AM, inclad, without limitation, that
the previous owner of the license for WZAB-AM didtrhave the technical facilities from which to bidoast.
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A summary of our acquisitions and purchases foyda ended December 31, 2009, none of which watenal to our
consolidated financial position as of the dateazfuasition, is as follows:

Acquisition Date Description Total Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
March 31, 2009 WAMD-AM, Aberdeen, Maryland $ 227
March 31, 2009 License upgrade for WNYM-AM New York, NY 2,498
July 24, 2009 WZAB-AM, Miami, Florida 1,020
$ 3,745

Under the acquisition method of accounting, in adance with FASB ASC Topic 805, the total acquisittonsideration is
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilitissimed based on their estimated fair values aseaddke of the transaction. We
obtained an independent third-party appraisal @ftimated fair value of the acquired net assets Bond & Pecaro as of the
acquisition date for each of the transactions noted

The estimated fair value of the total acquisitionsideration was allocated to the total assetsiaatias follows:
Total Assets Acquired
(Dollars in thousands)

Asset
Property and equipment $ 213
FCC License 5,166

$ 5,379

On June 1, 2009, we completed the sale of radimstikPXI-FM in Tyler-Longview, Texas for $0.4 miilin that resulted in a
pre-tax loss of $1.6 million. The operating resuaf KPXI-FM were excluded from the Consolidatedt8ments of Operations as of
the date of the sale.

On April 9, 2009, SIC purchased $1.0 million of GalHolding’s 7¥%% Notes for $0.3 million. Salem Hioly agreed to cancel
the outstanding promissory note in exchange foctreellation by SIC of the 7 %% Notes. On a chidated basis, the transaction
resulted in a $0.7 million pre-tax gain on the gaetirement of debt.

On March 31, 2009, we completed the purchase @b itdtion WAMD-AM in Aberdeen, Maryland for $2.7lhon. The
acquisition was made to accommodate the day tigrabupgrade of WNYM-AM, New York, NY. Approximd{e$2.5 million of
the purchase price was allocated to this upgrade purchase price had been paid into an escrosuaton July 18, 2008. The
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operaimhsdes the operating results of this radio staéie of the acquisition date. In
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805 “Business Comatiims,” expenses associated with this busines®ication were expensed
as of the January 2009 effective date. The busioesbination is not material in the aggregatendividually to our financial
position as of the date of acquisition.

On February 2, 2009, we received reimbursement flenPort of Seattle of approximately $1.7 millmincosts associated with a
tower relocation project. The tower relocationdoe@n 2001 as a result of the Port’s use of emidentain in which the existing
tower land was seized.

Discontinued Operations

We entered a plan to sell all radio stations inNfilevaukee market during 2007. We sold radio stat?VRRD-AM in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin for $3.8 million on March 2808 and sold radio station WFZH-FM in Milwaukeeisébnsin for $8.1
million on May 30, 2008. We entered into an LMAthvthe buyer of WFZH-FM effective as of February 2808, under which the
buyer began programming the station and payingjarityaof operational costs of the station. The@opanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations réfledperating results and net assets of the Miteastations as a discontinued
operation for the year ended December 31, 2008.

We ceased publishing ti@CM Magazineas of March 2008. The operating resultsG@M Magazinéhave been reported as a
discontinued operation as of this date. The acemyipg Consolidated Statements of Operations retfecoperating results of this
entity as a discontinued operation for the yeaedridecember 31, 2008.

On July 31, 2008, we entered into an asset purcdgreement to sell radio station WRFD-AM in Colusb@hio for $4.0
million. As a result of the sale, we were to élk#& Columbus, Ohio market. The Consolidated Baateets and Statements of
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Operations for all periods presented were recliassés of the date of the asset purchase agreémeaftect the operating results and
net assets of this market as a discontinued opertitrough December 2009. The sale was expecteldge in the fourth quarter of
2009. On December 30, 2009, the buyer of the rstdition advised us that they would not be abladet the terms of the asset
purchase agreement. Because of the buyer termirtignagreement, we have reclassified the accompa@onsolidated Balance
Sheets and Statements of Operations for all pepogisented to reflect the operating results anésgts of this market in continuing
operations. In January 2010, we collected a $@lmtermination fee from the buyer pursuant e asset purchase agreement.

The following table sets forth the components abime (loss) from discontinued operations as reifiedsnet of tax, for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009:
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Net revenue $ 3,229 $ 772 $ 3)
Operating expenses 4,816 841 193
Operating income (loss) $  (1,587) $ (69) $ (196)
Gain (loss) on sale of radio station assets — 3,360 (12)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $  (1,587) $ 3,291 $ (207)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (576) 1,525 (124)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neagf $ (1,011) $ 1,766 $ (83)

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we coeglbie following acquisitions, none of which weraterial in aggregate or
individually to our consolidated financial positias of the date of acquisition:

Acquisition Date Description Total Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
April 8, 2008 Land purchase from principal stockholders (assstimse) $ 5,013
April 11, 2008 Selected assets of WMCU-AM, Miami, Florida (assetthase) 12,418
June 6, 2008 Intercristo.com, a faith-based online job postiitg €usiness acquisition) 1,187
August 15, 2008 Conservativevoice.com, custorséfhiusiness acquisition) 152
$ 18,770

The purchase price was allocated to the total siseejuired as follows:

Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
Asset
Property and equipment $ 974
Real estate 7,079
FCC license 9,501
Non-compete agreements 33
Domain and brand names 591
Customer lists and other contracts 499
Goodwill 93
$ 18,770

The accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets ia¢h&lacquired assets and liabilities of each aeduntity as of the
acquisition date. The results of operations ackuded in the accompanying Consolidated Statenwr®perations as of the date of
acquisition with the exception of WMCU-AM, in Miaptlorida, which was included in the Consolidat¢at&mnent of Operations
beginning October 18, 2007, the date on which vgmbeperating the station under an LMA with théesgdending approval of the
acquisition by the FCC.

On December 12, 2008, we formed SIC, a wholly-owsdasidiary of Salem Communications CorporatiolC iSsued a
promissory note to Salem Holding for $4.75 milli@n December 18, 2008 SIC purchased $9.4 milliocBadém Holding's 7 %%
Notes at a 50% discount from a group of note held&alem Holding agreed to cancel the outstangliognissory note in exchange
for the cancellation by SIC of the 7 3% Notes. adronsolidated basis, the transaction resultedbir 2 million pre-tax gain on the
early retirement of debt.
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On December 2, 2008, we sold radio station WRVIiRMouisville, Kentucky for $3.0 million resultinign a pre-tax gain of
$1.1 million. The operating results of WRVI-FM aecluded from the Consolidated Statement of Oparatas of the date of the
sale.

On October 29, 2008, we notified the owner of ratation KTRO-AM, in Portland, Oregon that we woulat acquire the radio
station. We had entered into an agreement on Bepfly 2007, to purchase selected assets of therstand began operating the
station under an LMA as of that date. In accordanmith the terms of the agreement, we ceased dpgtae station under the LMA
on October 20, 2008 and recorded a terminatedacéing charge of $0.4 million in the fourth quardéi2008. The accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Operations includes pleeating results of this radio station as of theA Nate through the termination.

In September 2008, an agreement dated FebruaB0P8,to sell radio station KKMO-AM in Seattle, Wasjton for
approximately $3.7 million was terminated. The éugf the station did not meet the terms of theeABsirchase Agreement. As a
result of the buyer terminating the agreement, @e@gnized income of $0.2 million reported as otheome in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

On June 30, 2008, we completed a reorganizati@eréin legal entities. Under this reorganizati®alem Holding now owns all
operating assets of the Company other than CCM Qamwations, Inc. The operating assets of CCM Comaations, Inc. and SIC
remain owned by Salem. The reorganization did mpigict the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consmdi®&atements of
Operations.

On May 30, 2008, we sold radio station WFZH-FM iilwhukee, Wisconsin for $8.1 million resulting irpee-tax gain of $1.4
million that is reported as a component of disqured operations. The accompanying ConsolidatedrBal Sheets and Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the year ended Deae®ih008 reflect WFZH-FM as a discontinued operat All prior periods
have been reclassified to reflect the operatingltesf the station as a discontinued operatiocotaform to the current period
presentation.

On April 11, 2008, we purchased selected assetéMCU-AM in Miami, Florida, for $12.3 million. We lgan operating the
station under a LMA effective on October 18, 200he accompanying Consolidated Statements of Gpasgaihcludes the operating
results of this station as of the LMA date. Thequasition was not material in the aggregate onvittially to our financial position as
of the date of acquisition

On April 8, 2008, we acquired land in Seattle, Wiagton, Denver, Colorado and Pittsburgh, Pennsydviiom entities
controlled by its Chairman and by its Chief ExeeaitDfficer (“Principal Shareholders”) for approxitely $5.0 million. This
transaction was approved by the independent menolbéne Company Board of Directors and was basethemppraised value from
a third-party valuation firm. As a result of thiansaction, we will reduce rental expense by apprately $148,000 annually and has
permanently secured these AM transmitter site ionat We also assumed two income-producing leasseagnts as follows: (a) a
diplex agreement at the Seattle-Tacoma, Washirgtergenerating annual rental income that is ctigréi39,000 approximately
and (b) a mobile telephone lease at the Pittsbirghnsylvania site generating annual rental incibvaeis currently $26,000. In
addition, we entered into new transmitter sitedsdsr eight (8) existing transmitter sites (theetiNTransmitter Site Leases”)
operated by the Company and leased from the Pah8ifpckholders. Seven (7) of these New Transniier Leases replace existing
transmitter site leases between the Company anfrtheipal Shareholder which were either schedtdegkpire or had option
exercise deadlines in 2009 or 2010. As a resuliameenot required to renegotiate a new lease aciseean option on any of its
related party leases until 2016.

On March 28, 2008, we sold radio station KTEK-AMHpuston, Texas for $7.8 million, including $4.5loh in cash, and $3.3
million in notes receivables. The notes includekl a8 million 90 day promissory note due on Jung2®8 bearing interest at
8% per annum and a $1.5 million seven year promyssote bearing interest at 8% per annum, with tigrinstallments due
beginning in May 2008. The sale resulted in a pregain of $6.1 million. The operating resultdfEK-AM were excluded from
the Consolidated Statement of Operations beginmmBebruary 1, 2008, the date we stopped operdtengtation pursuant to a Time
Brokerage Agreement with the buyer.

On March 28, 2008, we sold radio station WRRD-AMJitwaukee, Wisconsin for $3.8 million resulting énpre-tax gain of
$2.0 million that is reported as a component ofaliginued operations. The accompanying ConsolidBtance Sheets and
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the grded December 31, 2008 reflect WRRD-AM as a disitoad operation. All
prior periods have been reclassified to reflectaperating results of the station as a discontiraptation to conform to the current
period presentation.
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, we coepliie following acquisitions, none of which weratetial in aggregate or
individually to our consolidated financial positias of the date of acquisition:

Acquisition Date Entity Description Acquisition Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
February 2, 2007 ChristianMusicPlanet.com Christian music web portal $ 311
September 12, 2007 CMCentral.com Christian music Internet site and online communi 360
Various Various Other Internet Businesses and domain names 316

$ 987

The purchase price was allocated to the total sissejuired as follows:

Asset

Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
Property and equipment $ 196
Domain and brand names 422
Subscriber list 203
Customer lists and other contrac 121
Goodwill 45

$ 987

The accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets ia¢halacquired assets and liabilities of each aeduintity as of the
acquisition date. The results of operations ackided in the accompanying Consolidated Statenwr@perations as of the date of
acquisition. With the exception of certain domaames, which were acquisitions of assets, the atramsactions were acquisitions

of businesses.

On May 29, 2007, we sold radio station WVRY-FM, Nafle, Tennessee for $0.9 million resulting inr@ax loss of $0.5
million, including the write-off of goodwill assaatied with this entity of $0.2 million. The operdgiresults of WVRY-FM were
excluded from the Consolidated Statement of Opmratbeginning on March 9, 2007, the date we stoppedating the station

pursuant to an LMA with the buyer.

On February 7, 2007, we sold radio station WKNR-AMCleveland, Ohio, for $7.0 million resulting irpae-tax gain of $3.4
million. The operating results of WKNR-AM were éxded from the Consolidated Statement of Operati@gnning on
December 1, 2006, the date we stopped operatingtdtion pursuant to a LMA with the buyer.

NOTE 4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥ahg:

As of December 31,

2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Land $ 37,132 $ 37,345
Buildings 25,011 24,771
Office furnishings and equipment 34,073 34,998
Antennae, towers and transmitting equipment 73,834 74,225
Studio and production equipment 28,844 28,724
Computer software and website development c 7,966 8,835
Record and tape libraries 64 65
Automobiles 1,148 1,046
Leasehold improvements 14,921 15,399
Construction-in-progress 5,470 2,907

$ 228,463 $ 228,315
Less accumulated depreciation 94,553 107,141

$ 133,910 $ 121,174

Depreciation expense was approximately $12.0 mill&13.3 million and $13.4 million for the yearsled December 31, 2007,

77

2008, and 2009, respectively, which includes deptien of $26,000 for the year ended December B072and $53,000 for each of



the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 orncastation tower that was valued at $0.8 milliomlena capital lease obligation.
Accumulated depreciation associated with the chigitese was $79,000 and $132,000 at December 88, &td 2009.

NOTE 5. AMORTIZABLE INANGIBLE ASSETS

The following tables provide details, by major cmtey, of the significant classes of amortizablamngible assets:

As of December 31, 2009
Accumulated

Cost Amortization Net
(Dollars in thousands)
Customer lists and contracts $ 11,018 $ (9,826) $ 1,192
Domain and brand names 5,626 (4,236) 1,390
Favorable and assigned leases 1,581 (1,365) 16 2
Other amortizable intangible assets 3,068 (2,985) 83
$ 21,293 $ (18,412) $ 2,881
As of December 31, 2008
Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
(Dollars in thousands)
Customer lists and contracts $ 10,938 $ (9,292) $ 1,646
Domain and brand names 5,570 (3,320) 2,250
Favorable and assigned leases 1,581 (2,296) 85 2
Other amortizable intangible assets 3,069 (2,798) 271
21,158 $ (16,706) $ 4,452

Based on the amortizable intangible assets as oémber 31, 2009, we estimate amortization expersthé next five years to
be as follows:

Amortization Expense
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ending December 31,

2010 $ 1,240
2011 647
2012 277
2013 132
2014 124
Thereafter 461
Total $ 2,881

NOTE 6. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Our senior credit facility and our senior securedosid lien notes have been entered into by Salenm@mications Corporation.
Salem Communications Corporation has no indeperatesgts or operations. All of the subsidiarieSalEm Communications
Corporation are currently guarantors of the seaiedit facility and the senior secured second tlietes. The guarantees are full and
unconditional and joint and several, and any susseas of the parent company other than the sudnsidjuarantors are minor.

Senior Credit Facility

On December 1, 2009, we entered into a new sergdiitdacility, which is a revolving credit faciit(“Revolver”). We believe
that the Revolver will allow us to meet our ongoogpgerating requirements, fund capital expendituaad, satisfy our debt service
requirements. The Revolver is a three-year $3bamitevolving credit facility, which includes a $Billion subfacility for standby
letters of credit, a subfacility for swingline laaof up to $5 million and an optional $10 millioxcremental facility under which we
may increase the commitments available, subjeittederms and conditions of the credit agreemdating to the Revolver facility
(the “Credit Agreement”). Amounts outstanding unther Revolver bear interest at a rate based on RIB@s a spread of 3.50% per
annum or at the Base Rate (as defined in the Chggldgement) plus a spread of 2.50% per annum ph@92, at our option as of the
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date of determination. Additionally, we pay a cormant fee on the unused balance of 0.75% per yiéan event of default occurs,
the interest rate may increase by 2.00% per anAumounts outstanding under the Revolver may be padithen reborrowed at
Salem’s discretion without penalty or premium.

With respect to financial covenants, the Creditégnent includes a maximum leverage ratio of 700@cand a minimum
interest coverage ratio of 1.5 to 1. The Credite®gnent also includes other negative covenantatbatustomary for credit facilities
of this type, including covenants that, subjeattoeptions described in the Credit Agreement,ictdhre ability of Salem and the
guarantors (i) to incur additional indebtednes$di make investments; (iii) to make distributiptsans or transfers of assets; (iv) to
enter into, create, incur, assume or suffer totexiyg liens; (v) to sell assets; (vi) to enter itremsactions with affiliates; (vii) to
merge or consolidate with, or dispose of all orstabtially all assets to, a third party; (viii)fgoepay indebtedness; and (ix) to pay
dividends.

Senior Secured Second Lien Notes

On December 1, 2009, we issued $300.0 million fpaiamount of 9% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due December
2016 (“9/:% Notes”) at a discount for $298.1 million resudtiim an effective yield of 9.75%. Interest is duel payable on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing Juned1b, ihtil maturity. We are not required to makiegipal payments on the
9°/,% Notes that are due in full in December 2016. Fheo Notes are guaranteed by all of our existing doimesstricted
subsidiaries. We are required to pay $28.9 milpenyear in interest on th&96 Notes. As of December 31, 2009, accrued interest
on %/,% Notes was $2.4 million. The discount is beingdined to interest expense over the term of theoMNotes based on the
effective interest method. As of December 31, 2@@proximately $16,000 of the discount has beeogmrized as interest expense.

Prior Credit Facility

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Salem Communicatiomdédihg Corporation (“Salem Holding”), was the boser under our
prior credit facilities. The prior credit faciks included a $75.0 million senior secured reduoiwvglving credit facility (“revolving
credit facility”), a $75.0 million term loan B fdity (“Term Loan B facility”) and a $165.0 millioterm loan C facility (“term loan C
facility”). On December 1, 2009, we used the peatseof the 9% Notes, a portion of the senior credit facilitpdaapproximately
$27 million of cash on hand to fully repay amoumtisstanding under the Term Loan B of $71.2 millidvg Term Loan C of $160.0
million, and to fully repay all outstanding aggrégarincipal of $89.7 million on the 7%% Notes. Véeorded a loss of $1.7 million
which included $1.1 million of unamortized bankrndaes on the prior credit facility, $0.1 milliofiwnamortized bond issue costs on
the 7%.% Notes and $0.4 million of legal and defdes associated with the calling of the 7 3% Nates prior credit facility.

Swingline Credit Facility

On June 1, 2005, we entered into an agreementdairaline credit facility (“Swingline”) with a beowing capacity of $5.0
million. The agreement was most recently amendeduoe 1, 2009 and had a borrowing capacity of 8dll®n. The interest rate
was the bank’s prime rate plus 0.75% per annuntoflateral for the Swingline, we pledged our cogieroffice building. We
terminated the Swingline as of December 1, 2009.

7°1.% Notes

In December 2002, Salem Holding issued $100.0anilfirincipal amount of¥%,% Notes. The indenture for th&.% Notes
contained restrictive covenants that, among otiags, limited the incurrence of debt by Salem hajdand its subsidiaries, the
payment of dividends, the use of proceeds of sigelcifsset sales and transactions with affiliatbsotgh the use of an unrestricted
subsidiary, we repurchased $9.4 million of oti% Notes for $4.7 million in December 2008. Thiswsaction resulted in a $4.7
million pre-tax gain on the early retirement of t€khrough the use of an unrestricted subsidiag/repurchased $1.0 million of our
7°.% Notes for $0.3 million in April 2009. This trartdeon resulted in a $0.7 million pre-tax gain oe #arly retirement of debt. As
of September 30, 2009, there was $89.7 million egage principal amount of thé/#6 Notes outstanding. Based on this principal
amount, Salem Holding was required to pay $7.0ionilper year in interest on th&.,% Notes. As of December 1, 2009, we used the
net proceeds from the offering of the outstandiogs together with other available funds to furelpayment of consideration and
certain costs relating to the early settlemenheffender Offer and consent solicitation with respe the outstanding $89.7 million
in aggregate principal amount of th&% Notes. Accrued interest on the tenderg@s/Notes was also paid. Since all outstanding
7°1,.% Notes were tendered, accepted for payment arcklbad, the indenture relating to th#,% Notes was discharged.
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Summary of long-term debt obligations

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
As of December 31,

2008 2009

(Dollars in thousands)
Revolver under senior credit facility $ — $ 15,000
Term loans under prior credit facility 232,467 —
9°s% senior secured second lien notes due 2016 — 298,111
7%% senior subordinated notes due 2010 90,605 —
Seller financed note to acquire Townhall.com 1,295 —
Capital leases and other loans 1,008 936
325,375 314,047
Less current portion 3,766 78

$ 321,609 $ 313,969
[ e

In addition to the amounts listed above, we alseehaterest payments related to our long-term dslibllows as of December
31, 2009:

Outstanding borrowings of $15.0 million under rexs| with interest payments due at LIBOR plus 3.50%t
prime rate plus 2.50%;

$300.0 million notes with semi-annual interest pawpts at an annual rate 6f;%; and
Commitment fee of 0.75% on the unused portion efrtvolver.

Other Debt

We have several capital leases related to variatssgrocessing equipment. The obligation recoedddkecember 31, 2008 and
2009 represents the present value of future comenitsnrunder the lease agreements.

Maturities of Long-Term Debt

Principal repayment requirements under all longatdebt agreements outstanding at December 31, 20@ach of the next five
years and thereafter are as follows:

Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
2010 $ 78
2011 80
2012 15,083
2013 46
2014 44
Thereafter 298,716
$ 314,047

NOTE 7. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

During 2005, we entered into three interest ratapstiansactions intended to offset the risks aasetiwith the variable interest
rate on our then outstanding Term Loan C. Thaésterate swaps were designated and qualifiedsisftaw hedges under FASB
ASC Topic 815 “Derivatives and Hedging.” The effee portion of the gain or loss on these derixatnstruments was reported as
a component of other comprehensive income (outsideings) and reclassified into earnings in theespatiod or periods during
which the hedged forecasted transaction affectadregs. Effective October 1, 2008, we elected e-mmonth reset on our Term
Loan C rather than a three-month , resulting insthieps no longer qualifying as a cash flow hedgthe interest rate swap
agreements contained a three month reset periedwhps were no longer effective and no longerifipeias a cash flow hedge.
Changes in the fair value of these swaps as oftigctb, 2008 were reported in current period incoatieer than deferred in other

comprehensive income. On December 1, 2009, thp swasactions were terminated when the underlyergn Loan C was paid in
full.
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Details of the three swap transaction were asvialio

On April 8, 2005, we entered into an interest sat@p arrangement for the notional principal amafii30.0 million whereby
we were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.99% aspared to LIBOR on our then outstanding bank credility borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, wasxapmately $0.9 million based on the difference betwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $3.1anillvhen the underlying bank credit facility wasterated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was a $0.6 million gain and upon terminaifdhe swap we recognized a
$0.8 million loss. Effective on October 1, 200& had elected a one month reset on our Term Laath@r than the three month
reset period. As this interest rate swap agreepwntined a three month reset period, the swampwésnger effective and no
longer qualified as a cash flow hedge. Changdisdariair value of this swap as of October 1, 20@8enreported in current period
income rather than deferred in other comprehensn@me. An additional $0.3 million of accumulatither comprehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense as of Decemp20@9 in order to recognize the impact over theesperiod in which the hedged
transaction affected earnings. On December 1, 20@%emaining $1.0 million in accumulated othempoehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense.

On April 26, 2005, we entered into an interest stap arrangement for the notional principal amafi$30.0 million whereby
we were to pay a fixed interest rate of 4.70% aspared to LIBOR on our then outstanding bank crieditity borrowing. Interest
expense for year ended December 31, 2009, was>xpiely $0.8 million based on the difference betwéhe interest rates. The
swap was settled on December 1, 2009 for $2.9amillvhen the underlying bank credit facility washerated. The ineffective
portion of this swap reported in current periodenges was a $0.5 million gain and upon terminaifdhe swap we recognized a
$0.8 million loss. Effective on October 1, 200& had elected a one month reset on our Term Laath@r than the three month
reset period. As this interest rate swap agreenwmnttined a three month reset period, the swaphwédenger effective and no
longer qualified as a cash flow hedge. Changéisarair value of this swap as of October 1, 20@8eneported in current period
income rather than deferred in other compreherisa@me. An additional $0.3 million of accumulatettier comprehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense as of Decemp20@9 in order to recognize the impact over theesperiod in which the hedged
transaction affected earnings. On December 1, 20@%emaining $0.7 million in accumulated othempoehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense.

On May 5, 2005, we entered into a third interet# savap arrangement for the notional principal amad $30.0 million
whereby we were to pay a fixed interest rate 08%%s compared to LIBOR on then outstanding bae#ticfacility borrowing.
Interest expense for year ended December 31, 2@G9approximately $0.8 million based on the diffeebetween the interest
rates. The swap was settled on December 1, 2002f@ million when the underlying bank credit fagiwas terminated. The
ineffective portion of this swap reported in cutrperiod expenses was a $0.5 million gain and uponination of the swap we
recognized a $0.7 million loss. Effective on Oaplh, 2008, we had elected a one month reset ofieun Loan C rather than the
three month reset period. As this interest ratepsagreement contained a three month reset pénedwap was no longer effective
and no longer qualified as a cash flow hedge. Gésin the fair value of this swap as of Octobe&2Q0)8 were reported in current
period income rather than deferred in other congmsive income. An additional $0.2 million of acauated other comprehensive
loss was reclassified into interest expense asgkbber 1, 2009 in order to recognize the impaet the same period in which the
hedged transaction affected earnings. On Decemlt#80B, the remaining $0.6 million in accumulatéideo comprehensive loss was
reclassified into interest expense.

NOTE 8. FAIR VALUE ACCOUNTING

FASB ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements anccdsures” established a hierarchal disclosure fraonke associated with
the level of pricing observability utilized in meaig fair value. This framework defined three lisvef inputs to the fair value
measurement process and requires that each fag watasurement be assigned to a level correspotudthg lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement ireitsirety. The three broad levels of inputs defibgdhe FASB ASC Topic 820
hierarchy are as follows:

« Level 1 Inputs—quoted prices (unadjusted) in a&ctharkets for identical assets or liabilities tie reporting entity
has the ability to access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 Inputs—inputs other than quoted pricetuited within Level 1 that are observable for theeasr liability,
either directly or indirectly. If the asset or liily has a specified (contractual) term, a Levéh@ut must be
observable for substantially the full term of tleset or liability; and

* Level 3 Inputs—unobservable inputs for the assdbility. These unobservable inputs reflect émity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions that marketipantits would use in pricing the asset or liahilégd are
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developed based on the best information availabtbeé circumstances (which might include the rapgréntity’s
own data).

As a result of the adoption of the fair value psims, we modified the assumptions used in meagtiim fair value of our
derivative positions. Specifically, we now incluithe impact of our own credit risk on derivativebilities measured at fair value as
defined. Counterparty credit-risk adjustments augliad to derivatives, such as over-the-counteivdgves, where the base valuation
uses market parameters based on LIBOR interestuates. Not all counterparties have the same ttris#tias that implied by the
relevant LIBOR curve, so it is necessary to conside market value of the credit risk of the coupéety in order to estimate the fair
value of such an item. Bilateral or “own” credikiadjustments are applied to our own credit riskermvwaluing derivatives measured
at fair value. Credit adjustments consider thenestiéd future cash flows between the Company arabitaterparties under the terms
of the instruments and affect the credit risk amhluation of those cash flows, rather than atgaitime assessment of the current
recognized net asset or liability.

The fair value of our liabilities was impacted by @redit ratings as established by agencies ssidhomdy’s Investor Services
(“Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”). The estited change in the fair value of these liabilitias|uding the credit risk and alll
other market variables, was a gain of $1.5 milfienthe period ended December 1, 2009. We setiledutstanding swap
transactions on December 1, 2009 when we termir@tethen existing bank credit facilities resultinga loss of $2.3 million. The
loss represents the difference in the discountagevestimated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 826 the actual amount the
bank was willing to accept in an arms length tratiea.

As of December 31, 2009, each major category aftagseasured at fair value on a non-recurring lveséscategorized as
follows:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As of December 31, 2009: (Dollars in thousands)
Non-recurring assets subject to fair value measentm
Broadcast licenses $ 156,286 — — $ 156,286
Goodwill 483 — — 483
Other indefinite-lived intangible assets 1,961 — — 1,961
Total $ 158,730 — — $ 158,730

Interest Rate Caps

On October 18, 2006, we purchased two interestoagts for $0.1 million to mitigate exposure tongsinterest rates based on
LIBOR. The first interest rate cap covers $50.0iom of borrowings under the credit facility forthree year period. The second
interest rate cap covers $50.0 million of borrovgingder the credit facility for a four year peridBoth interest rate caps are at
7.25%. The caps do not qualify for hedge accograimd accordingly, all changes in fair value hagerbincluded as a component of
interest expense. For the years ended Decemb@08Z, 2008 and 2009, interest expense of $31XBYO00 and $350,
respectively, was recorded related to our intewstcaps. The interest rate cap agreementstereneated in December 2009 in
conjunction with the cancellation of the underlyohgpt under our prior credit facilities.

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES

The consolidated provision (benefit) for incomeesfrom continuing operations for Salem consisfetie following:
December 31,
2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Current:
Federal $ = $ (61) $ (237)
State 448 323 293
448 262 56
Deferred:
Federal 6,392 (14,985) (3,038)
State 539 (4,428) (1,228)
6,931 (19,413) (4,266)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes $ 7,379 $ (19,151) $  (4,210)
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Discontinued operations are reported net of theptaxision (benefit) of $(0.6) million in 2007, lmillion in 2008 and $(0.1)
million in 2009.

The consolidated deferred tax asset and liakibitysisted of the following:
December 31,
2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Financial statement accruals not currently dedlectib $ 5,508 $ 4,598
Net operating loss, AMT credit and other carryfards 34,882 41,636
State taxes 151 151
Other 2,433 2,475
Total deferred tax assets 42,974 48,860
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets @85 (2,385)
Net deferred tax assets $ 40,124 $ 46,475

Deferred tax liabilities:
Excess of net book value of property, plant, eqeipnhand software for

financial reporting purposes over tax b $ 9,705 $ 10,484
Excess of net book value of intangible assetsifiantcial reporting

purposes over tabasit 65,336 66,510
Unrecognized tax benefits 3,659 3,754
Other (1,140) -
Total deferred tax liabilities 77,560 80,748
Net deferred tax liabilities $ 37,436 $ 34,273

The following table reconciles the above net deféax liabilities to the financial statements:
December 31,

2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Deferred income tax asset per balance sheet $ 5,670 $ 4,700
Deferred income tax liability per balance sheet (43,106) (38,973)
$ (37,436) $ (34,273)

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to the provision for income tax is as foltow
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Statutory federal income tax rate (at 35%) $ 5,798 $ (18,901) $ (4,365)
Effect of state taxes, net of federal 642 (2,683) (608)
Permanent items 777 2,247 1,316
Other, net 162 186 (553)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes $ 7,379 $ (19,151) $ (4,210)

At December 31, 2009, we had net operatisg &arryforwards for federal income tax purposesppi-oximately $86.5 million
that expire in 2019 through 2029 and for statenmedax purposes of approximately $715.8 milliort #hpire in years 2009 through
2029. For financial reporting purposes at Decendfie2009, we had a valuation allowance of $2.4iom|Inet of federal benefit, to
offset a portion of the deferred tax assets reltdesiate net operating loss carryforwards that n@tybe realized.

NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company and its subsidiaries, incident to utsitess activities, are parties to a number ofl legeedings, lawsuits,
arbitration and other claims including the purpdrtéass action described below. Such mattersujes to many uncertainties and
outcomes that are not predictable with assurafite. Company maintains insurance that may provigerage for such matters.
Consequently, the Company is unable to ascertainitmate aggregate amount of monetary liabilityhe financial impact with
respect to these matters. The Company believéisisattme, that the final resolution of these raegt individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effpon the Company’s annual consolidated financialtjwm, results of operations or
cash flows.
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Salem leases various land, offices, studios aner @fuipment under operating leases that genexgiliye over the next ten to
twenty-five years. The majority of these leasessaibject to escalation clauses and may be renfwvedccessive periods ranging
from one to five years on terms similar to curregteements and except for specified increasesselpayments. Rental expense
included in operating expense under all lease aggats was $15.1 million, $15.5 million and $15.Tiom in 2007, 2008 and 2009,

respectively.

Future minimum rental payments required under djmgrdeases that have initial or remaining non-edalsle lease terms in
excess of one year as of December 31, 2009, dodl@ss:

Related Parties Other Total
(Dollars in thousands)

2010 $ 1,216 $ 7,703 $ 8,919
2011 1,141 6,628 7,769
2012 851 6,136 6,987
2013 775 5,769 6,544
2014 707 4,994 5,701
Thereafter 4,518 27,451 31,969
$ 9,208 $ 58,681 $ 67,889

NOTE 11. STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company has one stock option plan. The AmeadddRestated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Rlaidws the
Company to grant stock options to employees, dirscofficers and advisors of the Company. A maximaf 3,100,000 shares are
authorized under the Plan. Options generally vest a four year period and have a maximum ternivefyears from the vesting
date. The Plan provides that vesting may be aatel@in certain corporate transactions of the Campahe Plan provides that the
Board of Directors, or a committee appointed byBbard, has discretion, subject to certain lintiismodify the terms of outstanding
options. We recognize non-cash stock based cosatien expense related to the estimated fair vaflstock options granted in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 “Compensation-eStBompensation.”

The following table reflects the components of ktbased compensation expense recognized in theoGdated Statements of
Operations for the years ended December 31, 2@0B and 2009:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Stock option compensation expense included in catp@xpenses $ 2,338 $ 2,727 $ 272
Restricted stock shares compensation expense ettinccorporate expenses 59 36 —
Stock option compensation expense included in lmastcperating expenses 830 471 220
Stock option compensation expense included in moadrast operating expenses 155 140 96
Total stock-based compensation expense, pre-tax $ 3,382 $ 3,374 $ 588
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expe (1,499 (1,422 20€
Total stock-based compensation expense, net of tax $ 1,883 $ 1,952 $ 796
I I L]

Stock option and restricted stock grants

The Plan allows the Company to grant stock optamtsshares of restricted stock to employees, dirgcdfficers and advisors
of the Company. The option exercise price is sétatlosing price of the Company’s common stockhendate of grant, and the
related number of shares granted is fixed at thattpn time. The Plan also provides for grantsesftricted stock units. Eligible
employees may receive stock options annually withrtumber of shares and type of instrument geyestatermined by the
employee’s salary grade and performance leveldttitian, certain management and professional lemgloyees typically receive a
stock option grant upon commencement of employmémt-employee directors of the Company have redeigstricted stock
grants that vest one year from the date of issuasaeell as stock options that vest immediatelye Pran does not allow key
employees and directors (restricted persons) tacieseean option during a pre-defined black outqubrEmployees may participate in
a 10b5-1 Plan available to exercise options acogrtti predefined criteria.

We use the Black-Scholes option valuation modeistimate the grant date fair value of stock optidime expected volatility
reflects the consideration of the historical vdigtiof our stock as determined by the closing priver a six to twelve year term that
is generally commensurate with the expected terthebption. The expected dividends reflectedd@®take into consideration our
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payment of special dividends in 2006 and 2007. &pected term of the option is based on evaluatidhsstorical and expected
future employee exercise behavior. The risk-fréerast rates for periods within the expected tefrth@® option are based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect during the period tptions were granted. We use historical datatimate future forfeiture rates to
apply against the gross amount of compensatiomsepgetermined using the option valuation model.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, all seniecutives voluntarily surrendered options (vested unvested) to the
Company. The voluntary surrender was not accomganjea concurrent grant of (or offer to grant) plaeement award or other
valuable consideration. The surrender was accodateas a repurchase for no consideration. As atrels 741,854 options were
voluntarily surrendered resulting in approximatel$1.6 million increase in stock-based compensabqense in the third quarter of
2008.

The weighted-average assumptions used to estitmatait value of the stock options using the Bl&atoles option valuation
model were as follows for the years ended DecerdbegP009, 2008 and 2007:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
Expected volatility 43.18% - 46.4% 44.47% — 45.08% 68.91% - 95.93%
Expected dividends 0.0% 4.13% 0.0%
Expected term (in years) 6-9 6-12 6-9
Risk-free interest rate 4.55% 3.33% 2.34

Stock option information with respect to the Comparstock-based compensation plans during the tyeaes ended
December 31, 2009 is as follows (Dollars in thodsarxcept share amounts, weighted average expriigeand weighted average
grant date fair value):

Weighted Average  Weighted Average Grant Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate

Options Shares Exercise Price Date Fair Value Contractual Term Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2007 2,146,564 $ 2230 $ 13.88 $ —
Granted 395,400 11.78 8.08
Exercised (2,500) 11.81 — 4
Forfeited or expired (117,440) 19.59 13.75
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 2,422,024 $ 20.73 $ 13.98 4.3 years $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 1,475,337 $2424 $ 15.07 2.7 years $ —
Outstanding at January 1, 2008 2,422,024 $ 730. $ 13.98 $ —
Granted 55,000 5.48 1.86 —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited or expired (1,914,849) 22.12 14.04
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 562,175 $ 614.5 $ 911 4.0 years $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 329,772 $ 16.57 $ 10.22 2.4 years $ —
Outstanding at January 1, 2009 562.175 $ 1456 $ 911 4.0 years $ 28
Granted 910,000 0.73 1.49 4,787
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited or expired (130,300) 16.32 10.66 53
Outstanding at December 31, 200¢ 1,341,875 5.01 3.80 5.0 years 4,762
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 304,688 15.15 9.18 2.9 years 6
Expected to Vest 984,809 2.03

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the diffeg between the Company’s closing stock price ezeber 31, 2009 of
$5.99 and the option exercise price of the shamestbck options that were in the money, multipligdthe number of shares
underlying such options. The total fair value pfions vested during the years ended December(®B, 2008 and 2007 was $0.8
million, $2.4 million and $2.4 million, respectivel
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The fair values of shares of restricted stock atermnined based on the closing price of the Companymon stock on the grant

dates. Information regarding the Company’s re®tictock during the three years ended Decembe2(8B, is as follows:
Weighted Average Grant

Restricted Stock Units Shares Date Fair Value
Non-Vested at January 1, 2007 6,000 $ 11.15
Granted 5,000 10.15
Lapsed (6,000) 11.15
Forfeited - —
Non-Vested at December 31, 2007 5,000 $ 10.15
Non-Vested at January 1, 2008 5,000 $ 10.15
Granted — —
Lapsed (5,000) 10.15
Forfeited — —
Non-Vested at December 31, 2008 — $ =
Non-Vested at January 1, 2009 — $ —
Granted 5,000 0.36
Lapsed — =
Forfeited — —
Non-Vested at December 31, 2009 5,000 0.36

As of December 31, 2009, there was $1.1 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related tevesited awards of stock
options and restricted shares. This cost is erpdct be recognized over a weighted-average pefi@d years.

Additional information regarding options outstargliss of December 31, 2009, is as follows:

Weighted Average

Contractual Life Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Exercisable Averag

Exercise Prices Options (Years) Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$ 0.36- $ 3.00 866,000 5.4 $ 061 — —
$ 3.01 -$ 6.00 89,000 6.9 $ 4.80 9,500 5.36
$6.01- $ 9.00 1,500 54 $ 7.99 750 $ 7.99
$9.01 - $12.00 111,025 4.4 $ 11.70 60,950 $ 11.61
$12.01-$15.00 139,825 35 $ 13.95 103,963 $ 14.01
$15.01 - $ 18.00 67,000 2.7 $ 16.75 67,000 $ 16.75
$18.01-$21.00 32,500 2.6 $ 18.81 32,500 $ 18.81
$21.01-$24.00 32,175 24 $ 21.70 21,175 21%5
$24.01-$25.50 2,850 21 $ 24.80 2,850 $ 24.80
$ 0.36- $25.50 1,341,875 5.0 $ 501 304,688 $ 15.15

NOTE 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Leases with Principal Stockholders

A trust controlled by the Chief Executive Officdrtbe Company, Edward G. Atsinger Ill, owns redh&son which assets of
one radio station are located. Salem has entetediilease agreement with this trust. Rental expeglated to this lease included in
operating expense for 2007, 2008 and 2009 amoutat$#i38,000, $145,000 and $151,000 respectively.

Land and buildings occupied by various Salem rathtions are leased from entities owned by the Gmyis CEO and its
Chairman of the Board. Rental expense under feeses included in operating expense for 2007, 2008009 amounted to $1.2
million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectivel
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On April 8, 2008, we acquired land in Seattle, Wiagton, Denver, Colorado and Pittsburgh, Pennsyéviiom entities controlled by
Principal Shareholders for approximately $5.0 wiilli This transaction was approved by the indepdndembers of the Company
Board of Directors and was based on the appraiakgk from a third-party valuation firm. As a resufithis transaction, the
Company will reduce rental expense by approxim&b&§8,000 annually and has permanently secured thiglstransmitter site
locations. We also assumed two income-producingelegreements as follows: (a) a diplex agreemehedeattle-Tacoma,
Washington site generating current annual rentarnre of approximately $139,000, and (b) a mobikepteone lease at the
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania site generating currentiahrental income of approximately $26,000. A pegiisite negotiated by the
Company as an important condition of the closinthef Transmitter Site Purchases was the entrydZtmpany into new
transmitter site leases for eight existing trantngites (the “New Transmitter Site Leases”) ofsetdy the Company and leased
from the Principal Stockholders. Seven of these Neansmitter Site Leases replace existing tranemsite leases between the
Company and the Principal Shareholder which weteescheduled to expire or had option exerciséldess in 2009 or 2010. As a
result, we are not required to renegotiate a nasd®r exercise an option on any of its relatety peases until 2016.

Radio Stations Owned by the Eppersons

Nancy A. Epperson, the wife of the Chairman ofBloard, Stuart W. Epperson, currently serves adfaren director and
stockholder of six radio stations in Virginia, fivedio stations in North Carolina, and five radmtisns in Florida.

Chesapeake-Portsmouth Broadcasting Corporatione§@beake-Portsmouth”) is a company controlled bycM& pperson, wife
of Salem’s Chairman of the Board Stuart W. Eppeesmhsister of CEO Edward G. Atsinger Ill. ChesdgePortsmouth owns and
operates radio stations WIGR-AM, Jacksonville,iBlarWwzZNzZ-AM, Jacksonville, Florida and WZAZ-AM, disonville, Florida,
which we sold to Chesapeake-Portsmouth on Deceint#806, $2.8 million resulting in a pre-tax gafr$6.1 million.

The markets where these radio stations are lo@atedot currently served by stations owned andatpdrby the Company.
Under his employment agreement, Mr. Epperson igired to offer the Company a right of first refusélopportunities related to the
Company’s business.

Radio Stations Owned by Mr. Hinz

Mr. Hinz, a director of the Company, through comiparor entities controlled by him, operates thagia stations in Southern
California. These radio stations are formatted lmi€ian Teaching and Talk programming in the Sglatenguage. Operating radio
stations with such programming in the markets reddyy such stations is not currently part of Sagecnirrent business strategy.

Truth For Life—Mr. Hinz and Mr. Weinberg

Truth For Life is a non-profit organization thatgustomer of Salem Communications. During 200082and 2009, Truth For
Life paid the Company approximately $2.2 millio2.4 million and $2.0 million, respectively, for tne on its stations. Mr. Hinz is
an active member of the board of directors of Tfath_ife. Mr. Weinberg served on the board of diars of Truth For Life through
June of 2007.

Split-Dollar Life Insurance

The Company purchased split-dollar life insuranakcges for its Chairman and Chief Executive Offite 1997. The premiums
were $230,000, for each of the years ended DeceBih&t007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. The Comjmthe owner of the
policies and is entitled to recover all of the piems paid on these policies. The Company recondssaet based on the lower of the
aggregate premiums paid or insurance cash surrentier. As of December 31, 2008 and 2009, we dmzban asset of $1.9 million
and $2.4 million, respectively. Benefits above derglond the cumulative premiums paid will go to beaeficiary trusts established
by each of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Transportation Services Supplied by Atsinger Avaati

From time to time, the Company rents aircraft framompany that is owned by Edward G. AtsingerAH.approved by the
independent members of the Company’s board of irgcthe Company rents these aircraft on an hdaays at what the Company
believes are market rates and uses them for gecmabrate needs. Total rental expense for thieseat for 2007, 2008 and 2009
amounted to approximately $368,000, $188,000 a% D0, respectively.

87



NOTE 13. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

We maintain a 401(k) defined contribution plan (the1(k) Plan”), which covers all eligible employeas defined in the 401(k)
Plan). Participants are allowed to make nonforfidéta@ontributions up to 60% of their annual salényt, may not exceed the annual
maximum contribution limitations established by th&ernal Revenue Service. The plan allows a Camypaatch of 50% on the first
3% of the amounts contributed by each participadt26% on the next 3% contributed but does not iImpacticipants’ contributions
in excess of 6% of their compensation per pay perMye contributed and expensed $1.1 million, $6iliion and $0 to the 401(k)
Plan in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. The @m match was temporarily suspended in July 28Q&a& of an extensive cost
reduction program.

NOTE 14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Holders of Class A common stock are entitled towte per share and holders of Class B common staekntitled to ten votes
per share, except for specified related party tretiens. Holders of Class A common stock and (Basemmon stock vote together
as a single class on all matters submitted to @ @bstockholders, except that holders of Clasemroon stock vote separately for
two independent directors.

In November 2004, the Company’s Board of Directrhorized a $25.0 million stock repurchase progsabject to the
Company remaining in compliance with its creditilfies and bond indenture, which limit the Compangbility to repurchase
shares. The Company’s Board of Directors authdraz825.0 million share repurchase program in M2352 In February 2006, the
Board of Directors increased Salem'’s existing shaperchase program to permit the repurchase ¢ ap additional $25.0 million
of shares of Salem’s Class A common stock. Thpsnghase program terminated on December 31, 208&.amount the Company
may repurchase may be limited by certain restmstionder its credit facilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Salengdmdchased 2,317,650 shares of Class A commok &inapproximately
$34.0 million at an average price of $14.67 pereshand had 23,668,788 shares of its Class A aass@ common stock
outstanding. During the year ended December 316,2Balem had repurchased 1,490,625 shares of £le@smon stock for
approximately $20.7 million at an average pricé18.87 per share.

On August 23, 2007, we paid a special cash dividgr8D.42 per share on its Class A and Class B acomstock to shareholders
of record as of the close of business on Augus2@07. The cash payment amounted to approximaf€y0dmillion. On July 28,
2006, we paid a special cash dividend of $0.6Gshare on its Class A and Class B common stockarebkblders of record as of the
close of business on July 17, 2006. The cash patyameounted to approximately $14.6 million.

We account for stock-based compensation experasecordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 “Compensation-eistexpense.”
As a result, $3.4 million, $3.4 million and $0.6llion of non-cash stock-based compensation expkasédeen recorded to additional
paid-in capital for the year ended December 31720008, and 2009, respectively.
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NOTE 15. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED ):

The following table sets forth selected financ&gults of the Company on a quarterly basis.

The Statements of Operations Data for all prioiqusr presented have been reclassified to reflecoprerating results of WRRD-
AM, Milwaukee, Wisconsin and WFZH-FM, Milwaukee, ¥¢bnsin, an€€CCM Magazineas discontinued operations. In 2007, we
had a plan in place to sell these radio statiodscampleted the sale of these entities during s gnded December 31, 2008.

Total revenue
Operating
income (loss)
Net income (loss)
before
discontinued
operations

Net income (loss)
Basic earnings
(loss) share

from continuing
operations
Diluted earnings
(loss) per share
from continuing
operations

Basic and diluted
earnings (loss)
per share

Basic and diluted
earnings (loss)
per share

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

$ 54,497 $ 48,659 $ 57,917 $ 50,492 $ 54,892 $ 49,224 $ 55,184 $ 50,838
12,933 8,921 10,382 (6,461) (14,082) (5,452) (41,060) 10,593
3,655 2,912 2,933 (5,053) (11,033) (4,631) (30,407) (1,491)
$ 5,023 $ 2,889 $ 3,524 $ (5,017) $(11,042) $ (4,636) $(30,591) $ (1,582)
$ 0.15 $ 012 $ 0.12 $ (0.21) $ (0.47) $ (0.19) $ (1.28) $ (0.06)
$ 015 $ 012 $ 012 $ (0.21) $ (0.47) $ (0.19) $ (1.28) $ (0.06)
$ 021 $ 012 $ 015 $ (0.21) $ (0.47) $ (0.19) $ (1.29) $ (0.07)
0.21 $ 012 $ 015 $ (0.21) $ (0.47) $ (0.19) $ (1.29) $ (0.07)
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NOTE 16. SEGMENT DATA

FASB ASC Topic 280 “Segment Reporting” requires pamies to provide certain information about th@ierating segments.
We have one reportable operating segment - radiadeasting. The remaining non-reportable segnuamtsist of our Internet
businesses, SWN, Townhall.com, and Salem ConsurneuBts and our publishing businesses, Salem Pirgisind Xulon Press,
which do not meet the reportable segment quanitaktiresholds and accordingly are aggregated batomon-broadcast. The radio-
broadcasting segment also operates various ratimries.

Management uses operating income before depratjaimortization, impairments of indefinite-liveddngible assets, (gain)
loss on disposal of assets, and costs of denieergp@bandoned projects and terminated transa@®its measure of profitability for
purposes of assessing performance and allocathogirees.

Radio Non-
Broadcas! broadcas! Corporate Consolidated
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net revenue $ 172,055 27,158 = $ 199,213
Operating expenses 108,149 23,555 14,005 45,7
Operating income (loss) before depreciatior

amortization, costs of denied tower site,

abandoned projects and terminated

transactions, impairment of indefinite-lived

intangible assets and (gain) loss on dispose

assets 63,906 3,603 (14,005) 53,504
Depreciation 10,418 1,965 1,058 13,441
Amortization 45 1,624 10 1,679
Cost of denied tower site, abandoned projects

and terminated transactions 1,111 — — 1,111
Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible

assets 26,837 1,159 — 27,996
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets 1,666 12 2) 1,676
Operating income (loss) from continuing

operations $ 23,829 $ (1,157) $ (15,071) $ 7,601
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Net revenue $ 194,113 $ 28,377 $ = $ 222,490
Operating expenses 124,881 25,867 20,040 880,7
Operating income (loss) before depreciatior

amortization, cost of denied tower site,

abandoned projects and terminated

transactions, impairment of indefinite-lived

intangible assets and (gain) loss on dispose

assets 69,232 2,510 (20,040) 51,702
Depreciation 10,536 1,506 1,291 13,333
Amortization 68 2,720 15 2,803
Cost of denied tower site, abandoned projects

and terminated transactions 1,275 — — 1,275
Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible

assets 73,010 — — 73,010
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets (6,918) 24 2 (6,892)
Operating income (loss) from continuing

operations $ (8,739) $ (1,740) $ (21,348) $ (31,827)
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Net revenue $ 206,055 $ 24,622 $ — $ 230,677
Operating expenses 130,844 22,921 22,314 196,0
Operating income (loss) before depreciatior

amortization and (gain) loss on disposal of

assets 75,211 1,701 (22,314) 54,598
Depreciation 10,174 761 1,112 12,047
Amortization 131 2,885 19 3,035
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets (2,229) 13 26 (2,190)
Operating income (loss) from continuing

operations $ 67,135 $ (1,958) $  (23,471) $ 41,706
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As of December 31, 2009

Total property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill

As of December 31, 2008

Total property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Radio Non-
Broadcast broadcast Corporate Consolidated
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 105,726 $ 5,564 $ 9,884 $21,174
4,003 13,631 8 17,642
$ 117,732 $ 6,176 $ 10,002 $ 133,910
4,361 13,861 8 18,230

On March 5, 2010, we entered into an APA to re-aediTEK-AM, Houston, Texas for $3.7 million. Wean programming
the station pursuant to a TBA with the buyer on ¢ia8, 2010.

On February 12, 2010, we completed the acquistfddotAir.com, an online site for $2.0 million.

Subsequent events reflect all applicable transagtiorough the date of the filing.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANT S ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProcediM/e maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatedesigned to
ensure that information required to be disclosealinreports pursuant to the Securities Exchandgeoft934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), is recorded accurately, processadimarized and reported within the time periodsgied in the SEC'’s rules and
forms and that such information is accumulated@mmunicated to our management, including our Chiefcutive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allaw fimely decisions regarding required disclosimedesigning and evaluating the
disclosure controls and procedures, managemengméexs that any controls and procedures, no madwerwell designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assuranaehédving the desired control objectives, and mansmt is required to apply its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relatiopsdfi possible controls and procedures. As requiseRules 13a-15(b) and 15d-
15(b) under the Exchange Act, we carried out atuatian, under the supervision and with the pgrtition of senior management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chighancial Officer, of our disclosure controls gmdcedures, as such term is
defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) proatedgunder the Exchange Act, as of the end of ¢hie¢ covered by this report.
Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive @iffiand our Chief Financial Officer concluded that disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assutavel as of the end of the period covered bg/riport.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Con@wker Financial ReportingOur management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control overnfaial reporting, as such term is defined in ExclegaAgt Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f). Under the supervision and with the partiti of our management, including our Chief ExegriOfficer and Chief Financial
Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of ourrima control over financial reporting as of DecemBg, 2009 based on the criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organimatif the Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under thatdvaonk and applicable Securities and Exchange Cosiomsules, our
management concluded that our internal control émancial reporting was effective as of Decemhbkr2009.

(c) Attestation Report of Registered Public AccmgnEirm. This annual report does not include an attestagport of our
registered public accounting firm regarding theingal control over financial reporting. Managen®report was not subject to
attestation by our registered public accounting foursuant to temporary rules of the SecuritieshBErge Commission that permit us
to provide only management’s report in this anmeapbrt.

(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Regotg. There were no changes in our internal contrer dwnancial

reporting during our fourth fiscal quarter for 200@t have materially affected, or are reasondkéhy to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

Not applicable.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemeardar the heading
“DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANTexpected to be filed within 120 days of our &kgear end.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemamntar the heading
“EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION,” expected to be filed with120 days of our fiscal year end.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemartar the heading
“SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS” expected to be filed within 120 days ofr discal year end.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this item relating ©eértain Relationships and Related Party Transagtisrincorporated by
reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement untiertieading “CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRAMETIONS”
expected to be filed within 120 days of our fispaér end.

The information required by this item relating ifector Independence” is incorporated by referenosur Definitive Proxy
Statement under the heading “DIRECTOR INDEPENDENE@Hjected to be filed within 120 days of our fisgaar end.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemamntar the heading
“PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES,” expectéa be filed within 120 days of our fiscal year end.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@)
1. Financial Statements. The financial stateisirequired to be filed hereunder are includdteim 8.

2. Financial Statement Schedule. The follgwWiinancial statement schedule for the years e mber 31, 2007, 2008 and
2009 is filed as part of this report and shouldds in conjunction with the consolidated finansi@tements.
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SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
Schedule Il — Valuation & Qualifying Accounts
(Dollars in thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged to Deductions
Beginning of Cost and Bad Debt Balance at

Description Period Expense Write-offs End of Period
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 7,606 3,233 (2,708) 8,131
Year Ended December 31, 2008
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 8,131 5,006 (4,316) 8,821
Year Ended December 31, 2009
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 8,821 4,881 (3,399) 10,303

All other schedules for which provision is madetia applicable accounting regulation of the Semsiand Exchange
Commission are not required under the relatedunstms or are inapplicable, and therefore have loeeitted.

3. Exhibits.
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

EXHIBIT LIST

Form File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit Filed
Number Herewith

3.01

3.02.02

3.03

3.04.02

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

4.01

4.02

Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of
Salem Communications
Corporation, a Delaware
corporation.

Amended and Restated
Bylaws of Salem
Communications Corporation
a Delaware Corporation.
Certificate of Incorporation of
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation.
Amended and Restated
Bylaws of Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation, a Delaware
Corporation.

Certificate of Incorporation of
Salem Communications
Acquisition Corporation.

Bylaws of Salem
Communications Acquisition
Corporation.

Certificate of Incorporation of
SCA License Corporation.

Bylaws of SCA License
Corporation.

Specimen of Class A common
stock certificate.

Fifth Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement, dated as ¢
September 25, 2003, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, General
Electric Capital Corporation,
as Syndication Agent, Suntru
Bank, as Syndication Agent,
Fleet National Bank, as
Documentation Agent, ING
(U.S.) Capital, LLC, as
Documentation Agent, The
Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent, and the
Lenders party thereto.

8-K 333-41733-29

8-K 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

10-Q 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

S-1/A 333-76649

10-Q 000-26497

95

04/14/99

06/26/07

09/08/00

08/09/07

09/08/00

09/08/00

09/08/00

09/08/00

Declared
Effective
6/30/99

11/06/03

3.1

3.1

2.01

3.04.01

2.03

2.04

2.06

2.06

4.09

4.09



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

Second Amended and
Restated Parent Security
Agreement dated as of June
15, 2001, by and among
Salem Communications
Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and The Bank of
New York, as Administrative
Agent.

Amendment #1, dated as of
May 19, 2004, to the Fifth
Amended and Restated Cred
Agreement, dated as of
September 25, 2003, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, General
Electric Capital Corporation,
as Syndication Agent, Suntru
Bank, as Syndication Agent,
Fleet National Bank, as
Documentation Agent, ING
(U.S.) Capital, LLC, as
Documentation Agent, The
Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent, and the
Lenders party thereto.
Amendment #2, dated as of
July 7, 2005, to the Fifth
Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of
September 25, 2003, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation,
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, General
Electric Capital Corporation,
as Syndication Agent, Suntrust
Bank, as Syndication Agent,
Fleet National Bank, as
Documentation Agent, ING
(U.S.) Capital, LLC, as
Documentation Agent, The
Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent, and the
Lenders party thereto.
Indenture between Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, certain named
guarantors and The Bank of
New York, as Trustee, dated
as of June 25, 2001, relating
the 9% Series A and Series E
Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2011.

Form of 9% Senior
Subordinated Notes (filed as
part of exhibit 4.06).

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

96

08/14/01

08/06/04

07/13/05

08/14/01

08/14/01

4.24.02

411

4.12

4.10.03



Exhibit
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Form

File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

4.08

4.09

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

Form of Note Guarantee (filet
as part of exhibit 4.06).

Registration Rights
Agreement dated as of June
25, 2001, by and among
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, the
guarantors and initial
purchasers named therein.
Indenture, dated as of
December 23, 2002, relating
to the 7%% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 201(
by and among Salem Holdinc
the Company and The Bank ¢
New York, as trustee, with
form of Note incorporated
Form of 7%% Senior
Subordinated Notes (filed as
part of exhibit 4.10).

Form of Note Guarantee (filet
as part of exhibit 4.10).

Supplemental Indenture No. 1
to the 7%.% Senior
Subordinated Notes, dated as
of December 23, 2002,
between Salem
Communications Corporation
and its guarantors, and Bank
of New York.

Supplemental Indenture No. :
to the 9% Senior Subordinate
Notes, dated as of December
16, 2002, between Salem
Communications Corporation
and its guarantors, and Bank
of New York.

Supplemental Indenture No. 2
to the 7%% Senior
Subordinated Notes, dated as
of June 12, 2003, between
Salem Communications
Corporation and its
guarantors, and Bank of New
York.

Supplemental Indenture No. :
to the 9% Senior Subordinate
Notes, dated as of June 12,
2003, between Salem
Communications Corporation
and its guarantors, and Bank
of New York.

Consent No. 2, dated as of
July 23, 2003, under the
Fourth Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement between
Salem Communications
Corporation and its
guarantors, and The Bank of
New York.

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

8-K

8-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

97

08/14/01

08/14/01

12/23/02

12/23/02

12/23/02

03/31/03

03/31/03

08/06/03

08/06/03

08/06/03

4.28

4.10

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26



Exhibit
Number
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Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

4.18

4.19

4.20

Amendment #3, dated as of
June 9, 2006, to the Fifth
Amended and Restated Cred
Agreement, dated as of
September 25, 2003, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, General
Electric Capital Corporation, 8-K 000-26497
as Syndication Agent, Suntru
Bank, as Syndication Agent,
Fleet National Bank, as
Documentation Agent, ING
(U.S.) Capital, LLC, as
Documentation Agent, The
Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent, and the
Lenders party thereto.
Amendment #4, dated as of
October 24, 2007, to the Fifth
Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of
September 25, 2003, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation,
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, General
Electric Capital Corporation,
as Syndication Agent, 8-K 000-26497
SunTrust Bank, as Syndication
Agent, Fleet National Bank, as
Documentation Agent, ING
(U.S.) Capital, LLC, as
Documentation Agent, The
Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent, and the
Lenders party thereto.

Amendment #5, dated as of
March 11, 2009, to the Fifth
Amended and Restated Cred
Agreement, dated as of
September 25, 2003, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation, General
Electric Capital Corporation,
as Syndication Agent, Sun
Trust Bank, as Syndication 8-K 000-26497
Agent, Bank of America, N.A.
(successor by merger to Flee
National Bank), as
Documentation Agent, ING
Capital, LLC, as
Documentation Agent, The
Bank of New York Mellon
(formerly the Bank of New
York), as Administrative
Agent, and the Lenders party
thereto.

98

06/15/06

10/30/07

03/12/09

4.13

4.19

99.1



Exhibit
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Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

10.01.01

10.01.02

10.02.01

Indenture, dated as of
December 1, 2009, among
Salem Communications
Corporation, the subsidiary
guarantors party thereto and
The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
as Trustee and Collateral
Agent.

Form of 9.625% Senior
Secured Second Lien Notes
due 2016 (filed as part of
Exhibit 4.21).

Second Lien Security
Agreement, dated as of
December 1, 2009, among
Salem Communications
Corporation, the subsidiary
guarantors party thereto and
The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
as Collateral Agent.
Registration Rights
Agreement, dated as of
December 1, 2009, among
Salem Communications
Corporation, the subsidiary
guarantors party thereto and
The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
as Collateral Agent and Banc
of America Securities LLC, as
Representative of the Initial
Purchasers.

Third Supplemental Indenture,

dated as of November 30,
2009, among Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation, the subsidiary
guarantors party thereto and
The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
as Trustee.

Employment Agreement,
dated July 1, 2004, between
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation and
Edward G. Atsinger IlII.
Employment Agreement,
dated July 1, 2007, between
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation and
Edward G. Atsinger Il1.
Employment Agreement,
dated July 1, 2004, between
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation and
Stuart W. Epperson.

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

99

12/03/09

12/03/09

12/03/09

12/03/09

12/03/09

08/06/04

06/26/07

08/06/04

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

10.01.01

10.2

10.02.01



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

10.02.02

10.03.01

10.04.01

10.04.02

10.05.01

10.05.02

10.06.01

10.06.03

10.06.04

10.06.05

Employment Agreement,
dated July 1, 2007, between
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation and
Stuart W. Epperson.
Employment Agreement,
dated July 1, 2007, between
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation and Eric
H. Halvorson.

Employment Agreement,
effective as of September 1,
2005, between Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation and Joe D. Davis
Employment Agreement,
effective as of July 1, 2007,
between Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation and Joe D. Davis
Employment Agreement,
effective as of September 1,
2005, between Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation and David A.R.
Evans.

Employment Agreement,
effective as of September 15,
2008, between Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation and David A.R.
Evans

Antenna/tower/studio lease
between Common Ground
Broadcasting, Inc. (KKMS-
AM/Eagan, Minnesota) and
Messrs. Atsinger and
Epperson expiring in 2016.
Antenna/tower lease (KFAX-
FM/Hayward, California) and
Salem Broadcasting
Company, a partnership
consisting of Messrs. Atsinge
and Epperson, expiring in
2013.

Antenna/tower lease between
Inspiration Media, Inc.
(KGNW-AM/Seattle,
Washington) and Messrs.
Atsinger and Epperson
expiring in 2012.
Antenna/tower lease betweer
Inspiration Media, Inc.
(KLFE-AM/Seattle,
Washington) and The Atsinge
Family Trust and Stuart W.
Epperson Revocable Living
Trust expiring in 2014.

8-K

8-K

8-K/A

8-K

8-K

8-K

S4

S4

S4

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

333-41733-29

333-41733-29

333-41733-29

333-41733-29

100

06/26/07

06/26/07

05/25/05

06/26/07

09/27/05

09/09/2008

01/29/98

01/29/98

01/29/98

01/29/98

101

10.3

99.1

10.4

99.1

99.1

10.05.04

10.05.06

10.05.08

10.05.09



Exhibit
Number
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Form

File No.

Date of
First Filing

Exhibit
Number

10.06.06

10.06.07

10.06.08

10.06.09

10.06.10

10.06.11

10.06.12

10.06.13

10.06.13.01

Antenna/tower/studio lease
between Pennsylvania Media
Associates, Inc. (WNTP-
AM/WFIL-AM/Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania) and The
Atsinger Family Trust and
Stuart W. Epperson Revocable
Living Trust expiring 2014.
Antenna/tower lease betweer
New Inspiration Broadcasting
Co., Inc.: as successor in
interest to Radio 1210, Inc.
(KPRZ-AM/San Marcos,
California) and The Atsinger
Family Trust expiring in 2028

Antenna/tower lease between
Salem Media of Texas, Inc.
(KSLR-AM/San Antonio,
Texas) and Atsinger Family
Trust/Epperson Family
Limited Partnership expiring
2009.

Antenna/tower lease betweer
Salem Media of Colorado, Inc
(KNUS-AM/Denver-Boulder,
Colorado) and Messrs.
Atsinger and Epperson
expiring 2016.

Antenna/tower lease between
Salem Media of Colorado, Inc.
and Atsinger Family
Trust/Epperson Family
Limited Partnership (KRKS-
AM/KBJD-AM/Denver,
Colorado) expiring 2009.
Antenna/tower lease betweer
Salem Media of Oregon, Inc.
(KPDQ-AM/FM/Portland,
Oregon), and Messrs. Atsinge
and Epperson expiring 2012.
Antenna/tower lease between
Salem Media of Pennsylvania,
Inc. (WORD-FM/WPIT-
AM/Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania)
and The Atsinger Family Trust
and Stuart W. Epperson
Revocable Living Trust
expiring 2013.

Antenna/tower lease betweer
Salem Media of Texas, Inc.
(KSLR-AM/San Antonio,
Texas) and Epperson-Atsinge
1983 Family Trust expiring
2017.

Amendment to Lease to
Antenna/tower lease between
Salem Media of Texas, Inc.
(KSLR-AM/San Antonio, TX)
and Epperson-Atsinger 1983
Family Trust expiring 2017

S4

S-4

10-K

S-4

10-K

S-4

S4

10-K

333-41733-29

333-41733-29

000-26497

333-41733-29

000-26497

333-41733-29

333-41733-29

333-41733-29

000-26497

101

01/29/98

01/29/98

03/30/00

01/29/98

03/30/00

01/29/98

01/29/98

01/29/98

03/17/2008

10.05.11.02

10.05.12

10.05.13

10.05.15

10.05.16

10.05.17.02

10.05.18

10.05.19

10.06.13.01



Exhibit
Number
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First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
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10.06.13.02

10.06.14

10.06.15

10.06.17

10.06.18

10.06.19

10.06.20

10.06.21

Second Amendment to Lease

to Antenna/tower lease

between Salem Media of

Texas, Inc. (KSLR-AM/San 10-K 000-26497
Antonio, TX) and Epperson-

Atsinger 1983 Family Trust

expiring 2017

Antenna/tower lease between

South Texas Broadcasting,

Inc. (KNTH-AM/Houston-

Galveston, Texas) and S-4 333-41733-29
Atsinger Family Trust and

Stuart W. Epperson Revocable

Living Trust expiring 2015.

Antenna/tower lease betweer
New Inspiration Broadcasting
Co., Inc. successor in interes
to Vista Broadcasting, Inc.
(KFIA-AM/Sacramento,
California) and The Atsinger
Family Trust and Stuart W.
Epperson Revocable Living
Trust expiring 2016.

S-4 333-41733-29

Antenna/tower lease between

Inspiration Media of Texas,

Inc. (KTEK-AM/Alvin,

Texas) and the Atsinger 10-K 405 000-26497
Family Trust and The Stuart

W. Epperson Revocable

Living Trust expiring 2018.

Studio building lease betweer
Salem Radio Properties, Inc. 10-K 000-26497
and Thomas H. Moffit Jr.

Antenna/tower lease between

Pennsylvania Media

Associates Inc. (WTLN-AM/

Orlando, Florida) and Atsinger 10-K 000-26497
Family Trust and Stuart W.

Epperson, revocable living

trust expiring 2045.

Lease Agreement, dated Apri

8, 2008, between Inspiration

Media, Inc. (KDOW-AM/Palo

Alto, CA) and Principal 8-K 000-26497
Shareholders expiring 2023

Lease Agreement, dated April

8, 2008, between New

Inspiration Broadcasting

Company, Inc.(KFAX- 8-K 000-26497
AM/San Francisco, CA) and

Principal Shareholders

expiring 2023

102

03/17/2008

01/29/98

10/29/98

03/31/99

03/31/06

03/16/07

04/14/2008

04/14/2008

10.06.13.02

10.05.20

10.05.21

10.05.23

10.05.24

10.05.25

10.06.20

10.06.21



Exhibit
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Form
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First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

10.06.22

10.06.23

10.06.24

10.06.25

10.06.26

10.06.27

10.07.01

10.07.02

Lease Agreement, dated Apri
8, 2008, between Inspiration
Media, Inc. (KLFE-
AM/Seattle, WA) and
Principal Shareholders
expiring 2023

Lease Agreement, dated April
8, 2008, between South Texas
Broadcasting, Inc. (KNTH-
AM/Houston, TX) and
Principal Shareholders
expiring 2023

Lease Agreement, dated Apri
8, 2008, between Salem Med
of Oregon, Inc. (KPDQ-
AM/Portland, OR) and
Principal Shareholders
expiring 2023

Lease Agreement, dated April
8, 2008, between Common
Ground Broadcasting, Inc.
(KPXQ-AM/Glendale, AZ)
and Principal Shareholders
expiring 2023

Lease Agreement, dated Apri
8, 2008, between Salem Med
of Texas, Inc. (KSLR-AM/Sar
Antonio, TX) and Principal
Shareholders expiring 2023

Lease Agreement, dated April
8, 2008, between
Pennsylvania Media
Associates, Inc. (WFIL-AM
and WNTP-AM/Philadelphia,
PA) and Principal
Shareholders expiring 2023

Asset Purchase Agreement,
dated August 18, 2006, by an
between Caron Broadcasting
Inc. and Chesapeake-
Portsmouth Broadcasting
Corporation (WJGR-AM,
Jacksonville, Florida, and
WZNZ-AM, Jacksonville,
Florida)

Asset Purchase Agreement,
dated September 14, 2006, by
and between Caron
Broadcasting, Inc. and
Chesapeake-Portsmouth
Broadcasting Corporation
(WZAZ-AM, Jacksonville,
Florida)

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

103

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

000-26497

04/14/2008

04/14/2008

04/14/2008

04/14/2008

04/14/2008

04/14/2008

11/09/06

11/09/06

10.06.22

10.06.23

10.06.24

10.06.25

10.06.26

10.06.27

10.06.02

10.06.03
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First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
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10.07.03

10.07.04

10.08.01

10.08.02

10.08.03

10.08.04

10.08.04.01

10.09

10.10.01

10.11

Local Programming and
Marketing Agreement, dated
September 14, 2006, by and
between Caron Broadcasting
Inc. and Chesapeake-
Portsmouth Broadcasting
Corporation (WJGR-AM,
Jacksonville, Florida, and
WZNZ-AM, Jacksonville,
Florida)

Local Programming and
Marketing Agreement, dated
September 14, 2006, by and
between Caron Broadcasting,
Inc. and Chesapeake-
Portsmouth Broadcasting
Corporation (WZAZ-AM,
Jacksonville, Florida)
Amended and Restated 1999
Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to
previously filed Appendix B).

Form of stock option grant for
Amended and Restated 1999
Stock Incentive Plan.

Form of restricted stock optio
grant for Amended and
Restated 1999 Stock Incentiv
Plan.

Amended and Restated 1999
Stock Incentive Plan as
amended and restated through
May 18, 2005.

Amended and Restated 1999
Stock Incentive Plan as
amended and restated throuc
June 3, 2009.

Management Services
Agreement by and among
Salem and Salem
Communications Holding
Corporation, dated August 25,
2000 (incorporated by
reference to previously filed
exhibit 10.11). (7)
Employment Agreement date
January 1, 2008, between
Salem Communications
Holding Corporation and Eva
D. Masyr

Intercreditor Agreement, dated
as of December 1, 2009,
among Salem
Communications Corporation,
the subsidiary guarantors party
thereto, Bank of America,
N.A., as first lien agent and
control agent and the
Collateral Agent.

10-Q 000-26497

10-Q 000-26497

DEF 14A 000-26497

10-K 000-26497

10-Q 000-26497

DEF 14A 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

10-Q 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

8-K 000-26497

104

11/09/06

11/09/06

04/29/03

03/16/05

11/09/05

04/18/05

06/09/09

05/15/01

12/19/07

12/03/09

10.06.04

10.06.05

Appendix B

10.08.02

10.01

Proposal No.
2

10.08.04.01

10.11

99.1

10.1
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First Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
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10.12

10.13

16.01

21.01

23.1

23.3

31.1

31.2

321

32.2

Credit Agreement, dated as ¢
December 1, 2009, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation
as the borrower, Bank of
America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent,
Swingline Lender, L/C Issuer
and a Lender, the other
Lenders party thereto, Banc ¢ 8-K 000-26497
America Securities LLC, as
Joint Lead Arranger and Sole
Book Manager, Barclays
Capital and ING Capital LLC,
as Joint Lead Arrangers,
Barclays Capital, as
Syndication Agent, and ING
Capital LLC, as
Documentation Agent.

First Lien Security

Agreement, dated as of
December 1, 2009, by and
among Salem
Communications Corporation, 8-K 000-26497
the subsidiary guarantors party
thereto and Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative

Agent.

Letter from Ernst & Young

LLP regarding change in 8-K 000-26497
certifying accountant

Subsidiaries of Salem
Communications Corporation

Consent of SingerLewak LLP
Independent Registered Publ
Accounting Firm.

Consent of Bond & Pecaro,
Inc., dated October 17, 2008

Certification of Edward G.

Atsinger Il Pursuant to Rules

13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) und

the Exchange Act.

Certification of Evan D.

Masyr Pursuant to Rules 13a-

14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the

Exchange Act.

Certification of Edward G.

Atsinger Il Pursuant to 18 - -
U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of Evan D.

Masyr Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. - -
Section 1350.

105

12/03/09

12/03/09

06/12/07

10.2

10.3

16.1



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetien duly authorized.

SALEM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
March 12, 2010

By: /sl EDWARD G. ATSINGER llI

Edward G. Atsinger 1l
Chief Executive Officer
March 12, 2010

By: /s/ EVAN D. MASYR

Evan D. Masyr
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature

/sl EDWARD G. ATSINGER IlI
Edward G. Atsinger 1l
/sl EVAN D. MASYR
Evan D. Masyr
/sl STUART W. EPPERSON
Stuart W. Epperson
/s DAVID DAVENPORT
David Davenport
/s/ ROLAND S. HINZ
Roland S. Hinz
/sl PAUL PRESSLER
Paul Pressler
/sl RICHARD A. RIDDLE
Richard A. Riddle
/s/ DENNIS M. WEINBERG

Dennis M. Weinberg

Title

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourgiOfficer)

Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010

March 12, 2010



Exhibit
Number
21.01

23.1
23.3
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibits
Subsidiaries of Salem Communications Corporation

Consent of SingerLewak LLP, Independent Registendalic Accounting Firm.

Consent of Bond & Pecaro, Inc.

Certification of Edward G. Atsinger |1l PursuantRales 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchamge A
Certification of Evan D. Masyr Pursuant to Rules-113l(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act.
Certification of Edward G. Atsinger |1l Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of Evan D. Masyr Pursuant to 18 U.SS8ction 1350.
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